State of Tennessee

Health Services and Development Agency
Andrew Jackson:Building, 9% Floor
502 Deaderick Street
Nashville, TN 37243

www.tn.gov/hsda  Phone: 615-741-2364  Fax: 615-741-9884

Date: April 13,2016

To: HSDA Members
QLN

From: Melanie M. Hill, Executive Director

Re: CONSENT CALENDAR JUSTIFICATION

Michael Dunn Center, Rockwood (Roane County), TN — CN1602-006

To establish a four. bed ICF/IID home for individuals with Intellectual Disabilities (ICF/IID) located at
763 Clymersville Road, Rockwood (Roane County), Tennessee 37854, The estimated project cost is
$1,586,065. . o ’ ‘

As permitted by Statute and further explained by Agency Rule later in this memo, | have placed this
application on the Consent Calendar based upon my determination that the application appears to meet
the established criteria for granting a Certificate of Need. Need, Economic Feasibility and Contribution to
the Orderly Development of Health Care appear to have been demonstrated as detailed below. If
Agency Members determine that the criteria have been met, a member may move to approve the
application by adopting the criteria set forth in this justification or develop another motion for approval
that addresses each of the three criteria required for approval of a Certificate of Need. If you find one or
more of the criteria have not been met, then a motion to deny is in order.

At the time the application entered the review cycle on March 1, 2016, it was not opposed. If the
application is opposed prior to it being heard, it will be moved to the bottom of the regular April agenda
and the applicant will make a full presentation.

Summary

Michael Dunn Center is seeking to establish a 4-bed ICF/IID home at 763 Clymersville Road in Rockwood
(Roane County). The applicant proposes to convert Hope Haven Il which is a facility it is currently using
as a 10-bed residential habilitation facility into a 4-bed ICF/IID facility. The nine residents who currently
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reside there will be relocated to a different residential habilitation. This is the same plan the Agency
approved in December for Michael Dunn, CN1509-038A, located at 313 Michael Dunn Drive in
Rockwood (Roane County), Tennessee. Please refer to the application, staff summary, and Tennessee
Department of Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities (TDIDD) report for more details about the
facility.

The need for this facility is based upon the closure of Greene Valley Developmental Center (GVDC),
which is anticipated to close on June 30, 2016. GVDC is being closed as part of the Exit Plan in a 19-year
old lawsuit by the Department of Justice against the State of Tennessee, which found unconstitutional
conditions at the State of Tennessee’s four developmental centers. The lawsuit will be fully dismissed
once all residents of GVDC have been transferred into smaller homes in the community and GVDC is
closed.

The following information came directly from the TDIDD website and helps explain the need for this
facility:

In April 1996, DIDD entered into a settlement agreement with the advocacy group People First, which
had sued the state, charging violations of Civil Rights of Institutionalized Persons Act (CRIPA) at Clover
Bottom and Greene Valley Developmental Centers. The United States Department of Justtce strongly
suggested that the state settle and, in December 1996, sued the state to become a party in the
_settlement negotiations.

Starting in May-2014, DIDD, the Bureau .of TennCare and the Attorney General's office participated in
court-ordered mediation for six months to reach an Exit Plan that-ultimately will- lead to-the-end-of the
nearly 20- year-o!d lawsuit. The Exit Plan was agreed to and executed by all of the partles to the Iawsu1t
the State, the U.S. Department of Justice, People First of Tennessee and the Parent Guardian Associations
of Clover Bottom Developmental Center and Greene Valley Developmental Center.

On January 29, 2015, an order wds issued by U.S. District Judge Kevin Sharp approving the Exit Plan. The
order entered by Judge Sharp calls for a two-phase dismissal of the: lawsuit based on the state
completing obligations set forth in the Exit.Plan. ,

The flrst phase is compr/sed of eight respons:blht/es DIDD and TennCare must complete by December 31,
2015 in order for the Iawsu:t to be partially dlsmlssed

The second phase requires the closure of Greene Valley Developmental Center in Greeneville by June 30,
2016. Upon closure, the lawsuit would be fully and finally dismissed.

More information can be found at http://th.gov/didd/topic/clover-bottem-exit-plan.

When the link above is opened click on the link identified as “Greene Valley Closure Plan”
http://tn.gov/assets/entities/didd/attachments/GVDC Closure Plan FINAL.pdf.

The cldsure plan provides very detailed information regarding the closure and community transition
process. It also notes the State of Tennessee will no longer be a willing provider of Intermediate Care



Facility services for Individuals with ‘Intellectual Disabilities {ICF/IID) at Greene Valley Developmental
Center (GVDC). Instead, it states current GVDC residents will receive appropriate services and supports
in alternative, community-based settings. The plan notes the Vision and Mission of the Department of
Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities is to support all Tennesseans with intellectual and
developmental disabilities to live fulfilling and rewarding lives and to become the nation’s most person-
centered and cost effective state support system.

Finally, United States District Court Judge Kevin Sharp of the Middle District of Tennessee who has
overseen the Exit Plan was quoted as saying the Plan is ‘fair, reasonable and adequate’ and provides the
next iteration of improvement to the lives of those with disabilities in Tennessee. It will test political will
and legislative leadership to continue that progress and to determine how best to care for those often
left in the shadows.

Please refer to the staff summary and the TDIDD report for a detailed narrative of the project.
Executive Director Justification -

I recommend approval of CN1602-006 for the establishment of a 4-bed ICE/IID located at 763
Clymersville Road in Rockwood, Roane County, Tennessee. My recommendation for approval is
based upon my belief the following general criteria for a Certificate of Need have been met.

Need- Néed is met, as this will transition four residents from the announced closure of GVDC.
This is the last obligation that must be met to settle the State’s 19-year old lawsuit {DOJ (People First of
Tennessee) et al. v. CBDC lawsuit}. Judge Sharp found the State’s Exit Plan “fair, reasonable, and
adequate" These re5|dents w:II continue to receive approprlate services and supports but they WI|| now
recelve them in a commumty -based settingand in a home-like environment. '

Economic Feasibility- The project is econemically feasible and will be funded through cash
reserves. The Michael Dunn Center maintains a cash balance of $800,000:to $1,000,000 and the
Michael Dunn Foundation has cash and investments that total around $2.8 million. The beds will be
immediately filled and the cost-based Medicaid reimbursement will be set by the Comptroller’s Office.
Since the State of Termessee is the payor for this service, this setting is more economically feasible for
the state.

Contribution to the Orderly Development of Health Care-The applicant is an experienced and
knowledgeable provider since it operates two ICF/IID facilities and is familiar with both state and federal
regulations; it has prior contractual relationships with both TennCare and the Department, and an
understanding of both the intellectual disability population and the intellectual disability system in
Tennessee. Additionally, it meets the goals set for GVDC residents to receive appropriate services and
supports in alternative, community-based settings.



Statutory Citation -TCA 68-11-1608. Review of applications -- Report

(d) The executive director may establlsh a date of less than sixty (60) days for reports on applications
that are to be considered for a consent or emergency calendar established in accordance with agency
rule. Any such rule shall provide that, in order to qualify for the consent calendar, an application must
not be Opposed by any person with legal standing to oppose and the application must appear to meet
the established criteria for the issuance of a certificate of need. If opposition is stated in writing prior to
the application. being-formally. considered by the agency, it shall be taken.off the consent-calendar-and
placed on the next regular agenda, unless waived by the parties.. -
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Rules of the Health Se_‘r‘vices and Development Agency-- 0720-162.05 CONSENT CALENDAR
(1) Each monthly meeting’s agenda will be available for both a consent calendar and a regular calendar.

(2) In order to be placed on the consent calendar, the application must not be opposed by anyone
having legal standing to oppose the application, and the executive director must determine ‘that the
appllcatlon appears to meet the established criteria for granting a certlflcate of need Public notice of all
appllcatlons mtended to be placed on the consent calendar will be glven

(3) As to all applicat‘ions which are placed on the consent‘calendar the reviewing agency shall file its
official report with The Agency within thirty (30) days of the begjnning “of the applicable review
cycle.

(4) If opp05|t|on by anyone havmg Iegal standlng to oppose the appllcatlon is stated in wrltmg prlor to
the appllcatlon being formally con5|dered by The Agency, it will be taken off the consent calendar and
placed on the next regular agenda. Any member of The Agency may state opposmon to the appllcatlon
being heard on the consent calendar, and if reasonable grounds for such opposition are given, the
application will be removed from the consent calendar and placed on the next regular agenda.

(a) For purposes of this rule, the “next regular agenda” means the next regular calendar to be
considered at the same monthly meéting.

(5) Any application which remains on the consent calendar will be individually considered and voted
upon by The Agency. ’



HEALTH SERVICES AND DEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING

APRIL 27,2016
APPLICATION SUMMARY

NAME OF PROJECT: Michael Dunn Center
PROJECT NUMBER: CN1602-006
ADDRESS: 763 Clymersville Road

Rockwood, (Roane County), Tennessee 37854
LEGAL OWNER: Hope Haven Corporation

629 Gallaher Road

Kingston, TN (Roane County), Tennessee 37763

OPERATING ENTITY: Not applicable

CONTACT PERSON: Mike McElhinney, President/CEO
(865) 376-3416

DATE FILED: February 2, 2016

PROJECT COST: $1,586,065

FINANCING: Cash Reserves

REASON FOR FILING: The establishment of a 4 bed Intermediate Care
Facility for Individuals with Intellectual Disabilities
(ICF/1ID). The 4 beds are subject to the 160 bed
ICFE/IID Bed Pool.

DESCRIPTION:

Michael Dunn Center is seeking approval to establish a 4 bed Intermediate Care Facility
for Individuals with Intellectual Disabilities (ICF/IID) at 763 Clymersville Road in
Rockwood (Roane County), TN. ICF/IIDs are intended to provide individuals with
intellectual disabilities individualized health care and rehabilitation to promote their
functional status and independence. Michael Dunn Center (MDC) will provide nursing
care, support services, and therapy services including physical, occupational, speech, and
nutritional therapy services. MDC will serve 4 individuals currently residing in the
Greene Valley Developmental Center located in Greeneville, (Greene County), TN.

Michael Dunn Center
CN1602-006
April 27, 2016
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The applicant has been placed under CONSENT CALENDAR REVIEW in
accordance with TCA 68-11-1608(d) and Agency Rule 0720-10-.05.

SERVICE SPECIFIC CRITERIA AND STANDARD REVIEW:

INTELLECTUAL DISABILITY HABILITATION FACILITY (ICF/IID)
ICE/IID FACILITIES
A. Need
1. The population-based estimate of the total need for ICF/ID facilities

is .032 percent of the general population. This estimate is based on
the estimate for all mental retardation of 1 percent. Of the 1 percent
estimate, 3.2 percent of those are estimated to meet level 1 criteria to
be appropriate for ICF/ID services.

Application of this formula to the projected 2015 population of Roane
County (55,411) results in a gross need for 18 ICE/IID beds.

It appears that this criterion has been met,

2. The estimate for total need should be adjusted by the existent ICF-
ID beds operating in the area as counted by the Department of
Health, the Department of Mental Health and Substance Abuse
Services, and the Department of Intellectual and Developmental
Disabilities in the Joint Annual Reports.”

There are currently 8 ICF/IID beds operated by the applicant, Michael
Dunn Center (MDC) in Roane County. The Michael Dunn Center was
approved during the December 16, 2015 Agency meeting in CN1509-038
for a 4 bed ICF/IID home in Roane County. Subtracting these 12 beds
from the 18 gross bed need results in a net bed need of 6.

Since the applicant is proposing a new 4 bed ICF/IID, it appears that this
criterion has been met.

B. Service Area
1. The geographic service area should be reasonable and based on an
optimal balance between population density and service proximity.

A table of driving distances and times for basic services from the proposed
ICENID location is located on page 20 of the original application. The
distance from the site of the proposed project to GVDC is approximately 2
hours of driving time.
Michael Dunn Center
CN1602-006
April 27, 2016
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It appears that this criterion has been met.

2. The relationship of the socio-demographics of the service area and
the project population to receive services should be considered. The
proposal’s sensitivity and responsiveness to the special needs of the
service area should be considered including accessibility to
consumers, particularly women, racial and ethnic minorities, low-
income groups, and those needing services involuntarily.

The proposed project will be providing services to individuals currently
residing at GVDC. These individuals have developmental disabilities and
complex medical needs, which include tracheotomy care, tube feeding,
oxygen administration, insulin injections, medication administration, and
daily medical assessments. These services are available to all who need and
qualify for services.

It appears that this criterion has been met.

C. Relationship to Existing Applicable Plans
1. The proposal’s relationship to policy as formulated in state, city,
county, and/or regional plans and other documents should be a
significant consideration.”

The Commissioner of the Department of Intellectual and Developmental
Disabilities (DIDD) has submitted a letter that supports this application
as it contributes to the policy of moving residents from large
developmental centers which are inefficient and do not produce economies
of scale due to older inefficient buildings to private operation of smaller 4
person ICE/IID homes which are more efficient and economically feasible
for the state.

It appears that this criterion has been met.

2. The proposal’s relationship to underserved geographic areas and
underserved population groups such as identified in state, city,
county, and/or regional plans and other documents should be a
significant consideration.

The applicant indicates there are over 7,000 individuals awaiting
placement and this facility will be made available in the event a

Michael Dunn Center
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resident being placed from GVDC is discharged from the proposed
facility.

It appears that this criterion has been met.

3. The impact of the proposal on similar services supported by state
and federal appropriations should be assessed and considered.

There are 8 ICF/IID beds operated by the applicant in Roane County. All
the beds are currently occupied. The proposed project will serve current
residents of GVDC, so the proposed project should have no impact on
similar services supported by state and federal appropriations.

It appears that this criterion has been met.

4. The degree of projected financial participation in the Medicare and
TennCare programs should be considered.

The applicant has indicated that 100% of the funding for the proposed
project will be TennCare reimbursement.

It appears that this criterion has been met.

D. Relationship to Existing Similar Services in the Community
1. The area’s trend in occupancy and utilization of similar services
should be considered.

There are eight existing ICF/IID beds currently owned by the applicant in
the service area. These beds are currently occupied. When these beds are
vacated they are typically filled within 60 days.

It appears that this criterion has been met.

2. Accessibility to specific special need groups should be an important
factor.

Residents will have access to family practice physicians and the local
hospital. MDC will employ/contract physical therapists, physical therapy
assistants, ~ occupational  therapists, speech-language pathologists,
dieticians, nurses, and behavioral analysts.

It appears that this criterion has been met.
Michael Dunn Center
CN1602-006
April 27, 2016
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STAFF SUMMARY

Note to Agency members: This staff summary is a synopsis of the original
application and supplemental responses submitted by the applicant. Any HSDA
Staff comments will be presented as a “Note to Agency members” in bold italics.

Michael Dunn Center (MDC) proposes to convert Hope Haven II (a current 10
bed residential habilitation facility) into a 4 bed Intermediate Care Facility for
Individuals with Intellectual Disabilities (ICF/IID). The 9 residents currently
residing in the building will be transitioned to a different residential habilitation
facility. The facility will house current residents of the Greene Valley
Developmental Center (GVDC). The proposed project will significantly reduce
driving times of nearby families and conservators compared to the driving times
to GVDC located in Greene County. MDC's ICF beds are designed to provide
long term residential supports to individuals with intellectual and
developmental disabilities. ICF/IIDs provide comprehensive and individualized
health care and rehabilitation services to promote the functional status and
independence of individuals with intellectual disabilities.

These individuals have developmental disabilities and complex medical needs,
which include tracheotomy care, tube feeding, oxygen administration, insulin
injections, medication administration, and daily medical assessment. The age
range of the men and women with developmental disabilities who need ICF/IID
services is 18-70.

MDC employs nursing staff, physical therapists, physical therapy assistants,
occupational therapists, speech language pathologists, and two dieticians. MDC
also contracts with behavioral analysts as needed.

Michael Dunn Center
CN1602-006
April 27, 2016
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The following chart displays the availability of essential services to residents of
the proposed project.

Service Closest Location Driving Distance Driving Time

Nearest Incorporated Rockwood, TN 0.7 miles 2 minutes

City

Hospital Roane Medical 9.75 miles 15 minutes

Center

Physician Offices Roane County 9.75 miles 15 minutes
Family Practice

EMS/Fire Station 623 Old Hwy. 70, 9.75 miles 15 minutes
Harriman, TN

Day Treatment (if NA NA NA

applicable)

Green Valley 117.59 miles 118 minutes

Development Center

Source: CN1602-006

Note to Agency members: The applicant uses the acronym ICE/DD (Intermediate
Care Facility for the Developmentally Disabled) in this application; however the
Department of Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities uses the acronym
ICE/ID (Intermediate Care Facility for Individuals with Intellectual
Disabilities). ICE/IID is the acronym that will be used in the summary.

Note to Agency members: The following statement from the DIDD Report on the
proposed project provides history and development of 4-bed ICE/IID homes as
follows: “The need for the development of the four bed ICE/IID home cotes as a
direct result of the announced closure of the last large state owmned
developmental center, Greene Valley Developmental Center (GVDC), which is
anticipated to close on June 30, 2016. The closure of GVDC is part of an Exit
Plan in a nineteen (19) year old lawsuit against the state of Tennessee by the
Department of Justice (People First of Tennessee et.al. v. The Clover Bottom
Developmental Center ef. Al. No. 3:95-1227), which requires the state of
Tennessee to close the Greene Valley Developmental Center and relocate the
residents to smaller four person ICE/IIDs in the community.” As noted above
GVDC is scheduled to close June 30, 2016 but could be extended up to 12
additional months.

The target date for completion of the project is May 2016.

ICE/IID Bed Pool

T.C.A. §71-5-105(b) enacted by the General Assembly, seeks to increase the total
number of ICF/IID beds by 160 beds. These beds are then intended to be filled
by individuals from state operated Developmental Centers.

Michael Dunn Center
CN1602-006
April 27, 2016
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The applicant is requesting 4 beds from the bed pool as the residents of
the proposed project currently reside in GVDC.

As of April 1, 2016, there are currently 24 ICF/IID beds available in the
bed pool with 4 ICF/IID beds pending review at the April 2016 HSDA
Agency meeting.

A copy of the 160 Bed Pool Report is attached at the end of this summary.

Ownership

Hope Haven Corporation owns the facility at 763 Clymersville Road in
Rockwood, Roane County.

The Michael Dunn Center will lease the facility from Hope Haven
Corporation and will be the licensed operator of the 4-bed ICF/IID home.
Michael Dunn Center operates 24 homes with different level of services
throughout Roane County.

Facility Information

The facility at the site of the proposed project is a 4,350 square foot, one
story, ranch style home located on a 2.4 acre fenced lot. There are ten
bedrooms, five bathrooms, a large office, living room, dining room,
kitchen, laundry room, outside storage closet, and a two car carport.

There are currently nine people living in this home. These individuals
will be transitioned to a newly acquired and renovated Supported Living
Home nearby.

The home will be modified to create four suites for the four new residents
from GVDC. Each suite will have a 180 square foot bedroom, a 180 square
foot TV lounge/sitting room, and a large bathroom with a handicapped
accessible shower. Additional spaces will be utilized for sensory rooms,
therapy or exercise areas, sitting areas, and storage spaces.

Project Need

The applicant provided the following justification for the project:

The current bed need formula identified gross need for 18 ICF/IID beds in
Roane County. Subtracting the existing 8 ICF/IID beds in Roane County
(also owned and operated by the Michael Dunn Center) and 4 ICF/IID
beds approved in December 2015 results in a net need of six additional
ICF/IID beds.

The applicant reports that area wide occupancy for the two existing four
bed homes in Roane County was 99.1% in 2014.

The families and conservators for individuals moving out of GVDC are
requesting that their family members move to ICF beds in the community
setting. The families reside 10 to 70 minute drive from the site of the

Michael Dunn Center
CN1602-006
April 27,2016
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proposed project which is significantly closer than GVDC in Greene
County.

Service Area Demographics
The applicant’s declared service area is Roane County. An overview of the
service area is provided as follows:

o The total population of Roane County is estimated at 55,411 residents in
calendar year (CY) 2015 increasing by approximately 1.3% to 56,152
residents in CY 2019.

* The overall statewide population is projected to grow by 4.5% from 2015

to 2019.

The 65 and older population is expected to comprise approximately 24.9%
of the total county population in CY2019 compared to 17.3% statewide.
The 65 and older population of Roane County will increase by
approximately 13.9% from CY2015 to CY2019 compared to a statewide
increase of 16% during the period. ‘

Based on October 2015 TennCare enrollee statistics, TennCare enrollees as
a percentage of the total county population is 21.5%, compared with the
state-wide average of 21.8%.

Historical Utilization

There are currently two 4-bed ICF/IID homes in Roane County both owned and
operated by The Michael Dunn Center. Historical utilization for these facilities is
presented in the table below.

Roane County ICE/IID Home Utilization 2013-2015

Name Licensed 2013 % 2014 % 2015 %
Beds Occupancy Occupancy Occupancy

Calliouette 4 96.9% 98.2% 96.7%

Home

Herron Home 4 99.9% 100.0% 100%

Total 8 98.5% 99.1% 98.4%

Source: CN1602-006

The historical utilization table reflects the following;

e Both homes have remained essentially at full occupancy for each of the past
ee years.

Michael Dunn Center
CN1602-006
April 27, 2016
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Projected Utilization
The following table shows the projected utilization of the project.

Applicant’s Facility Projected Utilization

Year Licensed Beds % Licensed Occupancy
*Year 1 4 100.0%
*Year 2 4 100.0%

Source: CN1602-006

e The applicant expects to operate at full occupancy each of the first two years
of operation.

Project Cost
The total project cost is $1,582,504. Major costs are:

e Facility Lease - $1,260,000 or 79.6% of total cost.

e Moveable equipment - $168,104 or 10.6% of total cost.

e The applicant indicates that the home will require $144,400 in renovation.
e For other details on Project Cost, see the Project Cost in the application.

\

Funding
A letter from Glen Blevins, VP of Finance for the Michael Dunn Center and

Michael Dunn Foundation indicated that Michael Dunn Center maintains a cash
balance of $800,000 to $1,000,000 and the Michael Dunn Foundation has cash and
investments estimated at $2,800,000. The mission and purpose of the Michael
Dunn Foundation is to raise and manage resources to support Michael Dunn
Center.

Historical Data Chart

e According to the Historical Data Chart, The Michael Dunn Center total
operation realized an unfavorable Net Operating Income of $(341,000) in
Year 2014. This a decline from the favorable net income of $208,000
reported in Year 2012.

e The net loss is attributed to not receiving a Tennessee Department of
Transportation grant of approximately $170,000 in 2014, a 2% staff wage
increase totaling $160,000 (with no rate increase), and a total of $211,779
lost in child day care program fees, local school systems contracts, and
revenue from the work program.

Projected Data Chart

The applicant projects $1,155,386.00 in total gross revenue on 1,460 patient days
in Year 1 decreasing by 9.4% to $1,046,704 on 1,460 patient days in Year 2
(approximately $716.92 per day). The projected decrease in revenue is attributed

Michael Dunn Center
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to decreased funding in Year 2 as the startup expenses to furnish the home with
furniture, cookware, appliances, linens, towels, and decorations will be a onetime
costin Year 1. The Projected Data Charts reflect the following:

¢ The applicant projects to breakeven in both Years 1 and 2 so that no net
income is projected.

* The applicant projects revenue based on expected funding and does not
report deductions for contractual adjustments, charity care, and bad debt.
The applicant does have a $50,000 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts on
its balance sheet under account receivables.

Charges

In Year 1 of the proposed project (2017), the average gross daily patient charge is
projected to be $719.36. Since there are no deductions from revenue reported,
the net charge is the same.

Medicare/TennCare Payor Mix
The applicant expects the proposed project to be funded 100% by
TennCare/Medicaid.

Review of the Michael Dunn Center, Inc. audited financial statements for the
period ending June 30, 2014 indicates $1,199,050 in cash, total current assets of
$2,330,061, total current liabilities of $690,822 and a current ratio of 3.37 to 1.0

Note to Agency Members: Current ratio is a measure of liquidity and is the ratio
of current assets to current liabilities which measures the ability of an entity to
cover its current liabilities with its existing current assets. A ratio of 1:1 would
be required to have the minimum amount of assets needed to cover current
liabilities.

Michael Dunn Center
CN1602-006
April 27,2016
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Staffing
A breakout of the staffing in Year 1 includes the following:

0.5 FTE Resident Manager

0.5 FTE Qualified MR Professional !

0.33 FTE RN

44 FTELPN

9.8 FTE Direct Support Workers

0.04 FTE Physical Therapist

0.04 FTE Occupational Therapist

0.04 FTE Speech Therapist

1.0 FTE Other Central Office Support Personnel
16.65 FTE TOTAL

Licensure/Accreditation
If approved, the proposed facility will be licensed by the Department of
Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities.

Corporate documentation and site control documents are on file at the Agency office and
will be available at the Agency meeting.

Should the Agency vote to approve this project, the CON would expire in two
years.

CERTIFICATE OF NEED INFORMATION FOR THE APPLICANT

There are no other Letters of Intent, denied or pending applications for this
applicant.

Outstanding Certificates of Need

Michael Dunn Center, CN1509-038A, has an outstanding Certificate of Need
that will expire on February 1, 2018. The project was approved at the December
16, 2015 Agency meeting to establish a 4 bed Intermediate Care Facility for
Individuals with Intellectual Disabilities (ICF/IID) at 313 Michael Dunn Drive, in
Rockwood (Roane County), TN. The estimated project cost is $1,438,834.00.
Project Status Update: The project was recently approved.

Michael Dunn Center
CN1602-006
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CERTIFICATE OF NEED INFORMATION FOR OTHER SERVICE AREA
FACILITIES:

There are no other Letters of Intent, denied or pending applications, or
outstanding Certificates of Need for other health care organizations in the service
area proposing this type of service.

PLEASE REFER TO THE REPORT BY THE DEPARTMENT OF
INTELLECTUAL AND DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES FOR A
DETAILED ANALYSIS OF THE STATUTORY CRITERIA OF NEED,
ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY, AND CONTRIBUTION TO THE ORDERLY
DEVELOPMENT OF HEALTH CARE IN THE AREA FOR THIS PROJECT.
THAT REPORT IS ATTACHED TO THIS SUMMARY IMMEDIATELY
FOLLOWING THE COLOR DIVIDER PAGE.

PME
03/04/2016

Michael Dunn Center
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ICF/IID BED POOL STATS

T.C.A. §71-5-105(b)
160 BED POOL

ICF/IID Beds PENDING 4

- =

CNO707-053 10/24/2007

. Davidson

Mur-Ci Homes, Inc. Approved =

* Implemented —
5/13/2009

Hamilt CN0807-045 Orange Grove Center ' ;
Hamilton > Oran hamﬂer?ﬁ\?re e Approved 10/22/2008
Implemented ~
11772010
Bradley =~ CNO0809-065 g_rtadgaya'Cleveland Services, Inc., Approved 12/17/2008
Sile 3 O
between 183 and 217, T WL,
Kile Lake Road, SE Wpleneed
Rutherford  CN0810-079  Tennessee-Family Solutions, Inc. '. -
2 oo 15021504 Rochgster Drive - Pprove gz
Implemented -
711912011
ICF/IID BED POOL STATS
Updated 3/23/2016

Page 1 of 3

The addition
‘converting ‘two (2) zero-lot - line residences at

ICF/ID beds

The addition of 32 residential ICF/IID beds to the
existing 40 beds. Four single storz buildings
with eight (8) single bedrooms to be built on the
existing property site. "Located at 2984 Baby
Ruther Lane, Antioch, Tennessee.

The establishment of a four (4)-bed* ICFIID
home for four (4) residents who will be referred
or transferred from a State of Tennessee
Developmental Center. .Located at 3406
Chandler Avenue, Chattanooga, Tennessee,

The establishment of a four (4) bed* ICFID
home for four (4) residents who will transfer or be
referred from a State of Tennessee development
center. SiteB will be lacated between 183 and
217 Kile Lake Road, 'SE, Cleveland, Tennessee.

Hon of T |

ned D,

of four (4 ICFAID beds by

1502-1504 Rochester Drive, Murfreesboro
(Rutherford County), TN into a four (4) bed
ICFMD. - :



Rutherford  CN0810-081 }'ggnessee Family Solutions, Inc.. Approved 1/28/2009  The addition of four (4)* ICFIID beds by

2-1434 Rochester Drive converting two' (2) zero lot liné residences at
Implemented - 14321434 Rochester Drive, Murfreésboro
71172010 (Rutherford County), TN into a four (4) bed

ICFAID.

Greene ~ CN0812-118 Comcare, Inc. Approved 512712009 Theestabhshment of a four (4)*bed ICFAID

program in-an existing facility. This program
Implemented — will service four (4). people with mental
3/16/2011 disabilities who will transfer from Greene

Valley Developmental Center or other State
“Developmental Centers. Location will be at 8
-Burkay Road Greenemlle, Tannessee i

12/16/2015  The astabl:shment of a four (4) bed ICFAID
home for four (4) residents located at 313
Michael Dunn Drive in Rockwood (Roane
Counly) Tennessea 37748,

© CN1509-038

‘Michael Dunn Center

Greene CN1511-050 -Open Arms Care Corporation dba Approved 202412016 _The es!ablishment of a four (4) person ICFAID
Greeneville #1 Chuckey Pike e . 'hone on the east side of a 2.72 acre lot on
: Chuckey Pike, Greeneyille, Tennessee.

Greene  CN1511-052" Open Arms Care Corporationdba  Approved 212412016, The establishment of a four (4) person ICF/ID

Greeneville #3 East Church Street “home the east half of a 2.74 acre lot on East
- East Church Strest, Greeneville, Tennessee.
Greene CN1511-054 Opan ‘Arms Care Corporation dba Approved - 2/24/2016  Thi establishmient of a four (4) person ICF/ID

Greenevile #2 East Church Street home on the west half of a 2,74 acre lot on
- West : East Church Street, Greeneville, Tennessee,

Greene  CN1512:059 D & S‘Residential Services, LP Approved 3/23/2016  The establishment of a four (4) bed ICFID

home on 1010 Old Stage Road, Greeneville,
Tennessee.
ICF/IID BED POOL STATS
Updated 3/23/2016

Page 2 of 3



Greene  CN1512-061 D & S Residential Services, LP Approved 3/23/2016  The establishment of a four (4) bed IGFAID
home on 2619 Emwin Highway, Afton,
Tennessee,

Knox-  CN1512:063 Open A Comorationdba  Approved 32312016 The establishment-of a four (4) bed ICFID

Knox CN1512-065 Open Arms Care Co orabnn dba Approved 3/23/2016 The |shrnent of a four {4} bed ICFﬂID

Knox County #2 Bishops B”dgﬁ home on the northwest corner of 1817 Bishop

Norﬁlwesl Bndge Road Knoxvnlle Tennessee.

Knox County #3 Soul home on the southeast half of 12629 South

Northshore Drive Southeast Noﬂhshure Drwe. Knoxviile Tennassee

ICF/ID BED POOL STATS
Updated 3/23/2016
Page 3 of 3
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State of Tennessee
Health Services and Development Agency
Andrew Jackson Building, oth Floor
502 Deaderick Street

Nashville, TN 37243
www.tn.gov/hsda Phone: 615-741-2364 Fax: 615-741-9884

LETTER OF INTENT

The Publication of Intent is to be published in the _Roane County News which is a newspaper
(Name of Newspaper)
of general circulation in ___Roane , Tenne , on or before _ 02/04 , 2016,
(County) (Month / day) (Year)
for one day.

This is to provide official notice to the Health Services and Development Agency and all interested parties, in accordance with T.C.A. §
68-11-1601 ef seq., and the Rules of the Health Services and Development Agency, that:
Michael Dunn Center

(Name of Applicant) " (Facility Type-EX|st|ng}
owned by: Hope Haven Coorporation with an ownership type of _Non-Profit

and to be managed by: Mike McElhinney, President/ CEOQ intends to file an appllcatlon for a Certificate of Need for [PROJECT

DESCRIPTION BEGINS HERE]: The ¢
37854 into a four person' ICF/ IDD home fo fac

according to the rules of the HSDA, is $1,582,504.00 The project includes the relocation of individuals in the Remgentlal Habilitation

homé to local Sugpor[ad Living Homes:or smaller Residential Hagllgggtgn Homes, the gnmgign of mg Resil gmlal Hablhlag[gn

lan implementation to ir independence will also b vided

The anticipated date of filing the application is: February 4'", 2016
The contact person for this project is Mike McElhinney President/ CEQ
(Contact Name) (Title)
who may be reached at: Michael Dunn Center 629 Gallaher Road
(Company Name) (Address)

l Kingston TN 37763 865-376-3416 Ext. 215 I

(City) (State) (Zip Code) (Area  Code / Phone Number)

S N TS VY 6 ik, MeEhinge —
(Signature) § {Date) (E-mail Address) -

The Letter of Intent must be filed in triplicate and received between the first and the tenth day of the month. If the last day for
filing is a Saturday, Sunday or State Holiday, filing must occur on the preceding business day. File this form at the following
address:
Health Services and Development Agency
Andrew Jackson Building, 9™ Floor
502 Deaderick Street
Nashville, Tennessee 37243

The published Letter of Intent must contain the following statement pursuant to T.C.A. § 68- 11-1607(c)(1). (A) Any health care institution
wishing to oppose a Certificate of Need application must file a written notice with the Health Services and Development Agency no later
than fifteen (15) days before the regularly scheduled Health Services and Development Agency meeting at which the application is
originally scheduled and (B) Any other person wushlng to oppose the application must file written objection with the Health Services and

o e s s G o e £ B e S Wt e N N GRD e i s B Y B GNP VU P Oy et D D (B G s G G i M D D S e SO G D M0 Gk D e e S SN e G R (B D S et S R A e O i

HF51 (Revised 01/09/2013 — all forms prior to thls date are obsolete)



 COPY

Michael Dunn
Center
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SECTION A:

APPLICANT PROFILE

Please enter all Section A responses on this form. All questions must be answered. If an item
does not apply, please indicate “N/A”. Attach appropriate documentation as an Appendix at
the end of the application and refererice the applicable Item Number on the attachment.
For Section A, Item 1, Facility Name must be applicant facility’s name and address must be the
site of the proposed project. i : v, o=
For Section A, Item 3, Altach a copy of the partnership agreement, or corporate charter and
certificate of corporate existence, if applicable, from the Tennessee Secretary of State. (See
Attachments 1 and 2) .
For Section A, Item 4, Describe the existing or proposed ownership structure of the
applicant, including an ownership structure organizational chart. Explain the corporate
structure and the manner in Which all -entities of the ownership structure relate to the
applicant. As applicable, identify the members of the ownership entity and each member's
percentage of ownership, for those members with 5% or more ownership interest. In
addition, please document the financial interest of the applicant, and the applicant's parent
company/owner in any other health care institution as defined in Tennessee Code
Annotated, §68-11-1602 in Tennessee. At a minimum, please provide the name, address,
current status of licensure/certification, and percentage of ownership for each health care
institution identified.

Response: There are only two parties, Michael Dunn Center and Hope Haven Corporation.
Hope Haven Corporation is the ownér of the property and will lease the property to Michael Dunn
Center (MDC) for a thirly (30) year renewable lease. There is not a managing company. Michael
Dunn Center will operate the facility in all aspects with the exception of the initial startup costs.
This home is currently licensed through ‘the Departiment of Intellectual and Developmental
Disabilities (DIDD) as a Mental Retardation Residential Habilitation facility. ~ After the CON is
approved, MDC will apply for a license as an Intermediate Care Facility (ICF) through QIDD. _ -

For Section A, Item 5, For new facilities or existing facilities without a current management
agreement, attach a copy of a draft management agreement that at least includes the anticipated
scope of management services to be'_provfded, the anticipated term of the agreement, and the
anticipated management fee 'payment methodology and. schedule. For facilities with existing
management agreements, altach a copy of the fully executed final contract. (See Attachment 3)

Please describe the management entity's experience in providing management services for the
type of the facility, which is the same or similar to the applicant facility. Please describe the
ownership structure of the management entity. (NA, there is no management entity. Michael
Dunn Center will manage all aspect.'ﬁ.,of the home and program.)

For Section A, Item 6, For applicants.or applicant’s parent company/owner that currently own
the building/land for the project location; aftach a copy of the title/deed. For applicants or
applicant’s parent company/owner that currently lease the building/land for the project location,
attach a copy of the fully executéd lease agreement. For projects where the location of the
project has not been secured, attach a fully executed document including Option to Purchase
Agreement, Option to Lease Agreerient, or other appropriate documentation. Option to Purchase
Agreements must include anticipated purchase price. Lease/Option to Lease Agreements must
6
\ . -
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‘include the actual/anticipated term of the agreement and actual/anticipated lease expense. The

legal interests described herein must be st be valid on the date of the Agency's consideration of the
certificate of need application. (See Attachment 4) :
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T
o

R

1. Name of Facility, Agency, or;_f!nstitution

Michael Dunn Center

Name E _

763 Clymersville Road __ LB e : ' Roane

Street or Route ‘ i B County
Rockwood 2 TN 37854

City State Zip Code

2. Contact Person Available for- Responses fo Questions

\
Mike McElhinney : SR 5 President/CEQ
Name Title
Mike.mcelhinnney@michaeldunn
Michael Dunn Center . center.org
Company Name z
Email address
629 Gallaher Rd. . ; Kingston TN . 37763
Street or Route By R - City State Zip Code
President/ CEO B A 865-376 3416 865-376-3532
Association with Owner f .. Phone-Number Fax Number
3. Owner of the Facility, Aqencv or Institution
Hope Haven Coorporation (See Aﬁachments 1 and 2) 865-376-3416
Name : 1 Phone Number
629 Gallaher Rd. R, A R Roane
Street or Route A e % ' ~ County: -
Kingston 0k : TN 37763
City State Zip Code

4. Type of Ownership of Control (Check One)

Sole P rogrietcrship G S " Government (State of TN or
Partnership -~ - i - Boliti division)

Limited Partnérship - TR ﬁ :J::::"\?/Z'_.n?iz__!vls't)n):
Corporatlon (FOI’ PrOflt) l‘, Limited Liability Company

Corporation (Not-for—Proflf) X Other (Specify)

moow>

-PUT AL ATTACHMENTS AT THE BACK OF THE
APPLICATION IN ORDER AND REFERENCE THE
APPLICABLE ITEM NUMBER ON ALL ATTACHMENTS.

b



22

5. Name of Manaqement/Opemﬁr:{g Entity (If Applicable)

NA
Name !
Street or Route " _ County
City = ' B L . iState oo - Zip Code

PUT ALL ATTACHMENTS AT THE END OF THE APPLICATION IN ORDER AND REFERENCE THE
APPLICABLE ITEM NUMBER ON ALL ATTACHMENTS,

Legal Interest in the Site of the Institution (Check One)

D. Option to Lease
E. Other (Specify)

A. Ownership
B. Option to Purchase

C. Lease of_30 _Years

|

’ ’ |

PUT ALL ATTACHMENTS AT THE BACK OF THE APPLICATION IN ORDER AND REFERENCE THE

APPLICABLE ITEM NUMBER ON ALL ATTACHMENTS.

5 o 8
5 3

'ate‘--moié than ‘one response may apply) -

nge' of Institution (Check as appa"'épn

A, Hospital (Specify) - Nursing Home

» g ow
B.  Ambulatory Surgical Treatmg{hi [EE E J.©  Outpatient Diagnostic Center
Center (ASTC), Multi-Speciafty _ K. Recuperation Center
C. ASTC, Singie Specialty _____ L. Rehabilitation Facllity
D. Home Health Agency ____ M. Residential Hospice
E. Hospice N.  Non-Residential Methadone
F. Mental Health Hospital. il 5 Facility
G. Mental Health Residential ' O.- Birthing Center -
Treatment Facility . —_ P.  Other Outpatient Facility
H.  Mental Retardation Institutiona ; " (Specify)
X

Habilitation Facility (ICF/MR) Q.  Other (Specify)

Purpose of Review (Check) as appropriate--more than one response m.‘:;vy apply)

A. New Institution P X G. Change in Bed Complement

B. Replacement/Existing Facility _ [Please note the type of change

C. Modification/Existing Facility : by underiining the appropriate

D Initiation of Health Care s z response; Increase, Decrease,
Service as definedin TCA§ % =~ - 2l Designation, Distribution,

Conversion, Relocation]
I. Other; Convert a DIDDRes Hab
home into an ICF/ IID location with 4

68-11-1607(4) B beds
(Specify)
E. Discontinuance of OB Services _ H.  Change of Location

T
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9. Bed Complement Data

—  Please indicate current and proposed distribu tionand certificationof Tacility beds:

Current Beds Staffed Beds Beds at
Licensed *CON Beds Proposed  Completion

TOTAL

Medical

Surgical

Long-Term Care Hospital
Obstetrical

ICU/CCU

Neonatal

Pediatric

Adult Psychiatric

Geriatric Psychiatric
Child/Adolescent Psychiatric
Rehabilitation

Nursing Facility (non-Medicaid Certified)
Nursing Facility Level 1 (Medicaid only)
Nursing Facility Level 2 (Medicare only)

Nursing Facility Level 2
(dually certified Medicaid/Medicare)

OzZ2rXe~-~ITO0mMmMOO®T»

P. ICF/MR 0 0 4 4
Q. Aduit Chemical Dependency
R. Child and Adolescent Chemical
Dependency
S. Swing Beds
T. Mental Health Residential Treatment

U. Residential Hospice

TOTAL 0 0 4 i 4
*CON-Beds approved but not yet in service

10 Medicare Provider Number  MDC PTAN # 103705293
Certification Type Multi-specialty Clinic or group practice

11. Medicaid Provider Number H445387
Certification Type ICF/DD

12 If this i facility. will certification | ht for Medi llor Medicaid? Y.

13. Identify all TennCare Managed Care Organizations/Behavioral Health Organizations
(MCOs/BHOs) operating in the proposed service area. Will this project involve the

Replacement-10

ATTACHMENT 2
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treatment of TennCare participants?Yes If the response to this item is yes, please identify all MCOs/BHOs
with which the applicant has contracted orplans to contract. (See Attachment 5)

&

11
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Discuss any out-of-network relationships ir place with MCOs/BHOs in the area.

LY

NA

02



NOTE:
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Sectlon Bis lntended to give the applicant an opportunlty to describe the
project and to discuss the need that the applicant sees for the project.
Section C addresses how ihepro;ect relates to the Certificate of Need
criteria of Need, Economic Feasibility, and the Contribution to the Orderly
Development of Health Care. Discussions on how the application
relates to the criteria should not take place in this section unless
otherwise specified.

SECTION B: PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Please answer all questions on 8 1/2” x 11" white paper, clearly typed and spaced,
identified correctly and in the correct sequence. In answering, please type the
question and the response. All exhibits and tables must be attached to the end of the -
application in correct sequence identifying the questions(s) to which they refer. If a
particular question does not apply to your project, indicate “Not Applicable (NA)" after
that question.

I.  Provide a brief executive summary of the project not to exceed two pages.
Topics to be included in the executive summary are a brief description of
proposed services and equipment, ownershlp structure, service area,
need, existing resources; project cost fundmg. flnanc:{al feasublllty and
staffing. :

Response: ;

Ownership structure— The Hope Haven Corporation owns the facility at
763 Clymersville Road in Rockwood. The Hope Haven Corporatlon is \
managed by Michael Dunn Center located at 629 Gallaher Road,

Kingston, TN in Roane County. The Michael Dunn Center will manage

the ICF Facility, once in place, at:763 Clymersville Road, as well.

Service area- This project involves the renovation of a Residential
Habilitation Home in which services fall under Department of Intellectual
anhd Developmental Disabilities into a four bed ICF home. The home is
located at 763 Clymerste Road Rockwood TN 37854 in Roane

County
Need- Families of md:wdua!s res:dmg at Green Valley Deve!opmenta! Center,

who live in or near Roane County, TN, are ‘requesting ICF services for their
family members. The renovated home will provide four beds with on suites for
privacy when visiting with families and equipment storage for four individuals
exiting the Green Valley Developmental Center prior to the expected closure
date of June 30", 20186

Existing Resources- This projéct involves the conversion of a Residential
Habilitation Home in which services fall under Department of Intellectual and
Developmental Disabilities into a four bed ICF home. The home is located at
763 Clymersville Road; Rockwood, TN 37854 in Roane County. The existing

management staff will .manage the new home. The local hospital and

’ physicians will provide medical services. Michael Dunn Center has a therapy

13
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department to provide necessary services. Michael Dunn Foundation has
financial resources to open this home as shown in Michael Dunn Foundation,
INC. Financial Sraremenfs with Supplemenraf F;nanc:al Informatlon (See
Attachments 6,7 &8} j © ~ :

Project Cost- The pro;ecf will need an appraisal for fair market value of the
rent. Movable eqummen{ acquisition consists of two sedans and tivo ™
handicap accessible vans. See Project Data Chart

Funding Financial Feasibility- Funding for ICF/DD facilities is based on
expenses from the previous year. The program is funded through TennCare.
TennCare remits payment ro Michael Dunn Center after services are
provided. :

Staffing- The homes are staffed with a Director, Assistant Director and
Supervisor who are all licensed Registered Nurses in the state of
Tennessee. The proposed ICF home will be managed and nursing care
will be provided by the same three individuals in conjunction with LPN's,
Direct Support Professionals, and a Qualified Intellectual and
Developmental Disability Professional. Michael Dunn Center employs
therapy personnel néeded to suppon‘ individuals in Physical,
Occupational, Speech and nutrition therapy. Local resources, such as
Patricia Neal Rehabilitation Center are also available to support
/ndlwdual choice. ey

Staffing of the home:will come from nurses in the local and surrounding '
communities who choose to work in a small specialized setting &
supporting individuals with-any combination of developmental,
intellectual and behavioral needs. Tennessee College of Applied
Technology hosts two separate programs per year for LPN’s. The LPN's
from the Harriman location do clinical observation at Michael Dunn
Center, often resulting in a desire to be-employed at Michael Dunn
Center upon graduarfon - :

Provide a detailed narratlve of the prolect by addressmg the following items
as they relate to the proposal ' : -

Describe the constructlon modifi catlon and/or renovation of the facility
(exclusive of major medical equipment covered by T.C.A. § 68-11-1601
et seq.) including square footage, major operational areas, room -
configuration, etc. Applicants with hospital pro;ects (construction cost in
excess of $5 mlillon) and other facility projects (construction cost in
excess of $2 million) should complete the Square Footage and Cost per
Square Footage Chart. Utilizing the attached Chart, applicants with
hospital projects. should comp[ete Parts A.-E. by identifying as applicable -
nursing units, ancnlary areas, and support areas affected by this project. -
Provide the Iocatlon of the unit/service within the existing facnhty along

14
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with current square footage, where, if any, the unit/service will relocate
temporarily durlng construction and renovation, and then the location of
the unit/service with proposed square footage.  The total cost per square
foot should provide a breakout between new construction and renovation
cost per square‘foot. Other facility projects need only complete Parts B.-
E. Please also discuss and justify the cost per square foot for this project.

If the project mvelves none of the above, describe the development of the
proposal.

Response: Y

We are planning to modf'fy"}fope Haven Il in Rockwood, Tennessee. This home
is 3341 square feet and sits on 2.393 acres. There are ten bedrooms, four
bathrooms, a large office, !Eif:'ng room, dining room, kitchen, laundry room, outside
storage closet and a two car carport.:

This home will be modified to create four suites for four new residents from
Greene Valley Developmental Center. Each suite will consistofa
bedroom that will be approximately 180 square feet and a 180 square foot
TV lounge or sitting room. Every two residents will share a large bathroom
with a handicapped accessible shower. The goal behind this design is to
provide each pemors the choice to relax and enjoy TV or other activities in
their own private room or move to the larger common living room to
socialize with others. There are currently nine people living in this home.
They will be transitioning to newly acquired Supported Living homes in
Roane County. Their staff (caregivers) will be transitioning with them.

As stated above, folir people from Greene Valley will move into this home.

‘This will be a net deérease of five people being served in this given home,
‘but a net four new peop!e wmh dfsabmtfes being served b ¥ Michael Dunn
Center m Roane County : :

ldentify the number and type of beds increased, decreased,
converted, reloceted designated, and/or redistributed by this
application. Describe the reasons for change in bed allocations and
describe the |mpact the bed change will have on the existing
services. : _

Response: ;
This conversion of tms home fo an !CF home will add four add,'nona." ICF

beds in Roane County. This projéct in conjunction with the conversion of
a second home will add a total of eight ICF beds in Roane County. At
completion there will be a total of 16 ICF beds in Roane County. All eight
new beds will be creeted lo support individuals moving out of GVDC.
This project will increase resources for the current individuals both at the
current ICF homes and the individuals supported by MDC as a whole.
The increased staffing - needs will Jprovide individuals with additional
profess:onal resources'and expeirtise. Additional nurses, therapists,
managers and direct support personnel will be added.

. 15



€ A1INIWHDVLLY

29

€ LINIWHDVLLV

LHVHO 39V.L004 JHVNDS ¥3d LSOO ANV 3OV1IO00d JHVNOS

816GV 0 489 [ejol '3
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4S9 |InPnIS/UCKENAIID "d
4Gy |BOL1D3IT
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 /IeSIuByoIsIN "D
" [e101-gng
R .Vm._‘mw 0 L vSLES 8.S¥ 0 8.S¥ 8.SVY 4S9 "vedegaiun 'g
=t
= @
L 1] “
-
D 2
3 <
&0l MmN PejEAOUSY uojeso] uojeoso 4s uoneoon ﬂ
48 As0D obejood ajenbg leuid felodwa) | Bugsixg Bunsixy wswuedaq s uun ﬂv
|eui4 pasodold {eui4 pasodoid pasodold e
o

L# TVLNINITddNS




30

C. As the applicant, describe your need to provide the following health care services (if
applicable to this application)'

Adult Psychlatnc Services

Alcohol and Drug Treatment for Adolescents (exceedlng 28 days)

Birthing Center. ™ M : v

Burn Units

Cardiac Catheterization Services

Child and Adolescent Psychiatric Services

Extracorporeal Lithotripsy

Home Health Services

Hospice Services

10. Residential Hospice
ICF/MR Services -~ - Michael Dunn Center specializes in the support of individuals
with intellectual and developmental disabilities by providing many service areas
including eight existing and occupied ICF/ IDD beds. The families and conservators
for individuals moving out of GVDC are requesting their family membets move only
to ICF beds in the community setting. As of July 18" 2015 GVDC was home to 91
individuals needing community placement. The addition of this home will provide
commun/ty living to four of those individuals whose families have chosen this region
for services.
Michael Dunn Centers’ ICF beds are designed to provide long term residential
supports to individuals with intellectual and developmental disabilities. These
individuals do not have adequate or willing family or conservator supports to reside
with their families or they have chosen this more independent lifestyle. The average
admission length for the existing eight ICF beds at MDC is 13.75 years, with six of
the individuals residing there for 18 years and two of the individuals residing there
approximately one year each:

11. Long-term Care: Services

12. Magnetic Resonance Imaging (MRI)

13. Mental Health Residential Treatment -

14. Neonatal Intensive Care Unit ]

15. Non-Residential Methadone Treatment Centers

16. Open Heart Surgery -'

17. Positron Emission Tomography

18. Radiation Therapy/Linear Accelerator

19. Rehabilitation Services " .

20. Swing Beds " : oL

D. Describe the need to change Ioc:atlon or replace an eXIstlng faC|I|ty
Response:
The existing home i is currently run as a Resrdent/al Habilitation FacrI/ty with ten
bedrooms. There are nine individuals in that home who now require supported living
services in a smaller residential home setting. The'individuals plan to move to their
new home in July 2016. That will leave the large Residential Habilitation home
emply. Renovations will be done to meet ICF regulations and make each bedroom
into a suite to give éach individual both a private sitting area and to provide adequate
residential style storage for medical equipment. This home is located a few blocks
from a main road with easy access to medical care and community activities and
resources needed for those who are medically complex.

OENOA N =
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E. Describe the acquisition of any item of major medical equipment (as defined by the
Agency Rules and.the Statute) which exceeds. a cost of $1.5 million; and/or is a
magnetic resonance imaging (MRI) scanner, positron emission tomography (PET)
scanner, extracorporeal I!thotnpter and/or linear accelerator by responding to the
following: :

1. For fixed-site major medical equipment (not replacing existing equipment):
a. Describe'the new equment including:
1. Total cost (As defined by Agency Rule).
2. Expected useful life;
3. Llst of cllmcal appllcatlons to be provided; and
4, Documentatlon of FDA approval

b‘.: Prowde current and proposed schedules of operatlons
2. For mobile major medical equipment: _ T
a. List all sites that will be served:;

b. Provide current and/or proposed schedule of operations;
c. Provide the Iease or contract cost.
d, Provide the falr market value of the equlpment and
e. Listthe o\uner for the equ:pmenl
3. Indicate appllt.ant’s Iegal mterest in equ1pment (i.e., purchase, lease, etc. )-In

19
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the case of equipment purchase-include a quote and/or proposal from an equipment vendor, or in
the case of an equipment lease provude a draft lease or contract that at least includes the term of
the lease and the anticipated lease payments.

Response: NA- None of section E is applicable. No major medical equipment will be

purchased.

lll. (A) Attach a copy of the plot plan of the S|te on an 8 1/2" x 11" sheet of white paper which must
include: :

1.

2.
3.
4

Size of site (in acres); 2.393 acres

Location of structure on the sité; and

Location of the proposed construction. NA

Names of streets, roads or highway that cross or border the site. Clymersville Road

Please note that the drawings do not need to be drawn to scale. Plot plans are
required for all pro_;ects (See Attachment 9)

(B) 1. Describe the relationship of the site to public transportation routes, if any, and to any

highway or major road developments in the area. Describe the accessibility of the
proposed site to patlents/cllents v -
Response: ETHRA is:the only public fransportation available in Rockwood MDC will

provide all needed and wanted transportation. There are no major road developments
in the area. The clients will res1de in this residential settlng WhICh is about 3 blocks
from a four lane road

Service Clo'qest' = Driving” : Driving Time
Location Distance
Nearest Rockwood .7 miles 2 minutes
Incorporated =
City TN Gov. Office
Hospital 1 8045 Roane = | 9.75 miles 15 minutes
' Medical Gtr.
Drlv_e, Harriman,
TN #
Physician Roarie County 9.75 miles 15 minutes
Offices Family Practice
EMS/Fire | 111.N.Front | 1.16 miles 3 minutes y
Station | street; 725 &+
Rockwood ™

20
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Day NA NA NA
Treatment (if
applicable) . Lo

Green Valley i T117.59 miles | 1 hr; 58 minutes
Development
Center

N
V. Attach a floor plan drawing for the:facility which includes legible labeling of patient care
rooms (noting private or semi-private), ancillary areas, equipment areas, etc. onan 8 1/2" x
11" sheet of white paper. *
NOTE: DO NOT SUBMIT BLUEPRINTS. Simple line drawings should be submitted and
need not be drawn to scale. (See Attachment 10)
V.  ForaHome Health Agency or Hospice, identify: NA
1. Existing service area by Q’k__:[mty;
Proposed service area by County;
A parent or primary seivice provider; & ok

Existing branches; and

QO A~ pN

Proposed branches.

s
i

SECTION C: GENERAL CRITERI:F\ FOR CERTIFICATE OF NEED

In accordance with Tennessee Code Annotated § 68-11-1609(b), “no Certificate of Need shall be
granted unless the action proposed in the application for such Certificate is necessary to provide
needed health care in the area to be served, can be economically accomplished and maintained,
.and will contribute to the orderly development of health care.” The three (3) criteria are further
defined in Agency Rule 0720-4-.01. Further standards for guidance are provided in the state
health plan (Guidelines for Growth), developed pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated §68-11-

1625. :

The following questions are listed according to the three (3) criteria: (I) Need, (Il) Economic
Feasibility, and (Ill) Contribution to. the Orderly Development of Health Care. Please respond o
each question and provide underlying assumptions, data sources, and methodologies when
appropriate. Please type each question and its response on an 8 1/2" x 11" white paper. All
“exhibits and tables must be attached to the end of the application in correct sequence identifying
the question(s) to which they refer. If a quéstibn does not apply to your project, indicate. “Not
Applicable (NA)." N g ’ v o &
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QUESTIONS

NEED

1. Describe the relationship of thl‘% proposél toward the implementation of the State Health Plan
and Tennessee's Health: Guidelines for Growth. . X N

a. Please provide a resbgj')l'ﬁse;-" to each criterion and standard in Certificate of Need
Categories that are applicable to the proposed project. Do not provide responses to
General Criteria and Standards (pages 6-9) here.

b.  Applications that include a Change of Site for a health care institution, provide a
response to General Criterion and Standards (4)(a-c)

Response:
The purpose of the State He‘alth Plan is to improve the health of Tennesseans

The new home will support this principle by the high quahty health care already provided by
Michael Dunn Center. Mrchae! Dunn has tracking systems in place to ensure the residents have
medical care both on an “as’ needed" basis as well as by following CMS recommendations.

These systems will be carried over from the existing homes to the new home. The individuals
will have access to all of their healthcare needs, including mental health. They will have both
planned and spontaneous actrwt:es to enjoy their new community and they will be given the
opportunity to work either through Michael Dunn Center or in the commumt_v Michae! Dunn
Center will ensure that the individuals have all needs met financially, as this is a requirement of
the program. Michael Dunn Center will also oversee that the individuals have the apprqpnafe
amount of money available for fun acﬂwfres or desired items for purchase. :

Michael Dunn Center part;cz}:\ates in the Drug Free Workplace program and requires drug
screens upon hire, post-accident, upon suspicion and randomly. Michael Dunn Center does not
allow smoking or tobacco pFoducts belonging to the staff near the individuals. If supported
individuals smoke or use tobacco, conversations about supporting them to stop are held at least
annually in a Circle of Suppod meeting. :Michael Dunn Center also employs dieticians who work
with individuals and employees to write appropr/ate and health menus specific to the needs and
desires of the individuals.

Every citizen should have réasonable access to health care.

Every individual at Michael Dunn Center has healthcare on an as needed basis as well as on a
preventative schedule. -Michagél Dunn Center ensures insurance coverage for healthcare needs
and for individuals receiving ICF services, Michael Dunn Center is responsible for the remaining
cost of those services. Transportation isprovided to all appointments and issues needing further
care are addressed. Dental visits are: typically every three. months for people supported-at
Michael Dunn Center versus every six months for individuals without developmental disabilities.
This is due to dental health issues related to oral hygiene challenges and medications.
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The State’s health care vfg___s"burc‘:es “should be developed to address the needs of
Tennesseans while encouraging competitive markets, economic efficiencies, and the
continued development of the State’s health care system.

Providing supports in an lCE-_!facility is cost effective at Michael Dunn Center due lo concise
staffing, preventative healthcare, and management over site of the utilization of resources and in
this case the use of a home that was previously but recently remodeled eliminating the need to
build a new structure. Ongoing cost efficiency will result from preventative, healthcare,
preservation of mobility through therapies, and building and vehicle maintenance performed by
Michael Dunn Center employees. '

Every citizen should have_"‘t:»confidence that the quality of health care is continually
monitored and standards are adhered to by health care providers.

Michael Dunn Center employs a Quality Assurance Department who oversees the overall quality
of care. Quality based surveys afe conducted at MDC at least two times per year from DIDD.
Michael Dunn Center works closely with DIDD to improve in areas ideritified as placing the
individuals at risk. There is d:Quality Improvement Plan that is updated and maintained in an
ongoing basis. There are nurses who gather information related to falls, medication variances,
choking, skin breakdown aid infection control and provide education where needed to
constantly improve the qualily: of healthcare. Unannounced director level and above site
inspections are completed al' a minimum of one per person supported per year. Managers
complete monthly house inspections. < - . = .

The state should support the Heve!opmebt, recruitment, and retention of a sufficient and
quality health care workforce. LR

Michael:Dunn Center utilizes licensed and unlicensed personnel to provide cohesive care to the
individuals supported. We offer ongoing employee training and flexible schedules to allow
employees the time to return to school if so desired. Michael Dunn Center is a clinical site for
practical nursing students from Tennessee College of Applied Technology in Harriman, TN.

ICFIMR Specific Questions

1. The population based estimate of the total need for ICF/IID facilities is .32 % of the
general population. This estimate is based on the estimate for all ID of 1%. Ofthe 1%
estimate 3.2 of those' are estimated to meet level 1 criteria and be appropriate for
ICF/IID services. (This information is from the Tennessee'’s Health: Guidelines for

Growth) :

Response: The popd?éfion: of Roane County, TN in 2013 was reported as 53,047.
There are currently 8 iCF/ MR beds in the county that are in use. There are 4 beds
with an approved CON pending _lice'jnsure and admissions. Using the need based
estimate of 0.32 %, tho need in Roane County is 16.9 beds. :

2. The estimate for total need should be adjusted by the existent ICF-MR beds operating
in the area as counted by the Departmient of Health, the Department of Mental Health
"- m i ) . -
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and Developmental Disabilities, and the Division of Mental Retardation Services in the
Joint Annual Repoﬂs

Response: The total g'st;mated need minus the existing 8 beds and 4 pending beds
leaves a need of 4.9 beds in Roane County.

Describe the relationship of th|s pro;ect to the applicant facility’s Iong -range development
plans, if any. b

Response: This project is consrstent wn‘h our agency Strategic Plan to -expand ‘servicés to
support more people with disabilities in:the Roane County area. Opening a new ICF / IID
home will allow us to support 4 people with the need for ICF / IiD services.

Identify the proposed service:area and justify the reasonableness of that proposed area.
Submit a county level map mc!udlng the State of Tennessee clearly marked to reflect the
service area. Please submit the map on 8 1/2” x 11” sheet of white paper marked only
with ink detectable by a standard photocopier (i.e., no highlighters, pencils, etc.).
Response: The proposed service:area is.in Roane County, TN. Michael Dunn Center's main
office is located in Kinston, TN, .which is the county seat. Michael Dunn Center currently
operates two ICF / lID homes ifi'Roane County, therefore it is our desire to locate the new ICF
/11D homes in the same area tc ensure continuity of care, efficient management of the home,
proximity of support staff, and better access to agency resources, etc. (See Attachment 11)

A. Describe the demographic% of the pépulatlon to be served by this proposal.
Response: The age range for the men and women with deve!opmenta! disabilities who need
ICF / IID services range from 18 = 70 years old. These services are accessible to all who

need and qualify for services, including women, minorities and low-income groups.
' \
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Describe the special néeds of the service area population, including health disparities,
the accessibility to comsumers, particularly the elderly, women, racial and ethnic
minorities, and low-income groups. Document how the business plans of the facility will
take into consideration the special needs of the service area population.

Variable ' “Roane County .| Tehnessee

Current Year (2015),

Age 65+ i

12,293 1,051,862

Projected Year

(2019), Age 65+ g . oL
_ | 14,001 1,219,696

Age 65+, % Change | 13.9% 16%

Age 65+, % Total | 22.2% 15.6%

(2015)

2015, Total 55,411 . 6,735,706

Population : :

2019, Total .~ | 56,152 7,035,572

Population '

Total Pop. % Change | 1.3% 4.5%

TennCare Enrollees | 11,502 1,447,657

TennCare Enro[leés ol
asa %of Total .

Population - [20.75% 21.5%
Median Age 45.4 37.2 ) \ 5
Median Household
Income b
' $42,223 $44,298

Population % Below . |
Poverty Level |

15% 17.6%

Response: There are individuals currently living at Greene Valley Developmental Center
who need ICF / IID services in the community. These individuals are in the age range of
18 - 70 years old, have developmental disabilities and complex medical needs, which
include tracheotomy care,_ tube feeding, oxygen administration, insulin injections,
medication admim'straﬁoh and daily medical assessments. Michael Dunn Center
provides services to all individuals, including women, ethnic minorities and low-income
groups.
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5. Describe the existing or certified services, including approved but unimplemented CONSs, of
similar institutions in the service area. Include utilization and/or occupancy trends for each of
the most recent three years of data available for this type of project. Be certain to list each
institution and its utilization and/or occupancy individually. Inpatient bed projects must include
the following data: admissiong or discharges, patient days, and occupancy. Other projects
should use the mostapproprlate measures e.g., cases, procedures visits, admlssmns etc.

Response: Michael Dunn Cenfer currently operates two ICF /1ID homes in the Roane County
area. In addition to the two ICF /11D homes, MDC is licensed through the State of
Tennessee’s Department of Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities to provide Residential
Habilitation, Supported Living, Medical Residential, Community Based, Day, Facility Based
Day, Employment, Physical Therapy, Occupational Therapy, Speech Therapy and Nulrition
services.

N\ iy

6. Provide applicable utilization'and/or occupancy statistics for your institution for each of the
past three (3) years and the projected annual utilization for each of the two (2) years following
completion of the project. Additionally, provide the details regarding the methodology used to
project utilization. The methédology must include detailed calculations or documentation
from referral sources, and ideftification of all assumptions.

Response: e

Caillouette Home- occupafﬁicv 4- This home has operated at full capacity for most of the
time it has been open since 1996. We have had two vacancies over the last year, both of
which were filled within a month of rhe vacancy.

Herron Home- occupancy 4 This home has operated af full capacity since opening in
1996.

The new ICF / lID home is.projected to be available for 4 people for the foreseeable future.
If someone in the home maves to another location or passes away, we will contact DIDD
for referra!s for other mdrwduais who are in need of ICF / HD services.

ICF/ MR Facilities Specmc |
A. Service Area
1. The geographic servuce area should be reasonable and based on an optlmal
balance between populatlon densnty and service proximity.

Roane County, Tennessee is 395 square miles. With a 2013 population of 53, 047, the
population density is 1: 34 3 peop!e per square mile. The mean population density in
the United States is 357 peopfe per square mile. Roane County has a major interstate
passing through it, making Knoxwlle easily accessible. The geographic area offers a
Covenant:-Health HOSpa'fdl Roané Medical Center, within 5 miles. Specially physicians
are available in nearby;_, **rtres_ such as Knoxville and Oak Ridge, TN.

2. The relationship of the socto-demographws of the service area and the project
population to receive services should be considered. The proposal’s sensitivity

and responsiveness to- the: spemals needs of the service area should be
1 26 -
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considered mcludlng accessublllty to consumers, particularly women, racial and
ethnic minorities; Iow lncome groups and those needing services involuntarily.

Please see the attached two pages from -
http://quickfacts.census.gov/gfd/states/47/47145.html with all demographic /nformatlon
for Roane County. This project involves the conversion of an existing, licensed
Residential Habmtatron home that will create 4 new ICF/IID beds in Roane County.
There are individuals curren fly ﬂwng at Greene Vaﬂey Developmental Center who
need ICF / IID services.in the community. These lnd.'wduals have developmental
disabilities and complex medical needs which include tracheotomy care, tube feeding,
oxygen administration, insulin mjectlons medication administration and daily medical
assessments. The age range for the men and women with developmental disabilities

~w. who need ICF / 1ID services range from 18 — 70 years old. These services are

accessible to all who need and qualify for services, including women, ethnic
minorities, Iow-lncome groups and those needing services voluntarily. A

B. Relatlonshlp to EXIstmg Appllcable Plans

1.

The proposal’s relatlonshlp to policy as formulated in state, city, county, and/or
regional plans and other documents should be a significant consideration:
Michael Dunn Center’sproposal for this ICF home includes operating within the

' policies of DIDD, TennCare and Department of Health.

The proposal’s relatlonshlp to underserved geographic areas and underserved
populations groups ag identified in state, clty, county, and/or regional plans and
other documents should be a sngmﬂcant consideration.

DIDD has a statewide waiting list of more than seven thousand people awaiting
placement. These addft:onal beds will remain in place in the event someone being
admitted from GVDC passes away. Thls will provide an oppon‘unlty to serve additional
people from the waiting list."

The impact of the proposal on similar services supported by state and federal
appropriations should be assessed and considered.

There are currently eight ICF beds in Roane County operated by MDC. AII of these
beds are occupied. New!y vacant beds have been filled within 60 days. Tf?B four
additional beds will not impact these ICF homes. The next closest homes are in”
Knoxville and Chattanooga, TN, greater than 40 miles away. The new home in the
proposal will not impacft the existing ICF beds.

The degree of project"éd financial participation in the Medicare and TennCare
programs should be considered.

Hope Haven Irnic. will prowde the funding for the rénovations for this proposal. Affer the
completion of the project, TennCare will remit payment to Michael Dunn Center for
provisions provided to the individuals residing in the home.

Relationship to Emstlng Similar Services in the Area

1. The area’s trends in occupancy and utilization of similar services should be

considered.
27
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There are currentlj; eight ICF beds in Roane County operated by MDC. Al of these
beds are occupied. Newly vacant beds have been secured within 30 days and
filled within 60 da ys There have only been two open ICF beds in Roane County in
18 years.

2. Accessibility to speciflc special need groups should be an important factor.
Roane County Famffy Practice physicians see a majority of the individuals with
developmental d/sabmtfes at MDC. One of these physicians is on the board of
directors at MDC. ?he hospital administrator from Roane Medical Center, the local
hospital, is also on,the board of directors at MDC. MDC employs a therapy
department conststmg of a PT PTA, OT, SLP, and two dieticians. MDC also
employs nursing staff and contracts with behavioral analysts as needed,

-
s

ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY : ;
1. Provide the cost of the pro;ect by completmg the Pro;ect Costs Chart on the followmg page
Justify the cost of the pro;ect g

+ Al projects should have a prOJect cost of at least $3,000 on Line F. (Mmlmum CON

Filing Fee). CON filing fee should be calculated from Line D. (See Application
Instructions for Flllng Fee)

28



41

The cost of any lease (building, land, and/or equipment) should be based on\fair
market value or the total amount of the lease payments over the initial term of the
lease, whichever is greater. Note: This applies to all equipment leases including by
procedure or per click” arrangements. The methodology used to determine the total
lease cost for a "per click" arrangement must include, at a minimum, the projected
procedures, the "per chck" rate and the term of the lease.. .

The cost for fixed and moveabie equnpment mcludes but is not necessarily limited to,
maintenance agreements covermg the expected useful life of the equipment; federal,
state, and local taxes and other government assessments; and installation charges,
excluding capital expenditures for physical plant renovation or in-wall shielding, which
should be included under constructlon costs or incorporated in a facility lease.

For projects that include new construction, modification, and/or renovation;
documentation must be provnded from-a contractor and/or architect that support the
estimated construction costs. :
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Project Cost Chart

A. Construction and equipment acquired by purchase:
1; Architectural and Engineering Fees

2. Legal, Administrative (Excluding CON Filing Fee),
Consultant Fees

Acquisition of Site

Preparation of Site

Construction Costs

Contingency Fund

Fixed Equipment (Not included in Construction Contract)
Moveable Equipment (List all equipment over $50,000) -
Other (Specify)

On EC N =R EDE = e

_ B.  Acquisition by gift, donation, or lease:
Facility (inclusive of building and land)
Building only

Land only
Equipment (Specify)
Other (Specify)

S BhB N E

C. Financing Costs and Fees:
Interim Financing
Underwriting Costs

Reserve for One Year's Debt Service

Other (Specify)

D. Estimated Project Cost
(A+B+C)

E. Filing Fee

F. Total Estimated
Project Cost

} (D+E)
|
|

ATTACHMENT 8

SUPPLEMENTAL #1

February 12, 2016
11:15 am

L
g
()
s
L1l
IL.

$10,000.00

$144,400.00

$168,104.00 (Attach. 13)

$1,260,000.00

$1,582,504.00

$3560.63

$1.586.064.63
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Project Cost Chart

A.8. Movable Equipment

Toyota Lift Van - 59',{'544'.'0'0
Toyota Lift Van 59,544.00
Toyota Camry 24,508.00
Toyota Camry 24,508.00
Total 168, 104.00

SECTION C, ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY, PROJECT COST CHART
e

ATTACHMENT 13
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2. Identify the funding sources for this project.

Please check the applicable item(s) below and briefly summarize how the project will be
financed. (Documentation for.the type of funding MUST be inserted at the end of the
application, in the correct a!pha/numenc order and identified as Attachment C,

Economic Feasibility-2.)
oL

__ A. Commercial loan--Letter from Iending institution or guarantor stating favorable initial
contact, proposed loan amount, expected interest rates, anticipated term of the loan,
and any restrictions or conditions;

__ B. Tax-exempt bonds--Copy of preliminary resolution or a letter from the issuing authority
stating favorable ifitial’ ‘contact’ and a conditional agreement from an underwriter or
* investment banker to proceed with the issuance;

__ C. General Obligation bonds—:-__:\(,opy of resolution from issuing authority or minutes frorn the
appropriate meeting.

D. Grants--Notification of intent form for arant application or notice of grant award; or

X E. Cash Reserves-—Approprlate documentatlon from Chlef Flnancral Officer. (See Attached
Financial Audit : P e S e ] _

F. Other——ldentify and doctrrne_.ht fundihg 'from all other sources.
A

3. Discuss and document the reasonableness of the proposed project costs. If applicable,
compare the cost per square foot of construction to srmllar pro;ects recently approved by the
Health Services and Development Agency

4. Complete Historical and:Projected Data:Charts on the followmg two pages--Do_not modify
the Charts provided or _submit Chart_substitutions! Historical Data Chart represents
revenue and expense information for the last three (3) years for which complete data is
available for the institution. Projected Data Chart requests information for the two (2) years
following the completion of this proposal. Projected Data Chart should reflect revenue and
expense projections for the Proposal Only (i.e., if the application is for additional beds,
include anticipated revenue from the proposed beds only, not from all beds in the facility).

5. Please identify the projects’. average gross charge aver‘age deduction from operating

revenue, and average net charge

Gross Charges- $ 1,155,000
Deductions from Revenue $ 0.00
Net Charges $ __1.155,000
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SUPPLEMENTAL #1
February, 12, 2016
11:15 amJ'

HISTORICAL DATA CHART VX
Give information for the last three (3) years for which complete data are available for the faci[i}_}‘/ or

agency. The fiscal year begins in July (Month).

A. Utilization Data (Specify unit of measure)
Revenue from Services to Patients

1. Inpatient Services
Outpatient Services

2

3. Emergency Services

4.  Other Operating Revenue
(Specify)

Gross Operating Revenue
6. Deductions from Gross Operating Revenue

1. Contractual Adjustments
2. Provision for Charity Care
3. Provisions for Bad Debt

Total Deductions

NET OPERATING REVENUE
D. Operating Expenses

1. Salaries and Wages
Physician's Salaries and Wages
Supplies

Taxes

Depreciation

Rent

Interest, other than Capital
8. Management Fees:

N oo~ LN

a. Fees to Affiliates
b. Fees to Non-Affiliates
9. Other Expenses (Specify) Occupancy, Travel, Misc.

Total Operating Expenses
E. Other Revenue (Expenses) — Net (Specify)

NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
7. Capital Expenditures

1. Retirement of Principal
- 2. Interest
Total Capital Expenditures

NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
LESS CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

ATTACHMENT 1

‘Year2012  Year 2013 Year 2014
29618 30,962 30,862
$7.595.000 $7.931.000  $8.635,000
$3.117.000 $3.100,000 $2.860,000

0 0 0
$316,000 _$262,000  $104.000
$11,028,000 $11,293,000 $11,599,000
$ 0o $ 0 $ 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
$ 0o $ 0o $ 0
$11,028,000 $11,293,000 $11,599,000
$8.296,000 $8,680,000 $9,514.000
0 0 0
$583.000  $478.000  $497.000
0 0 0
$ 97.000 _$ 91,000 $75,000
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
— 0 0
$1,844,000 $1,933,000 §$7,854,000
$10,820.000 $11,182,000 $17,940,000
$ 0 $ 0 $ 0
$_ 208,000  $111,000  $(341,000)
$ $ 0 $ 0
$ $ 0 8 0
$ 0 $ 0 $ 0
$ 208,000  $ 111,000  $(341,000)
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PROJECTED DATA CHART
Give information for the two (2) years following the completion of this proposal. The fiscal year begins in July
(Month).

Year 2017 Year 2018
A. Utilization Data (Specify unit of measure) 1460 days 1460 days
B. Revenue from Services to Patients
1. Inpatient Services $1,155,386.00 $1,046,704.0
2. Outpatient Services 0 0
3. Emergency Services 0 0
4. Other Operating Revenue (Specify) 0 0

Gross Operating Revenue $1,155,386.00 $1,046,704.00

C. Deductions from Gross Operating Revenue

1. Contractual Adjustments $ 0 $ 0
2. Provision for Charity Care 0 0
3. Provisions for Bad Debt 0-- 0---
Total Deductions $ 0 $ 0
NET OPERATING REVENUE $ 0 $ 0

8. Operating Expenses

1. Salaries and Wages $702,751.00

$688,971.00

2. Physician's Salaries and Wages 0 0
3. Supplies $138,934.00 $ 32,640.00
4. Taxes $65,399.00 $59,247.00
5. Depreciation $42,026.00 $42,026.00
6. Rent $42.000.00 $42,000.00
7. Interest, other than Capital 0 0
8. Management Fees:
a. Fees to Affiliates 0 0
b. Fees to Non-Affiliates 0 0
9. Other Expenses (Specify) Occupancy, fravel, admin. $178,056.00 $168,040.00
Total Operating Expenses $1,155,386.00 $1,046,704.00

E. Other Revenue (Expenses) -- Net (Specify) $ 0 $ 0
NET OPERATING INCOME (LLOSS) $ 0 $ 0
F. Capital Expenditures
1. Retirement of Principal $ 0 $ 0
2. Interest 0
Total Capital Expenditures $ 0 $ 0
NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
LESS CAPITAL EXPENDITURES’ $ 0 $ 0

ATTACHMENT 12
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PROJECTED DATA CHART-OTHER EXPENSES- 32 A
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]
Lo
L),

D.9 OTHER EXPENSES CATEGORIES

Year 10 Yeap 72" 06w

1. Prof Fees T BET 2380 T T 15 Uy

- 2. Telephone 3,470 4.49,539;
3. Occupancy i s e W TV 20291

s Tragelslre hrieh 20,550 20,550

5 Insurance:;- - SR S P T o

6. Depreciation . S BTEN T R BT 6k

7. Miscellaneous 02000 2,000

8. Administrative o 127,439 116,080

Total Other Expenses $ 178,056 $_ 168,040

HISTORICAL DATA CHART-OTHER EXPENSES- 33 A

D.9 OTHER EXPENSES CATEGORIES Year_ 2012 Year 2013 Year 2014
1. Professional Fees $582.780 $569.792 $554,046
2. Telephone 77.197 65.192 62,827
3. Postage & Shipping ___ 8510 6.328 8.864
4. Occupancy 2341989 336.694 322,911
5.  Equipment Rental & Maint 17.868 24,849 16,103
6. Printing & Publications 15,855 15,838 3,610
7. Travel, Conf & Meetings 534,737 583,646 606,869
8. Insurance 53,041 56,311 02,840
9. Miscellaneous 212318 274,339 215,782
Total Other Expenses $1.844295  $1,932.989  $1,853,852

ATTACHMENT 13
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A. Please provide the current and proposed charge schedules for the proposal. Discuss any
adjustment to current charges that will result from the implementation of the proposal.
Additionally, describe the antrcrpated revenue from the proposed project and the impact
on existing patlent charges
Response: This will be a new ICF facility with new charges that will not affect current
charges. The anticipated revenue will be $1,155,000 per year for the first year. This
will not impact existing patient charges.

B. Compare the proposed charges to those of similar facilities in the service arealadjoining
service areas, or to proposed charges of projects recently approved by the Health
Services and Development Agency. If applicable, compare the proposed charges of the
project to the current Medicare allowable fee schedule by common procedure
terminology (CPT) code(s) I
Response: The proposed charges will be srmllar to charges of other ICF home in the
counly. The first year charges will be higher due to certain startup cost for furniture and
supplies.

Discuss how projected utllrzatlon rates will be sufficient to maintain cost-effectiveness. -
Response: We expect project utilization to be c.’ose to 1 OO% and sufficient to maintain cost-
effectiveness

Discuss how financial viability will be' erisured within two years; and demonstrate the
availability of sufficient cash flow until financial viability is achieved:

Response: Please see attached. (Altachments 6,7 &8) audits of Michael Dunn Center and
Michael Dunn Foundation. The Boards of both corporations have committed all needed
resources to fund this pro;ect '

Discuss the pro;ect’s partrmpatlon in: state and federal revenue programs lncIudmg a
description of the extent to which Medlcare TennCare/Medicaid, and medically mdlgent
patients will be served by the project..In addition, report the estimated dollar amount of
revenue and percentage of total project revenue anticipated from each of TennCare,
Medicare, or other state and federal sources for the proposal's first year of operation.
Response; This project will serve individuals currently being served by TennCare/Medicaid
at Greene Valley. The flrst year annual revenue WI|| be $1 155,000 coming 100% from
TennCare/Medicaid £ ST P :

Provide copies of the balance sheet and income statement from the most recent reporting
period of the institution and the most recent audited financial statements with accompanying
notes, if applicable. For new projects, provide financial information for the corporation,
partnership, or principal partres involved with the project. Copies ‘must be inserted at the end
of the application, in the correct alpha numeric order and labeled as Attachment C,

Economic Feasibility-10.
Response: Please see az‘r‘ached audn‘s ano’ fmancral reports for June 2015. (Attachments

6,7&8)

Describe all alternatives to this project which were considered and discuss the advantages
and disadvantages of each alternative including but not limited to:
34
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a. A discussion regarding the availability of less costly, more effective, and/or more efficient
alternative methods of providing the benefits intended by the proposal. If development of
such alternatives is not practicable, the applicant should justify why not; including
reasons as to why they were: re;ecled
Response: We discussed a!temahves fo an ICF facility but the alternatives did not
provide the level of care:as the individual had been receiving a Greene Valley and the
level of nursing care that is needed to support these individuals.

b. The applicant should document that consideration has been given to alternatives to new
construction, e.g., modertization or. sharing arrangements. It should be documented that
superior alternatives have been |mplemented to the maximum extent practicable.
Response: Michael Dunn Center, has been working closely with the State of Tennessee
Department of Intellectual and’. Developmental Disabilities (DIDD) in providing
Intermediate Care Facilities (ICFs) for people that are moving out of the Greene Valley
Developmental Center (GVDC). This facility is scheduled fo be closed By Jun&g 30,
2016, in accordance with an agreement reached with the part/es involved and approved

by a federal judge.

We have a large, ten-person Res;dentlal Habilitation group home located in Rockwood,
Tennessee, called Hope Haven Il (HH2). There are nine people living in this home who
have increasing needs due to the natural aging process. The nine people currently living
there are being transitioned fo three person Supported Living homes in Roane County

prior to the renovation of Hope Haven II. .
Our plan is to convert HH2 into an ICF for four Greene Valley reS/dents HH2 will need a

new sprinkler system, a basic requirement for an ICF, but already has many of the other
features needed for an ICF home. Additionally, HH2is also designed so that each of the
four new residents will have a suite consisting of their own private bedroom, sitting/TV
room, and will only need to share a bathroom with one other housemate. There is also a
newly remodeled common, kitchen, dining room,’ living room and laundry room.

Constructing a home of th;s size (344 1- sq ft) at a very conservative cost of $125/sq ft
would equal $543,750. The cost to install a sprinkler system for a home this size is
approximately $129,400. In addition the lot is 2.393 acres with an approximate value of
$54,300 ($23,000/acre plys $8,300 for the fencing), making the new construction and lot
costs of the entire home approx:mate!y $727,450. Thus it makes sense to coqvert this
existing structure to an ICF as opposed to bu:ld a new home

. CONTRIBUTION TO THE ORDERLY DEVELOPMENT OF HEALTH CARE

1. List all existing health care provuders (e.g., hospitals, nursing homes, home care
organizations, etc.), managed:care organizations, alliances, and/or networks with which the
applicant currently has or plans to have contractual and/or working relationships, e.g., transfer
agreements, contractual agreements for health services.

Response: Michael Dunn Center has a workmg relationship with all of the following providers:
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Hospitals-

Roane Medical Center

Methodist Medical Center

Park West Medical Center
University of Tennessee Medical Center

Nursing Homes-

The Bridge at Rockwood
Renaissance Terrace
Harriman Care and Rehab

Physicians-

N =

©OND O AW

Dr. James Lynch- Neurologlst and Medical Director at MDC-

Roane County Family Pract/ce- Dr John Belitz, Dr. Robert Wilson, Dr. Rodney McMlllan, Dr.
Randy Denton

Dr. Robert Albiston- Psycho.’ogy

Dr. Terry Bingham- Surgeon -

Dr. Boduch- General Practice ) o 4
Dr. Dudani- Psychiatry

Dr. Paul Tappen- Optometry.*

Dr. Mimi Tedder- General Practice

Dr. Wakham-General Pract/ce

1 0 Dr. Gornisiewwicz- Neuroloqy
11. Dr. Chemeitelli-Pulmonary .
12. Dr. Edenfield- Dental

13. Dr. Misha Garey- Dental

2. Describe the positive and/or negative effects' of the proposal on the health care system.
Please be sure to discuss any instances of duplication or competition arising from your
proposal including a description of the effect the proposal will:have on the utilization rates of
existing providers in the service area of the pro;ect ;

Response: The renovation and conversion of this home will add an additional four beds for
the provision of services for four individuals moving from GVDC. This home is already
established in the community.as an MDC home. The home provides a residential service
that is close to the personal residence of many of the families and conservators. The homes
are close to emergency medfcal services prowdmg a safe medical selting for the individuals
planning to move into them. :

The homes will increase the need for nursmg and management employees, thusbringirig
more experience and knowledge into a f/e/d with I/m/ted resources. This also allows for more
Job opportunities in a rural area.

Finding the right PCP, who is acceptlng new patients, will be a challenge, but is one that can
be overcome and the needs of the individuals met.
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3. Provide the current and/or anticipated staffing pattern for all employees providing patient care
for the project. This can be reported using FTEs for these positions. Additionally, please
compare the clinical staff salaries in the proposal to prevailing wage patterns in the service
area as published by the Tennessee Department of Labor & Workforce Development and/or
other documented sources.
Response: The anticipated staffing pattern will be 4.4 FTE hours for LPN staff, 9.8 FTE
hours for Direct Support Professionals; 1.5 FTE hours for managerial employees. The
starting salary for a day shift LPN at Michael Dunn Center is $14.50/ hour. Wage
adjustments are made for eXper.rence fo a maximum base salary of $17.00/hour for a staff
nurse. Shift Differentials are given for evening shift ($1.00/hr), night shift and weekend shift
($2.00/hour). Direct Support Professionals will earn a minimum starting salary of $7.45/
hour on day shift up to $9.00 depending on shift and experience. These wages fall within
the average range noted on the attached report from the Tennessee Department of Labor &
Workforce Development website.

Proposed TN Dept. Workforce
(FTE) Development prevailing
: wages (Per Hour)

Resident Manager . i SFTE | $23.77

Qualified MR Professmnal AR = 5FTE | $18.13:

RN _ P 33FTE | $21.72

LPN '-j.- 4.4FTE | $16.78 N L

Direct Support Workers 9.8FTE | $8.77

Physical Therapist " .04FTE | $36.08

Occupational Therapist  : ; .04FTE | $35.03

Speech Therapist 5 .04FTE | $31.30

‘Housekeeping Malntenance and JFTE | $10.00

Grounds L T :

Other  Central Offlce Support i 1.0FTE | $18.54-

Personnel -

Total ' 18.8FTE | $220.12

4, Discuss the availability of and accessibility to human resources required by the proposal,

including adequate professional staff, as per the Department of Health, the Department of
Mental Health and Developmental- Dlsabllltles and!or the Division of Mental Retardation
Services licensing requirements. -~

Response: Michael Dunn Center actively. recrun‘s LPN and Direct support professionals via
internet networking, local newspapers advertisements and face to face contact with
graduating LPN and CNA classes: Operni positions are reviewed weekly and open shifts are
filled with part time employees or full time employees working overtime. The home will have a
staffing plan describing the basic evacuation capabilities of the individuals as well as the -
minimum and usua/ number of emp!oyees to be present in the home at any one t:rqe

LEor

. Verify that the applicant has rewewed and understands all licensing certification as required
by the State of Tennessee' for medical/clinical staff. These include, without limitation,
regulations concerning physlé!an supervision, credentialing, admission privileges, quality
assurance policies and programs, utilization review policies and programs, record keeping,

and staff education.
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Response: Michael Dunn Center follows the Professional Support Services License (PSSL)
requirements and has the regulations built in to the MDC policies, procedure and smployee
handbook. Employees are edurated upon hlre as needed and annually via Relias online
training and by qualified /nstructors

Discuss your health care institution’s participation in the training of students in the areas of
medicine, nursing, social work, etc. (e.g., internships, residencies, etc.).

Response: MDC has a contract to act as a training site for the practical nursing at Tennessee
College of Applied Technology in Harriman, TN. Students visit assigned medical residential
and ICF homes and work with;an MDC LPN employee. The MDC Director of Health Services
is on the Nursing Program Adwsory Board at Tennessee College of Applied Technology.

. (a) Please verify, as applid%t‘)ie, that the applicant has reviewed and understands the
licensure requirements ‘of the Department of Health, the Department of Mental Health
and Developmental Dlsabllltles the Division of Mental Retardation Services, and/or any

applicable Medicare requirements:
Response: Michael Dunn Center has been in contact with the Departmenf of Health and

Safety for guidance on aﬂ safety regulation requirements. The home will be licensed
under the Department of Intellectual &nd Developmental Disabilities. The ICF
regulations, commonly referred to ‘as Appendix J, is a working tool at MDC with-its™
policies and regulations.built into IVIDC's policies, procedures and employee handbook.

(b) Provide the name of the entity from which the apphcant has received or will receive
licensure, certifi catlon andior accreditation.

Licensure: Licensure: Department of. Inte/lectual and Developmental Dlsablllt/es (will be
obtained for this specific location) and Professronal Service Suppon‘ License (current for
the entire MDC agency) -
Accreditation: NA

(c) If an existing lnstltutlon please describe the current standing wnth any licensing,
certifying, or accredltlng agency. Provide a copy of the current license of the facility.
Response: MDC current-'y holds a PSSL, two ICF licenses for existing homes and a
license for Mental Retardation Resrdent;a! Habilitation. MDC will apply to change the
license for this address to Mental Retardation Institutional Habilitation. (See Attachment
14)

(d) For existing licensed provnders document that all deficiencies (if any) cited in the last
licensure certification aqd inspection have been addressed through an approved plan of
correction. Please include a copy of the most recent licensure/certification inspection

with an approved plan oj,f correctio'n. (Se’e Attachment 15) ; ) v -

. Document and explain any flnal orders or-judgments entered in any state or country by a
licensing agency or court agamst professional licenses held by the applicant or any entities or
persons with more than a 5%.ownership interest in the applicant. Such information is to be
provided for licenses regardless of whether such license is currently held.
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Response: #8- There are no f;na! orders or judgments agams! Michael Dunn Center, Michael
Dunn Foundation, Hope Haven Corporation, or any entity within. There are no other entities with
more than 5% interest in this project.
3 _ « -
Identify and explain any final civil or criminal judgments for fraud or theft against any person
or entity with more than a 5% ownership interest in the project
Response: #9- There are no c:fw! or criminal judgments for fraud or theft against Michael Dunn
Center, Michael Dunn Foundat:on Hope: Haven Corporation, or any entity within. There are no
other entities with more than 5% interest in this project. '
If the proposal is approved, please discuss whether the applicant will provide the Tennessee
Health Services and Development Agency and/or the reviewing agency information
concerning the number of patlents treated the number and type of procedures performed,
and other data as required. - "
Response: If approved, Michael Dunn Center will supply THSDA and any other approved
agency with the requested /nformatlon
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'PROOF OF PUBLICATION

Attach the full page of the newspaper in:which the notice of intent appeared with the mast
and dateline intact or submit a publication affidavit from the newspaper as proof of the
publication of the letter of intent. (See Attachment 17)

40



55

DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE

AN ; -

Tennessee Code Annotated § 68-11-1609(c) provides that a Certificate of Need is valid for
a period not to exceed three (3) years (for hospital projects) or two (2) years (for all other
projects) from the date of its issuance and after such time shall expire; provided, that the
Agency may, in granting the Certificate of Need, allow longer periods of validity for
' Certificates of Need for good cause shown. Subsequent to granting the Certificate of
Need, the Agency may extend a Certificate of Need for a period upon application and good
cause shown, accompanied by a non-refundable reasonable filing fee, as prescribed by
rule. A Certificate of Need which has been extended shall expire at the end of the extended
time period. The decision whether to grant such an extension Is within the sole discretion
of the Agency, and is not subject to review, reconsideration, or appeal.

1. Please complete the Project Completion Forecast Chart on the next page. If the project
‘will be.completed in multiple phases please identify the antu:lpated completion date
for each phase. -

2. If the response to the precedmg questlon indicates that the applicant does not
anticipate completing .the project within the period of validity as defined in the
preceding paragraph, please state below any request for an extended schedule and
document the “good cause” for such an extension.

L -
Form HF0004
Revised 02/01/06
Previous Forms are obsolete
21
\ -
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SUPPLEMENTAL #1
February 12, 2016
115 am '’

11:15
PROJECT COMPLETION FORECAST CHART =

L
[

Enter the Agency projected Initial Decision date, as published in T.C.A. § 68-11-1609: May 25, 2016

Assuming the CON approval becomes the final agency action on that date: indicate the number
of days from the above agency decision date to each phase of the completion forecast.

56

Anticipated Date

Phase DAYS
REQUIRED (MONTH/YEAR)
1. Architectural and engineering contract signed Complete 10/13/2015
2. Construction documents approved by the Tennessee
Department of Health 6 01/20/16

3. Construction contract signed 6 03/01/16

4. Building permit secured 16 03/10/16

5. Site preparation completed NA NA

6. Building construction commenced 16 03/10/16

7. Construction 40% complete 47 04/10/16

8. Construction 80% complete 67 04/30/16

9. Construction 100% complete (approved for occupancy 82 05/16/16
10. *Issuance of license 98 06/01/16
11. *Initiation of service 113 06/15/16
12. Final Architectural Certification of Payment 98 06/01/16
13. Final Project Report Form (HF0055) 128 07/01/16

" For projects that do NOT involve construction or renovation: Please
complete items 10 and 11 only.

Note: If litigation occurs, the completion forecast will be adjusted at the time
of the final determination to reflect the actual issue date.

Replacement-44

ATTACHMENT 15



57

AFFIDAVIT

STATE OF Tennesse€

COUNTYOF Loane

Mike MeElhinney , being first duly sworn, says that he/she
is the applicant named in this application or his/her/its lawful agent, that this project will be

completed in accordance with the application, that the applicant has read the directions to
this application, the Rules of the Health Services and Development Agency, and T.C.A. § 68-
11-1601, et seq., and that the responses to this application or any other questions deemed
appropriate by the Health Services and Development Agency are true and complete.
W Peas .
LE

SIGNATURE

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 29" day of January , 201ite  a Notary
(Month) (Year)

Public in and for the County/State of _ Roane [Tennessce

M \wchele Mol
NOTARY PUBLIC

My commission expires Jan \S , _ 201¥
(Month/Day) (Year)
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.
[ ] .
Certificate of Need Attachments for Michael Dunn Cente)nh Hope Haven Two

Corporate Charter ('4p‘ag'és;)f R

Corporate existence (1 page)

Property Management Agreement (9 pages) . oL
Lease Agreement (5 pages)

MCO List (1 page)

Michael Dunn Center Financial Statement (25 pages) (Also applies to Section C: Economic
Feasibility 8 and 10) '

Michael Dunn Foundation Fmancnal Statement (19 pages) (Also applies to Section C: Economic
Feasnblllty 8 and 10) :

Economic Feasibility- Balance Sheet and Income Statement (2 pages) Also applies to Section C:
Economic Feasibility 8 and 10 .
Plot with home (1 page)
House plan (1 page)
Tennessee County Level Map (1 page)

Quick Facts Census (2 pages) . =7 .. :

Project Cost Chart- Movable Equnpment (1 page)

Licenses (4 pages) »

ICF plans of correction for current ICF homes (Caillouette and Herron) (29pages)
Letter from Commissionet Debra Payne (2 pages)

Affidavit from Roane County News for the Publication of Intent (1 page)
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MDC will complete all billing for these Four beds via Tennessee Anytime Website and will be reimbursed

directly from TennCare.
L

HeallhPlan - . Prgvider:Services

AMERIGROUP ;.
hitp:/fwww. amerigroup cam y
COMMmLELY Sore ‘ R 1-800-454-3730 - o
Three Lakeview Place +" : s

310,

e

- g

22 Century Blvd., Suité
Nashvllle, TN 37214 *

3 ) _ BlueCare . . R e
2 x BlueCare ' )
é ) 1 Cameron Hill Circle, Suite 0002
e Chattanooga, TN 37402-0002 -

Fax 800-357-0453 g

1-800-468-9736

UnitedHealthcare’ Commumly Plan
UnitedHealthcare Communlty Plan .
2035 Lakeside Centre Wav Suite 200; .
Knoxville, TN 3722 ... o
FAX: 865-293-0573 .

1-800-690-1606 °

TennCare Select i o

TennCare Select * ' :
1-800-276-1978

i 1 Cameron Hill Circle, Sbite‘0002

. Chattanooga, TN 37402-0002 .,

FAX: 800- 218-3190

: . Counties: Anderson, Bfedsoe Blounl Bradley, Campbell, Carter, Claiborne,
s | _ Cocke, Franklin, Grainger G;eene Grundy. Hamblen, Hamilton, Hancock,

Hawkins, Jefferson, Johnson Knox, Loudon, Marion, McMinn, Meigs, Monroe,
Morgan Polk, Rhesa, Roare Scotl Sequatchle Sevier Sulluvan. Unicol, Unlon ¢

and Washinglon o
eS| Section A; Item 13

(o2



CERTIFICATE OF CLASS AND ACCURACY OF SURVEY

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS IS A CLASS 0!
SURVEY AND THAT THE RATIO OF PRECISION OF
THE UNADJUSTED SURVEY IS 1 : 7,500 AS SHOWN
HEREON.

' John Mark Gemble, Tenn. Rag, L.S. No.2307

(]

NUM DELTA ARC RADIUS BEARING |DISTANCE
Ci 81°54'28" 71.1¢' " 49.78' | s13°49'16"W 6526
C2 72°09°'22" 6269 | , 4998 | S63°12'39"E 58.63'

CATY OF ROCKWOOD
MAP 54 / PARCEL 15.03
Z-18 / B26

Deed

NU. DISTANCE BEAKINLD
L1 40.00' | S37°31'38"E |,
STEVEN m:omzznm.w.
u»ﬁnumvuluoo“ e Set kron Rod
L=-22 / 309
AEx Iron Rod
hY
. 554 / PARCEL 17.00 \
> D B-16 / 292 N,
~ /fl hy ﬂ
NN Le n\n.).fo.‘.J o
G Yorme on x._.é%..wmmm .vu_wff ....u._..
NG ﬂﬁo?ﬁ& Dty
o
6 R
N 5 MUAP 54 f PARCEL 16060 —
P17 /533 PROPERTY SURVEY for -
Sharon Long
£y, lron Rod
e FIFTH CIViL DISTRICT
//u,, . COLUINTY oF ROANE,
N N STATE oF TENNESSEE
GENERAL NOTES:

1 Property comners mevked as notecd

& Subject to any and all restrictions,
covenants, conoltions, pl commission
orainances, rights of way, bulldhg sethacks,
and all easements If any, affecting seld lendl

1 inch = 100 feet

Surveyor: John Mark Gamble
120 Cedar Point Drive
Kingston, Tenn. 37763
Phone: 376-1103

Date: February 9, 2006
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MICHAEL DUNN CENTER, INC.
“ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
WITH
SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

"' JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

ALSO APPLIES TO SECTION C,- ECONOMICFEASBILITY 8 AND 10

Séi‘:tion B, Item 1

oY

25 PAGES
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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- William R. Scandlyn - 1988- 1999

Earl O, Wright - 1988 - 2002

IN DEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Michael Dunn Center, Inc.
Kingston, Tennessee

s 4

Report on the Financial Statements’

We have audited the accompanying financlal statements of Michael Dunn Center, Inc. (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, and the
related statements of activities, funct!onal expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related

notes lo the financial statements RS
Management’s Responsibiln‘y for the Fmancraf Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements In
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and falr presentation

of financial statements that are free ffom material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducled
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Americaand the
slandards applicable to financial audits contained in Gavernmenl Auditing Standards, Issued by the
Comptlroller General of the Uniled States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audils to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from malerial misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entily’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an epinion on the eflectiveness of the entily's inlernal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounling eslimales made by management,

as well as evaluating the overall presenfatlon of the financial slalements.
We believe thal the audit evidence we: have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Michael Dunn Center, Inc. as.of June 30, 2014 and 2013, and the changes in ils nel assels and its
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accountmg prlnmp!es generally accepled in the United

States of Amenca

Other Matters

-

Other Information _
Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole, The
accompanying financial information listed as supplemental financial information in the Table of Contents is

pre*;enled for purposes of additional analyms and is not a required par! of lhe financial statements of Michael
..Dunn Center, Inc. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes

236 Miller Ave., Suite 20?_

1000 Brentwood Way

Kingston, Tennessee 37763 : . : Crossville, Tennessee 38555
Telephone (865) 376-5865 : RO TR 5 Telephone &93' 202- 1220
fax (865) 376-5980 www.parsonandwrightcpas.com Fax (888) 430-9848

bl
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of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to theauditing~
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such infofﬁ"nation directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional pracedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepled in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards we have also issued our report dated November 21,
2014, on our consideration of Michael Dunn Center, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is io describe the scope of our lesting of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the resuits of that testlng. and not to provide an opinion on internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in coh5|der|ng Michael Dunn Center, Inc.'s internal control over financial

reporling and compliance.

Gg@m fé/wéfs

Parsons & Wright 7
Certified Public Accountants
Kingston, Tennessee

November 21, 2014
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. MICHAEL DUNN CENTER, INC.
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash
Accounts Receivable (Net of AlloWance for Doubtful Accounts of $50,000)

Prepaid Expenses '

Total Current Assets

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Buildings and Improvements
Equipment
Vehicles
Land N

Total Property and Equipment
Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Net Property and Equipment

OTHER ASSETS
Other Assets
Total Other Assets

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Accrued Wages
Accrued Expense
Accrued Vacalion

Total Current Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Unreslricted Net Assels

Total Net Assets
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

The accompaiying notes are ari inlegral part of these financial slatements.

&9

$

&

R 2]

*»

A €A o

JUNE 30, JUNE 30,
2014 2013
1,198,050 \ § 893,084
1,124,561 1,641,018

6,450 0
2,330,061 $ 2,534,102
1,910,423 $ 1,882,806
601,623 582,453
1,983,457 1,891,208

20,000 20,000
4,515,503 § 4,376,467
(3,809,914) (3,588,520)
705,589 § 787,947

370 s 370

370 $ 370
3,036,020 $ 3,322,419

92,421 S 105,754
295,394  \ . 242,890

26,337 20,712
276,670 266,786
690,822 $ 636,142
2,345,198 $ 2,686,277
2,345,198 $ 2,686,277
3,036,020 $ 3,322,419
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MICHAEL DUNN CENTER, INC.
. STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

JUNE 30, JUNE 30,
2014 2013
SUPPORT AND REVENUE Unrestricted Unrestricted

FEE FOR SERVICES

Department of Inlelleclual and DPVPIopmenlal Dlsabalmes $ 7,643,638 $ 6,980,988

Department of Human Services - 71,115 80,342
Department of Education i 248,600 289,569
Department of Transportation 28,414 169,679
Depariment of Health 1,579,991 1,589,875

Total Fee for Service Revenue $ 9,471,758 $ 9,060,453

OTHER SERVICES AND INCOME

School Contracts $ 490,521 $ 561,440
Local Funds (Uniled Way, County F unds Elc. ) 6 I i 266,608 j & 136,366
Sales o 3 697,851 795,943
Fees for Service 528,065 598,648
Other Income & Reimbursement Expenses 184,859 221,016

$ 2,167,804 $ 2,319,413
$ 11,639,662 $ 11,379,666

Total Other Services and Income Revenue

TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE

EXPENSES
PROGRAM SERVICES : :
Henry Center = T-E '.'.1; F! S 711,245 $ 717,097
Adult ‘ S e 612,794 623,902
Work Program ' ' 1,367,083 1,330,621
School 463,945 551,819
Residential 1,921,115 1,774,943
Med Residential 2,419,561 1,942,676
Family Based : 450,449 456,608
ICF Homes B 1,642,016 1,657,471
Supported Living Homes 2,078,377 ) 1,97.132
Social Services and Quahty Enhancemem . 8,743 0
Development 5 Wb L 167,799 105,499
77.079 56,996

Other Program Services
$ 11,920,206 $ 11,196,764

Total Program Services

SUPPORT SERVICES ’
General and Adminlstrative 60,535 . 71,666
TOTAL EXPENSES 11,980,741 $ 11,268,430
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (341,079) $ 111,436
2,686,277 2,574,841

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF. YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 2,345,198 $ 2,686,277

The accompanying notes are an integral part of lheé__,é financial slatements.
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MICHAEL DUNN CENTER, INC.

 STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

vl

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING APTIVITIES
Change in Net Assels
Adjustmenls lo Reconclle Change ir Nel Assels
{o Nel Cash Provided by Operal/ng Aclivities:
Depreciation 1
i
Changes in Assels and Liabilities:
(Increase) Decrease in Accaunts Receivable
(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Expense
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Wages
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Expenses
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Vaéation

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities $

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of Capilal Assets g

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES :

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Financing Activities

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 8 305,966

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT{_BEGINNING.OF YEAR

N
+

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DATA 3
Interest Paid ¥
Taxes Paid

Total Supplemental Data

\ -
OF CASH FLOWS
* JUNE 30, JUNE 30,
2014 2013
$  (341079) § 111436
221,394 246,655
516,457 (734,154)
(6.450) 1185
(13.333) (83.453)
52,504 1,081
5,625 (31,854)
9,884 9612
445002 5 (479,192) -
$  (139,036) § _ (271319)
$  (139,036) § _ (271319)
$ 0 s O o,
$  (750511)
893,084 1,643,595
$ 1,199,050 $ 893064
$ 0 S 0
0 0
s 0 3 0
.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MICHAEL DUNN CENTER, INC.
NOTES. TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

* 1. The Reporting Entily
These financial statements are intendedto reflect the assets, liabilities, and results of operations of Michael Dunn
Center, Inc. (the Center) only.

The Center was incorporated on March 8, 19_7"51_, under the prOvisibhé of the State of Tennessee. The Center is a
nonprofil and charitable entity. 1t operat§§ under a board and executive director form of management.

and physically handicapped individuals the opportunity

The primary purpose of the Center is lo provide mentally
ed services. The Center's support comes primarily from

for education, vocational training, housing, and other relat
-the State of Tennessee ;

Description of Programs:

Adult Day, School Age and Preschool— "~ = .
The Center provides to the handicapped citizens of Roane and surroundirg counties, with educational

training, physical, and occupational therapy, speech therapy and counseling.

Residential - '
The Center provides management services for the residential houses that provide housing for handicapped”

citizens. In addition, assistance with personal needs is provided.

2. Basis of Accounting

The Center uses the accrual basis of acci\j'unliﬁg. Revenues are recognized when they are earned and expenses
~ “are recognized when they are incurred. (. '

3. Budgets and Budgetary Accounling

is employed by the Center as a management control device during the year. The

Formal budgetary integralion
rinciples (GAAP).

budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting p

4. Income Tax Status

The Center has qualified as an organization ,e'xempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code. X

5. Financial Statement Presenlalion

58-205 (formerly Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS)
Profit Organizations®). Under FASB ASC 958-205, the Center is

required to report information regarding its firancial posilion and activilies according to three classes of nel assels
ed nel assets, and permanently restricted net assets) based upon the

(unrestricted net assets, temporarily restrict
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. As permilted by this new standard, the Cenler has
discontinued its use of fund accounting and-has, accordingly, reclassified its financiel statements to present |

classes of nel assets. e

In 1996, the Center adopted FASB ASC 9
No. 117, "Financial Statements of Not-for,
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MICHAEL DUNN CENTER, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS . A
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
NOTE A - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES Contlnued

5. Financial Statement Presentation - Cb"ntinued

- In 1996, the Center also adopted FASB ASC 958-605 (formerly SFAS No. 1186, "Accounting for Contribulions

Recewed and Contributions Made”). In accordance with SFAS Na. 116, contributions received are recorded as
unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted support, depending on the existence andfor nature _
of any donor restrictions. The adoption had no cumulative effect on net assets at the date of the adoption.

Contributions received for the purchase oT capltal ltems has been shown as unrestricted because the funds were
received and expended in the same year : :
BALANCE BALANCE
JUNE 30, JUNE 30,
CATAGORIES OF ASSETS 2014 2013
a. Unrestricled Nel Assels, which are nol restricted by donors or by law, $ 2,345,198 $ 2,606,277
b. Temporarily Restricted Net Assets, whos;e use has:been limited by donor-
imposed time restrictions or purpose restrictions.
c. Permanently Restricted Net Assets, which: have been restricted by donor or
by law {o be maintained by lhe organlzaﬂon in perpetufty .

TOTAL

0 0
$ 2,345,198 § 2,686,277

6. Statement of Cash Flows

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Center considers all highly liquid investments with a malurity of
three months or less when purchased lo be cash equuvalents Income taxes paid for the year were $0.

7. Grant Funds
Grant funds received for operations are recorded as revenue.,
8. Cash and Cash Equivalents g

The cash total of $1,199,050 and $893,084 is comprised ol the following:
June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013

CASH v
Operating Accountls : 3 1,198,250 $ 892,284
Petty Cash g LT F o 800 800

3 1,199,050 $ 893,084

TOTAL CASH :
All accounts are listed in the agency name, Michael Dunn Center, Inc.

The carrying amount of the Center's deposfls (checking and savings) for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013
was 31,198,250 and $892,284 respectively; The bank balance for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 was
$1,5640, 861 and $1,068,428, respectively. Of the bank balance, $495,879 and $436,341 was covered by federal
depository insurance for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 respeclively. The balances of the furds were™

collaleralized by the Bank's participation in the State collateral pool.
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. MICHAEL DUNN CENTER, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
* JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued \

9. Accounts Receijvable

A "
For the years ending June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Center recorded $50,000 allowance for doubtful accounts lo
cover potential bad debts. Bad debt expense as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 was $0. The accounts receivable
total of $1,124,561 and $1,641,018 at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respeclively, is comprised of the following:

June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013

' ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE o
Gowernment Entities ‘ $ 721,143 § ° 1,255,893
Various School Contracts, Etc. 1,211 9,172
Various Contracts, Etc. ' 200,638 334,918
Hope Haven |, Inc. . 6,365 5,977
Hope Hawen i, Inc. 6,568 5,551
Hope Haven I, Inc. 6,993 5,747
Michael Dunn Foundation 158,736 5,500
Websler Home, Inc. _ 40,836 40,046
Simmons Manor, Inc. % 32,071 28,214

Total Accounts Receivable $ 1,174,561 & 1,691,018
Less Allowance for Doubtful Accoun_tls' (50,000) (50,000)
NET ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE =~ i $ 1,124,561 $ 1,641,018
10. Fixed Assels ;
\ -

The fixed assels are recorded at cost and include improvements that significantly add to productive capacity or
-extend useful life. Cost of maintenance and repairs are charged to expense. Upon retirement or disposal of
assels, the cost and related depreciation:are removed from the accounts and gain or loss, if any, is reflected in
the earnings for the period. Depreciation and amortization, for financial reporting purposes, is provided on the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives of the assels are buildings 30 years, equipment 10 years, and
vehicles 5 years. Any interesl cosl incurred in the construclion of fixed assels Is capiltalized. There was no
interest capitalized in the current year. In May of 2008 the Center elected to begin following stale guidelines for
assel capitalization. Under these guidelines, an asset will be capitalized only when it has a cost of grealer than

$5,000 and an estimated useful life of three years or greater..
Fixed assets acquired by the Center are considered to be owned by the Center. However, State-funding sources

may mainlain equitable interest in the property purchased with grant monies as well as the right to determine the
use of any proceeds from the sale of these assets. The State has a reversionary interest in those assels

purchased with its funds.

11. Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing ihé vérious programs éﬁjciﬂ:bl'ﬁe'r?acli‘vilies have been summarized on a functional basis in
the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporling

services benefited.

12. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management lo make eslimales and assumplions that affect cerlain reporled amounts and dISCIOSUfeS.\,

~-Accordingly, actual resulls could differ from those estimates. g

7



76

MICHAEL DUNN CENTER, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
. JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

* NOTE A - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

13. Accrued Expenses

[

g . 5 oL
The Center accrued wages for payroll ending June 30, 2014 and 2013, These wages were paid in July 2014 and
2013. The accrued salaries at June 30, 2014 and 2013 were $295,394 and $242,890, respectively and accrued

vacalion wages was $276,670 and $266,786; respectively. '

14. Advertising Costs

. Advertising costs are expenses as incurred. Advertising expense was $3,991 and $12,852 for the years ending
June 30, 2014 and 2013 respectively.

15. Reclassification

Certain items shown in the previously issued financial statements have been reclassified into different calegories
in these financial stalements to betier present the Center's inforration.

NOTE B - UNRESTRICTED GRANTS/CONTRIBUTIONS

_Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted or permanently restricted support,
depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions.

Support that is restricted by the donor Is reported as an increase in unrestricted net assets If the restriction
expires in the reporting period in which the support isTecognized. All other donor-restricted support is reported in
temporarily or permanently restricted net assets, depending on the nature of the restriction. When a resticlion
expires (thal is when a stipulated time restriction ends:or the purpose of the restriction is accomplished),
temporarily restricted net assels are reclassified lo unrestricted net assels and reported in lhe Stalement of
Activities as net assets released from restrictions. Federal grant awards are classiflied as refundable advances
until the expensed for the purposes of the grants because they are conditional expenses to give. LSRR

NOTE C - EMPLOYEE PAID TIME OFF _

Effective Aprit 1, 2008 the Center adopled a new Paid Time Off (PTO) policy. It is used for all paid absences from
work including vacation, sick, funeral leave, volunlary witness testimony and holidays. PTO is for employees
only. An employee is defined as someone whose job exisls to fulfill Michael Dunn Center's mission of senving
people with disabilities in either a direcl service or support funclion. Service recipients and work program laborers
hired to perform contracts are not considered employéees and are not eligible for PTO. In order fo be eligible for
PTO, the employee mus! be hired, scheduled to work and actually work a minimum of 40 hours per week. There
is no PTO for employees working less than 40 hours per week or for seasonal, contracl, or temporary employees,

regardless of the amount of hours per week they work.

Sick Leave - All earned sick time accrued under the prior system will be transferred into a sick time bank on a
one-for-one basis. This time will be saved for use only when the employee has firsl exhausted all PTO and yel
still qualifies for sick time or if an employee has & documented illness, or needs to care for an immediale family
member with a documented illness, for a period of lime in excess of 10 consecutively scheduled work days. The
first 10 days would be charged to PTO anc all consecutive days that the employee is absent would be deducted
from the sick bank. If an employee leaves the Michael' Dunn Center, 'sick leave is never cashed out for any

employee regardless of length of service.

17
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‘MICHAEL DUNN CENTER, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
% JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE C - EMPLOYEE PAID TIME OFF"- Continued

When an employee leaves the Michael Dunn Center, they will get up lo a maximum of 200 hours of unused PTO
* time paid out at their ending rate of pay. *Any PTO days accumulated beyond 200 hours will be lost at the lime of

termination regardless of the reason for their termination.

Holidays are included in the PTO that héé been granted. As an incentive for employees to work on Thanksgiving,
the day after Thanksgiving, Christmas Eve and Christmas, employees that work these days may also request up

to 8 hours of PTO per day.

ACCRUAL MAXIMUM
YEARS OF RATE ANNUAL
SERVICE PER MONTH ACCUMULATION
0-1 Years 0.5 days 6 days
14 Years 2.0 days 24 days
5-9 Yéars 2.5 days * 30 days
10-19 Years 3.0 days 36 days
‘Over 20, Years 3.5 days - 42 days

Under the TIMAS (timekeeping system) system there Is no carryover of lime. An employee can never accrue
more than 80 days (640 hours or 4 months) PTO time. Once 640 hours is reached, TIMAS stops adding PTO

hours.

Employees in the School Program are subject to a different PTO system in which they will receive 3.5 PTO days
per month, regardless of their number of years of service. However, they must use their PTO days, if available,

on all days the Roane County Schools are closed for holidays, iliness or weather.

NOTE D - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS® .

The following organizations are financiall};"r‘elated to the Center:

-

1. Hope Haven, Inc., Simmons Manor, Inc., and Webster Home, Inc. provide residential housing for clients
served by the center.

2. Michael Dunn Foundation, Inc. provides funds for the enhancement of the developmentally disabled.

All of the above mentioned entities are séﬁan{at_é éorpqralions with a separate board of directors.
NOTE E - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE/ACCOUNTS PAYABLE/NOTES PAYABLE — RELATED PARTIES

The accounts receivable, accounts payab{‘lé;and noles payable on the balance sheet include amounts due from/to

related pariies which include Rent, Management Fees, and Reimbursed Expenses, as follows:
June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013

RECEIVABLE FROM: :
Hope Hawven |, Inc. . i $ 6,365 §$ 5977
Hope Haven |, Inc. 6,568 5,851
Hope Haven I, Inc. . 6,993 5747
Michael Dunn Foundation W 158,736 5,500
Webster Home, Inc. ; CEER s, 40,836 40,046

r 32,071 28,214

Simmons Manor, Inc. e
$ 251,569 $ 91,035

 imm——TOTAL RECEIVABLE FROM RELATED PARTIES
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‘MICHAEL DUNN CENTER, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE F - FEES FROM RELATED PART!ES

Fees are paid to the Center from the relanEd'-barties for insurance, management fees, wages, repairs and supplies
included in other income and reimbursement expense as follows:

RELATED PARTY June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013
Hope Hawen |, Inc. $ 11,365 § 14,777 *.
- Hope Hawen I, Inc. W 16,224 16,832 °
Hope Hawen i, Inc. ' 18,049 17,699
Michael Dunn Foundation " : 158,736 0
Webster Home, Inc. ' 9.641 . 913
Simmons Manor, Inc. ' 10,283 ° 10,658
TOTAL FEES FROM RELATED PARTIES $ 224,298 $ 69,079

NOTE G - DONATED MATERIALS AND'SERVICES

-Donated materials or equipment, when received is reflecled as contributions in the accompanying statements at
their estimated fair market values al the date of receipt. The entily does not recognize any revenue or expense
from services provided by volunteers.

NOTE H - RENT OF FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT

The Center leases from Roane CdUnty. a -:'s_'c'H'd'dI 'bdildfhg and prope‘&y on an annual lease of $1 per year. The
term of the lease is 50 years ending in the year 2026, and has been prepaid through that date. The lease
contains a renewal clause in which an additional 50 years may be leased exclusively by the Center for an

additional 50 years for the annual lease of $1 per year.

The Center leases homes from the Micha?al Dunn Foundation which are cancelable with a term of one year. As of
June 30, 2014 and 2013 the annual rent payments are $114,290 and $99,600, respeclively.

NOTE | - INSURANCE

Itis the policy of the Center lo purchase comimercial insurance for the risk of loss to which it is exposed. These
risks include general liability, property and casually, worker's compensalion, employee health and accident and

environmental. Setlled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
. oL

NOTE J - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISKS

The Cenler earns most of its revenue from the Stale of Tennessee. Should this relationship cease it would be
imperative for the Center to seek contracts from other sources.

NOTE K - AGENT RESPONSIBILITIES

Michael Dunn Center manages a majority"'{‘éf Ciiént baﬁ_k accounts and has the agent reé'ponsi'ln.ilily lo assure that
these client resources are budgeted properly and that clienl expenses are paid timely. In addition, Michael Dunn

Center receives client income in the form of state subsidies and has the responsibility to record and distribute

these funds appropriately.
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MICHAEL DUNN CENTER, INC,
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE L - FAIR VALUE FINANCIAL li'\?S:_TRUMENTS

The following methods and assumplions were used by the Center in estimating the fair value of ils financial
instruments: ”
Cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable - The carrying amounls reported
in the statements of financial position apprommates fair value due to the short maturity of these

instruments.

NOTE M -~ RETIREMENT PLAN

The Cenler maintains a defined contribution pension plan under Section 403 (b) of the Internal Revenue Service
Code that covers substantially all full-time employees. The Center's policy is to fund pension costs annually as
determined by the plan administrator. The Center will match employee contributions up lo 3% of base wages
excluding overtime and bonuses subject to annual board approval. Contributions to the plan during the years ~
ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 were $63 943 and $58, 841 respectlvely

NOTE N - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Center did not have any subsequent evenls through November 21, 2014, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued;:which would require recording or disclosure in the financial stalements for

- the year ended June 30, 2014.
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MICHAEL DUNN CENTER, INC.

SfUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

JUNE 30, 2014
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MICHAEL DUNN CENTER, INC.
STATEMENT OF SUPPORT, REVENUES AND EXPENSES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL \ %
JUNE 30, 2014
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
SUPPORT AND REVENUES BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
Fee for Services ! |
Slate and Federal Contracts $ 9,343,208 $ 9,471,758 § 128,549
Total Fee for Service Revenue $ 9,343,209 $ 9,471,758 $ 128,549
Other Services and income
School Contracts $ 471,145 $ 490,521 § 19,376
Local Funds (United Way, County Funds, Etc.) 123,300 266,608 143,308
Sales 813,722 697,851 (115,871)
Clienl Fees & Rents T 601,170 528,065 (73,105)
Other Income & Reimbursement of Expenses 277,434 184,859 {92,575)
Total Revenue ' - . % 27286771 $ 2,167,904 § (118,867)
TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE $ 11,629,980 % 11,639,662 $ 9,682
EXPENSES
Salaries - $ 7,578,785 $ 7,771,206 $ (192,421)
Benefits and Taxes ' 1,611,851 1,529,548 (17,697)
SR Wages and Benefits 185,744 213,558 (27.814)
Professional Fees 658,914 554,045 104,869
Supplies 444,323 501,332 - (57,009}
Telephone 65,297 - 62,827 2,470
Postage and Shipping 6:328 - 8,863 (2,535)
Equipment Rental & Maintenance 23,520 16,103 7.417
Prinling and Publication 15,739 3,610 12,129
Travel, Conference and Meetings 670,106 606,871 63,235
Occupancy 378,180 322,912 55,268
Insurance 54,168 62,840 (8,672)
Depreciation 89,760 75,145 14,615
Other Non-Personal 273,971 215,783 58,188
Items for Resale 49,523 36,098 13,425
Total Program Services ‘ $ 12.006‘,209 $ 11,980,741 $ 25,468
TOTAL EXPENSES $ 12,006,209 $ 11,980,741 $ 25,468
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS $ _ | (376,229) $ (341,079) 3 35,150

BEGINNING NET ASSETS 2,686,277
5 __ 2345198

ENDING NET ASSETS : _ | =

Note: Aclual Vehicle Deprecialion of $146,349 has been included with Travel, Conference and Meetings to

align with the Center's buget.

See independent auditor's report.
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MICHAEL DUNN CENTER, INC. -
SCHEDULES OF FIXED ASSETS AND
" ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

CAPITAL ASSETS, NOT BEING DEPRECIATED:

Land : .
Total Capital Assels, Not Being Dep;eciated

CAPITAL ASSETS, BEING DEPRECIATED:
Buildings & Improvements
Equipment, Furnilure and Fixtures
Vehicles

Total Capital Assets, Belng Depreciated

A

LESS ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION FOR:
Buildings & Improvemenls
Equipment, Furniture and Fixtures
Vehicles

Total Accumulated Depreciation

CAPITAL ASSETS, NET

CAPITAL ASSETS, NOT BEING DEPREGIATED:

Land
Total Capital Assels, Not Being Dep;eciated

CAPITAL ASSETS, BEING DEPRECIATED:
Buildings & Improvements
Equipment, Fumilure and Fixiures
Vehicles

Tolal Capital Assets, Being Deprecialed

LESS ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION FOR:
Buildings & Improvements
Equipment, Furniture and Fixtures
Vehicles

Total Accumulated Depreciation

CAPITAL ASSETS, NET

See independent audilor's report.

R ]

\

BALANCE BALANCE
JUNE 30, JUNE 30,
2013 ADDITIONS  DEDUCTIONS 2014

20,000 § 0 0§ 20,000
20,000 $ 0 0§ 20,000
1,882,806 § 27,617 0§ 1910,423
582,453 19,170 0 601,623
1,891,208 92,249 0 1,983,457
4,356,487 3 139,036 0 $ 4495503
1,616,368 * $ 59,275 0§ 1675643
530,955 15,870 0 546,825
1,441,197 146,249 0 1,587,446
3,588,520 $ 221,384 0 $ 3809,914
787,947. § (82,358) 0 $ 705,589

\ . -

. BALANCE BALANCE
. JUNE 30, JUNE 30,

2012 ADDITIONS  DEDUCTIONS 2013

20,000 $ 0 0 s 20,000
20,000 0 0% 20,000
1,873,419 § 9,387 0 % 1882806
‘575,253 7,200 0 582,453
1,636,476 254,732 0 1,891,208
4,085,148 $ 271,319 0 $ 4356467
1,560,336 $ 56,032 0 S 1616,368
496,189 34,766 0 530,955
1,285,340 155,857 0 1,441,197
3,341,865 $ 246,655 0 % 3588520
763,283 $ 24,664 0§ 787,947

g4
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* MICHAEL DUNN CENTER, INC.
SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE COVERAGE
: JUNE 30, 2014

COVERAGE EXPIRATION AMOUNT DEDUCTIBLE gCCURRENCE
Property and Machinery 71112014  § $ 500/1000
Business Income
Business Propertly 7,840,000 1,000
Personal Property 718,836
Properly Each Localion & :
Inland Marine - Tools and Equipment’. .. . . 111,420 500
Crime 71112014
Bilankel 250,000 . 500
Forgery or Alteration 200,000 500
Auto 71172014 1,000,000
Medical . 5000 - . - 500
Uninsured Motorist 1,000,000
Liability
General Liability * 71172014 3,000,000/1,000,000 500 $ 1,000,000
Residential 3,000,000/1,000,000
Medical - Per Person 5,000
Fire Damage 100,000
Employee Benefits E & O 1,000,000/3,000,000 1,000,000
Professional Liability Commercial ; . 10,000,000/10,000,000/
(Excess Liability Umbrella) 7/1/2014 1,000,000 10,000 0,000,300
Key Employee 50,000
D&O 10,000,000 10,000 2,000,000
Workman's Compensation 7112014 .
Badily Injury-Accident 500,000 500,000
Bodily Injury-Disease 500,000
500,000

Policy Limit

See independent auditor's reportl.
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MICHAEL DUNN CENTER, INC.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
JUNE 30, 2014

POSITION

Gail Chrislian

John Smith

Debbie Alexander-Davis

Ron Blanchard
Ted Bowers
Richard Evans
Bill Lueking
Debbie Norris

Jim Pinkerion

Lana Seivers

Sharon Templeton
Wayne Tipps

Judith Tyi

Harriel Westmoreland
Chris Whaley

Mike McElhinney

See independent auditor's report.

Bl

Chairperson
Vice Ch:elirperson
Board Member
Board Member
Board Member
Board Member
Board Member
Board Member
Board Member
Board Member
Board Member
Board Member
Board Member
Board Member
Board Me}nber

Execulive Director
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MICHAEL DUNN CENTER, INC.

~COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SECTION

JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

ALSO APPLIES TO SECTION C, ECONOMIC FEASBLITY 8 AND 10

Sectibn B; Item 1
a1
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Stephen |, Parsons - Retired

Joe Savage

Marie I. Niekerk Catherine R Hulme

Josh Stone ’ ' RebeccaHutsell
William R. Scandlyn - 1988- 1999

Earl O. Wright - 1988 - 2002

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIALSTATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the .Board of Directors
Michael Dunn Center, Inc.
- Kingston, Tennessee ' . Y os F

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Michael Dunn Center, Inc. {a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, and the related
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related roles fo
the financial slatements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 21, 2014. ,}

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial stalemenls, we considered Michael Dunn Center, Inc.'s

internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
" the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but nol for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Michael Dunn Center, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do

not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Michael Dunn Center, Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detecl and correcl,
misslatements on a timely basis. A malerial weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, ininternal
control, such thal there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s linancial slalements
will not be prevented, or detected and c'qf-_recled ori a limely basis, A significan! deficiency is a deficiency,or 2
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough

_to merit attention by those charged with governance.:

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this seclion
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in inlemal «
control thal we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist thal have not been

identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Michael Dunn Center, Inc.'s financial slatemenls are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
conlracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our lests
disclosed no Instances of noncompliance ar other matlers that are required to be reported under Government

Audliting Slandards.

1000 Brentwood Way i ' 236 Miller Ave,, Suite 202
Crossville, Tennessee 38555

Kingston, Tennessee 37763 &
lelephone (865) 376-5865 Telephone $93l‘ 202-1220
fax (865) 376-5980 www. parsonandwrightcpas.com fax (888) 430-9848
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of inlernal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide,an apinion on the effectiveness of the organization's internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government At{df”{lg _
Standards in considering the organizatien's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is
not suilable for any other purpose.

Parsons & Wright~ v
; Certified Public Accountants
= Kingston, Tennessee

November 21, 2014
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MICHAEL DUNN FOUNDATION, INC.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 _ WITH

SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL
' INFORMATION

JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
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MICHAEL DUNN FOUNDATION, INC.
TABLE OF CONTENTS
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Stephen J. Parsons <« Retiredh.

Joe Savage

Marle I, Nieleerlc Catherine R, Hulme

Josh Stone : _ Rebecca Hutsell
Willlam R. Scandlyn - 1988- 1999

Earl O. Wright - 1988 - 2002

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors
Michael Dunn Foundation, Inc.
Kingston, Tennessee 37763

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Michael Dunn Foundation, Inc. (a nonprofil

organization), which comprise the statament of financial position as of June 30, 2014, and the relaled
statements of activities, changes in net assets, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes

to the financial statements.

The June 30, 2013 financial statements of the Michael Dunn Foundatlon Inc. were reviewed by us and.our
report thereon dated November 18, 2013, stated we were nol aware of any material modifications that should
have been made to the financial statements in order for them to be in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit and
does nol provide a basis for the expression of an apinion on the financial statements taken as a whole.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements L
Management is responsible for the preparation and falr presentation of these financial stalements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenar.ce of internal control relevant lo the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responslbsl!ty is to express an opinmn on these ﬂnanmal statements based on our audil. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the -audit lo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures lo obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial stalements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial slateménts in order lo design audit procedures that are appropriate in the

circumstances, but nol for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entily's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.:An: audit also includes evalualing the approprialeness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimales made by management,

as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate lo provide a basis for our
audit opinion.,

Opinion

In our opinion, lhe financlal statements réeferred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial «
posilion of Michael Dunn Foundalion, Inc. as of June 30, 2014 and the changes in its net assets and ils cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with: accounlmg principles generally accepled in the United

States of America.

1000 Brentwood Way - Kingston. Tennessee 37763
Telephone (865) 376-5865 - Fax (865) 376-5980
wwuy, parsonsandwrightcpas.com
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Other Matter oo
Our audil was conducted for the purpose: of forming an opinion on the financial statements as awhole. The
schedules listed in the table of contents as Supplemental Financial Information are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a: required part of the financial statements. Such infurmalfnn. is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used lo prepare the financial slalements, The information has been subjected to lhe audit!‘ng
procedures applied in the audit of, the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly lo the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or {0 the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation lo the financial statements as a whole.

Parsons & Wright v :
Certified Public Accountants
Kingston, Tennessee

September 25, 2014

Q2
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MICHAEL DUNN FOUNDATION, INC.
FINANCIAL STATEMENT INFORMATION

JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
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MICHAEL DUNN FOUNDATION, INC,
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

ASSETS
- JUNE 30, 2014 JUNE 30, 2013
’ (AUDITED) (UNAUDITED)
CURRENT ASSETS '
Cash $ 832,166 $ 567,246
Cerlificate of Deposit 192,093 257,893
Accounts Receivable 150 8,450
Total Current Assets § 1,024,409 $ . 833589
RESTRICTED ASSETS Sl
Permanently Restricted Cash - Steed Estate* $ 303,243 3 303,243
Total Restricted Assets . $ 303,243 $ 303,243
OTHER ASSETS
Investments 5 1,743,313 $ 1,637,332
Utility Deposits 500 500
Total Other Asssts | $ 1,743,813 5 1,637,832
FIXED ASSETS
Land $ 336,912 % 336,912
Building 2,021,588 1,821,588
Equipment 862 862
Improvements 212,608 174,207
Less Restricted Fixed Assets 0 0
Total ) $ 2,571,970 $ 2,333,569
Less Accumulated Depreciation (455,256) (369,333)
Net Fixed Assefs $ 2,116,714 $ \ 1,964,236
$ 5,188,179 $ 4,738,900

TOTAL ASSETS

* This represents the original contribution. The balance of the account has been included in Investments.

The accompanying notes are an integrai part of these financial statements.

9%
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MICHAEL DUNN FOUNDATION, INC.
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable

Total Current Liabilities

OTHER LIABILITIES :
Liabllity to beneficiaries of split-interest agreements

Total Other Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted
Temporarily Restricted
Pemanently Restricted
Total Unrestricted and Restricted Net Assets'.
TOTAL NET ASSETS

TO'_I'AL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

e

JUNE 30, 2014

JUNE 30, 2013

(AUDITED) (UNAUDITED)
159,760 32,206
159,760 32,206

26,175 33,560
26,175 33,560
185,935 65,766
4,648,860 4,318,750
50,141 51,141
303,243 \  303;243
5,002,244 4,673,134
5,002,244 4,673,134
5,188,179 4,738,900

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MICHAEL DUNN FOUNDATION, INC,
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

CHANGES IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

REVENUES, GAINS, AND OTHER SUPPORT

Inferest Income
Donations-Individuals
Donations-Businesses
Grant Income

Fund Raising

Rental Income

Gain on Sale of Property
Investment Relurn

Total Revenues and Gains

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS

Restrictions Satisfied by Payments

Total Unrestricted Revenues, Gains and Other Support

EXPENSES

Cost of Fund Raising

Depreciation Expense

Rental Expense

Legal and Professional

Donation to the Michael Dunn Center
Miscellaneous Expense

Total Expenses

Increase/(Decrease) in Unrestricted Net Assets

CHANGE IN TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Donations - Individual .
Restrictions Salisfied by Payments

Increase/(Decrease) in Temporarily Restricted Nef Assets

JUNE 30, 2014

JUNE 30, 2013

(AUDITED) (UNAUDITED)
409 § . . 1075
70,339 67,602
208,505 20,235
50,000 0
33,650 37,862
114,681 99,600
) (44,029)
105,981 16,888
583,565 $ 199,233
0§ 0
583,665 & 199,233
7,994 $ 10,587
85,923 69,443
12,937 15,963
4,255 3,425
142,992 0
354 3,703
254,455 $ * 103,121
329,110 % 96,112
0 % 1,000

0 0

0 S 1,000
329,110 $ 97,112

TOTAL CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of lhese financial statements,
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MICHAEL DUNN FOUNDATION, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

JUNE 30, 2014 JUNE 30, 2013
(AUDITED) (UNAUDITED)
UNRESTRICTED NET ASSE_I'S

Tolal Unrestricted Revenues and Gains $ 583,565 $ 243,262
Total Net Assels Released from Restrictions 0
Tolal Expenses ’ (254,455) (147,150)
Increase/(Decrease) in Unrestricted Net Assets $ 329,110 $ 96,112

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
Contributions $ 0 $ N . 1,000
Nel Assets Released from Restrictions 0 0
Increase/(Decrease) in Temporarily Restricted Net Assefs $ 0 $ 1,000
INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS : $ 329,110 s 97,112
NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR & : 4,673,134 4,576,022

$ 5,002,244 $ 4,673,134

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR

The accompanying notes are an integrai parl of these financial stalementls.
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MICHAEL DUNN FOUNDATION, lNC
. STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in Nel Assets
Adjustments to Reconcile Change iry Net Assels

{o Nel Cash Provided by Operal‘fng Activities:

Depreciation
Non-Cash Donation
(Gain)/Loss on Sale of Properly
(Gain)/Loss on Investments

Changes in Assels and Liabilities: -

(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Payable

(Increase) Decrease In Accounts Receivable

(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Insurange:

Increase (Decrease) in Earnest Depc}‘s_ii: A

Increase (Decrease) in Liability to Beneficiaries
of Split-interest Agreements

Ll

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operatmg Activities

" CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Short-term Investments, Net
(Increase)/Decrease in Invesiments N
Payments for Purchase of Fixed Assels- *;
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Investing Activitiés
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

'CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR.

Reconciliation of Cash Accounts’
Cash

Cerliiicate of Deposit

Pemanenlly Restricted Cash

$

$

"JUNE 30, 2014

JUNE 30, 2013

(AUDITED) (UNAUDITED)
329,110 $ 97,112
85,923 69,443
(200,000) 0
0 44,028
0 0
127,554 0
8,300 (50)
0 2,750
0 32,206
{7,385) (7,366)
™
343,502 s 238,104
) $ 13,771
(105,981) (16,888)
(38,401) (312,736)
0 0
(144,382) $ (315,853)
199,120 $ (17,749)
825,139 902,888
1,024,259 5 825,139
832,166 $ 567,246
192,093 257,893
0 ]
1,024,259 5 825,139

The accompanying noles are an integral parl of these financial slaierments.

i
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MICHAEL DUNN FOURNDATION, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE A - THE REPORTING ENTITY

This financial statement is intended to reflect the asselts, liabilities and results of operations of Michael Dunn
Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation) ofily. Itis a separate corporation from Michael Dunn Center, Inc.

The Foundation was chartered April 7, 1984, as a nonprofit corporation to assist in providing funds for the
enhancement of the developmentally disabled. The Foundation is governed by a board of directors.

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

1.  Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenue and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the accounts
and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurements

made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.

The Foundation uses the accrual basis of ‘accounting. Their revenues are recognized when they are earned
and their expenses are recognized when they are incurred,

2. Buildings and Equipment

Buildings and equipment are capitalized at cost. Depreciation has been calculated using the straight-line

method with the following lives:

Buildings / Residential Houseﬁ...;’. veseieresennne e S S R R S S e sl 30 years
Furniture and Equipment....... ' 10 years

Additions, improvements, renewals, and expendltures for maintenance that add stgmf“oantly to produclive
capacily or extend the life of the asse[ are capilalized. Any interest cost incurred in the construclion of lixed
assels is capitalized. Assels are recorded at cost or fair market value if contributed. The cost of malntenance
and repairs are charged to expense. Upon retirement or disposal of assets, the cost and related dapreciation
are removed from the accounts and a gain or loss, if any, is reflected in the earnings for the period. An asset
will only be capitalized when it has a cost of greater than $5,000 and an estimaled useful life of three years or

greater.

3. Cash In Bank

The carrying value of cash in bank lOldl of $1,024, 259 and 3825 139 as of June 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively, consists of: .

JUNE 30, JUNE 30,
2014 2013
ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION (AUDITED) (UNAUDITED)
Demand Deposit Accounts $ 332,139 % 567,219
Certificate of Deposit 192,093 257,893
Savings 27 27
TOTAL CASH IN BANK 3 1,024,259 $ 825,139

/00
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MICHAEL DUNN FOUNDATION; INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES - Continued

3. Cash In Bank - Continued

All accounts are listed in the name of Michael Dunn Foundation, Inc. as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, the
bank balance of $1,024,259 and $825,139 was on deposit with three different financial institutions of which
$500,027 and $498,526 was covered by FDIC and $524,232 and $326,613 was covered through the

Tennessee Collateral Pool, respectively.

4. Investments

Investments consist of securities traded on national stock exchanges. Investments are reported at fair market
value in accordance with FASB ASC 958-320 (formerly SFAS No. 124, Accounting for Certain Invesiments
Held by Not-for-profit Organizations). Investments in equity securities with readily determinable values are*
measured at falr value based on quoted market prices in active markets (all Level 1 inputs) in the slatements
of financial position, Investment income or loss (including realized and unrealized gains and losses on
investments, interest and dividends) is included as a component of unrestricted activity unless the income or
loss is restricted by the donor. Short-term investments are reporled at cost, which approximates fairvalue.
Cash deposits are reported in the carrying amounts, which reasonably estimate fair value.

5. Income Tax Status
The Foundation has qualified as a publicly supported organization exempt from Federal income taxunder
Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. .

6. Cash Flow Statement

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Foundation considers all highly liquid investments (including
restricled cash) with a maturity of three- months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. There was no

interesl or tax paid for the years ending June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2013.

7. Donated Malerials and Services

Donated materials or equipment, when rei;é_ived are reflected as contributions in the accompanying
statements at their estimated fair market values at the date of receipt. The entity does not recognize any

revenue or expense from services provided by volunteers. .

8. Use of Estimates

The preparalion of financial slatementis in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles Yequires
management to make eslimates and assumplions thal affect cerlain reported amounts and disclosures,

Accordingly, actual resuits could differ-from lhose eslimates.

9. Reclassification

Certain items shown in the previously%sued financial statements have been reclassified into different
categories in these financial stalements to better present the Foundation's information.

10. Assels Held Under Split-Inlerest Agreements |

The Fotindation received coniributions in which the donor may relain a life interest. The assets are invested
and administered by the Foundalion anid distributions are made to the beneficiaries under the. terms of the
agreement. These funds are generally’invested in mutual funds, stocks, or governmenl securities, and lhe

i
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[\lfl:ilCHAEL DUNN FOUNDATION, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
‘ JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES - Continued

10. Assels Held Under Split-Interest ‘A"gr‘e'eme'nt_s - Conlinued

Foundation records Its interest at fair:'value Initial recognition and subsequent adjustments to the assets’
carrying values are reporied as a change in value of split-interest agreements in the accompanying financial

statements.

Obligations under split-interest agreernents, including charitable remainder trusts, are recorded when incurred
at the present value of the anticipated distributions to be made to the donor-designated beneficiaries.
Distributions are paid over the lives of the beneficiaries or another specific period. Present values are
determined using appropriate discount rates and actuarially determined life expectancies. Obligations under
split-interest agreements may be revalued annually at June 30 to reflect actuarial experience; the discount
rate is not changed. The net revaluations, together with any remaining recorded obligations after all lrust
obligations under terminated agreements have been satisfied, are recorded as net changes in the value of

split-interest agreements,

NOTEC - lNVESTMENTS

Concentrations of credit risk with resper‘t to investments Is due to the fact that the Foundation's investmenls
are uninsured and are subject to market fluctuations. Investment securities are exposed to various sts such
as interest rate and market & credittigk. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment secutities
and the level of uncertainty related to changes in the value of investment securities, it is at least reasonably
possible that changes in the near term could materially affect the amounts reported in the accompanying
financial statements. However, most of the investments are invested with a long-term strategy, and overall

gains are anticipated over the long-term.

The investment funds are presented at fair value based on quoted market prices (all Level 1 measuremenls)
and consist of the following:

Investment funds are made up on the following:

JUNE 30, 2014 JUNE 30, 2013
INVESTMENT FUNDS (AUDITED) (UNAUDITED)
Money Market $ 285,750 $ 345,073
Government Securities 745,901 1,131,928
Mutual Funds 271,430 203,579
Corporate Bonds 351,554 137,370
Stocks 391,921 122,625
TOTAL INVESTMENT FUNDS $ 2,046,556 % 1,940,575

INVESTMENTS RECONCILIATION _

Permanently Restricted Assets $ 303,243 % 303,243
Investments oy 1,743,313 1,637,332

$ 2046556 § °  1,940575°

TOTAL INVESTMENTS

[ O A
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“MICHAEL DUNN FOUNDATION, INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS \ =
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
NOTE C —~ INVESTMENTS — Continued
Investment returns are made up of the folllowi'ng'i .
JUNE 30, 2014 JUNE 30, 2013
(AUDITED) (UNAUDITED)
INVESTMENT RETURNS ™
Gain (Loss) on Sale of investments $ 17,253 $ 14,329
Unrealized Gain (Loss) Investments 36,659 (57,587)
Dividends 58,207 67,443
Investment Expense (6.138) {7,297)
105,981 $ 16,888

TOTAL INVESTMENT GAINI(LOSS) $

NOTED - RESTRICTED ASSETS

Permanently restricted net assets are cdonations lhat are restricted In terms of the principal. Temporarily
restricted net assets are available for split-interest agreements.

NOTE E - INSURANCE

Itis the policy of the organization to pL rchase commercial insurance for the risks of losses to which ilis

exposed. These risks include general liability, property, and casualty Settled clalms have not exceeded this
commercial coverage in any of the paet three fiscal years,

NOTEF - NET ASSETS

Net assets represent the difference beiween a nonprofit organization's assets and liabilities. |n accordance
with FASB ASC 958-205 (formerly kfiown as SFAS No. 117) net assets are classified into one of the lollowing
three categories depending on the absence or presence and nature of donor-impased restrictions.

JUNE 30, 2014  JUNE 30, 2013
(AUDITED)  (UNAUDITED)

CATAGORIES OF ASSETS
$ 4648860 §  4,318.750

a. Unrestricted Net Assels, which are not restricled by donors or by law.

b. Temporarily Restricted Net Assets, whose use has been limiled by donor-

imposed lime restrictions or purpose restrictions. 50,141 51,141
c. Permanently Reslricted Net Assets, which have been restricted by donor or

by law to be maintained by the organization in perpetuity. 303,243 303,243

3 5,002,244 § 4,673,134

TOTAL

NOTE G — FAIR VALUE FINANCIALINSTRUMENTS
The following methods and assumptions were used by the Foundation in estimating the fair value of ils
financial instruments: 3 A

Cash and cash equivalents — The cafrying amount reported in the sltatement of financial
position approximates fair value due to the short maturity of those instruments.

10>
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‘MICHAEL DUNN FOUNDATION, INC.
NOT ES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
" JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013 :

NOTE G — FAIR VALUE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS- Continued .

Accounts payable < The carrying amount reported in the statement of financial posilion
approximates fair value using applicable mortality tables.

Investments ~ The Tair value of investments in marketable equity and debt securitiesis based
on quoted market prices for identical assets. The valuations of the Foundation’s investments

according to the fair value hierarchy are all Level 1 inputs.

NOTE H - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

The Foundation provides funds for the enhancement of the developmentally disabled for Michael Dunn
Center. The foundation provides residential housing leases which are cancelable with a term of one year.
Land, buildings and equipment under operating leases was $2,571,970 and $2,333,569 at June 30,2014 and
2013, respectively. Accumulated defireciation on assets under operating leases was $455,256 and $369,333
al June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The residential houses are leased by a related party, the Michael
Dunn Center. As of June 30, 2014 the annual rent payments are $117,600.

The Foundation received a ddnation of tand valued at $200,000 in Augusl 2013 from the Industrial
Development Board of Roane County. The Michael Dunn Center is located on this land.

NOTE |- SPLIT-INTEREST AGREEMENT

The Foundation administers a charltable remainder trust. The charitable remainder trust provides for the
payment of distributions to the grantors over the beneficiary's lifetime an amount equal to 7.5% of the initial
net fair market value of all the property transferred to the trust. At the end of the beneficiary's lifetime, the
remaining assets are available for the Foundation's use. The portion of the trust attributable to the present -
value of the future benefits received by the Foundation is recorded in the Statement of Activities asa
temporarily restricted contribution.in the period the trust is established. Such contributions totaled $0at June
30, 2014 and 2013. Asseis held in the charilable remainder trusls totaled $119,538 and $111,224 al June 30,
2014 and 2013 and are reported at fair market value in the Foundation’s Statement of Financial Posilion, On
an annual basis, the Foundation may. revalue the liabilily to make distributions to the designated beneliciaries
based on acluarial assumplions. The present value of the estimated future payments ($26,175 at June 30,
2014 and $33,560 at June 30, 2013) is calculated using the discount rate and actuarial assumptions provided

in the Internal Revenue Service guidelines and actuarial tables.

NOTE J - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Foundation has adopted FASB-ASC-820 (formerly SFAS No. 157), Fair Value Measurements. FASB-
ASC-820 defines fair value as the prrde that would be received lo sell an asset or paid to ransier a liability in

an orderly lransaction between market participanis al the measurement date.

Management assesses the inputs used lo measure fair value using a three-tier hierarchy based on the extent

to which inputs used in measuring fair vaiue are observable in the market. Level 1 inputs are quoted market
prices for identical instruments in an aciive market that the entity has the ability to access and are the most
observable. Level 2 inpuls are based on quoted prices in markels that are not aclive or for which all significant
inpuls are observable, directly or indirecily. Level 3inputs are not observable in the market and include
management's judgments about the assumptlons market parllcupants would use in prlcmg the asselor

liability.

Beneficial interest in irrevocable trusts is vélued al Ehe rélr vaIUe 6f the trust ihvestmehts determined by the
closing price reported on the actlve or obqervable market on which the mdwndual securities that are heId in the

trust are traded.

joH
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“MICHAEL DUNN FOUNDATION, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
" . JUNE30, 2014 AND 2013 ~

NOTE K - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Y ) -
The Foundation's management has!evaluated events and transactions through September 25, 2&14. the date
the financial statements are available to be issued for items that should potentially be recognized or

disclosed. ¢
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MICHAEL DUNN FOUNDATION, INC.
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

JUNE 30, 2014
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MICHAEL DUNN FOUNDATION, INC.

CAPITAL ASSETS, NOT BEING DEPRECIATEb:

- Land
Total Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated

- CAPITAL ASSETS, BEING DEPRECIATED:
- - Building :
Improvements
= . Equipment
-+ Total Assets, Being Depreciated
= LESS ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION FOR:
Building and Improvements
Equipment
- Total Accumulated Depreciation

LESS RESTRICTED FIXED ASSETS:

CAPITAL ASSETS, NET

See independent auditor's report,

JUNE 30, 2014

-

SCHEDULE OF FIXED ASSETS AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

BALANCE
BALANCE JUNE 30,

JULY 1, 2013  ADDITIONS RETIREMENTS 2014
336,912 3 336,912
336,912 0 0% 336,912

\ -

1,821,588 200,000 $§ 2,021,588
174,207 38,401 212,608
862 0] 0 862
1,996,657 238,401 0 § 2,235058
368,471 85,923 § 454,394
862 0 0 862
369,333 85,923 0 § 455,256
0 0 03 0
1,964,236 162,478 0§ 2,116,714
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\
MICHAEL DUNN FOUNDATION, INC.
SCHEDULE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
JUNE 30, 2014
NAME POSITION
CRES WREIRY .....voveeeevereesieessessessiesssesssssesssessss s st ssss s ssses st sbesbas st ensssassssssssssesssnees Chairman
RON BIaNCRANd........cooeerniernnnnnen i smaabiis s ohss b a3 sk o ian ds o mha d4aaR a0 G h R A a5 Board Member
Debbie AleXander-Davis..........c.cccovicimreiicrmmememmemsass s sressssonssssssssanssassssansns Board Member
Ted BOWETS avsuisuaiveasisiisssisssisssisnsisasssanisnsrasss sdssisai svesessessissinsss isaosessssysiisastsvsesenss Board Member
Gail Christian........... '"m“"“muuum;uan; .................................................................. Board Member
RICNEIS BVANS ...vvoov i e e et ekt bss st essssssnsen BOBID Member
Bill LUEKING ..vvvvvvvevsessrerecsssasnsessesssenssnns M. Geeenel..... S m— Board Merhber
DEDDIE NOITIS.....coiireeireeiiiirreecereeeatessrneetrririeseessenre s eresso s asseassrssvosteessnssresansstosns Bo&dMemba
JIM PINKEIION e et b e e s sbe st e s bt srnsas s srsesnaas Board Member
Lana Selvers ........................................................ Board Member
John Smith.. ) : ........ f.....:................_.Bqard Member
Sharon Templeton..............cceevenee. HoeelleReellerseees feree reermemereessseresre Board Mémber
WWEYNE TIDPS veveerveriiieisiresceessssinssessessrssssassssrss sevsstsssasasonsassssssmesss rrereeeareaebeerereans ‘Board Member
JUAHth Ty isvaimii e siitisnsnss s ieisniassirinabsinsss Eyocspara s i i voninis Board Member
Harriett Westmoreland..................... ........................................................................ Board Member
Mike MCEIhINNeY ........coccovvivieimcreieieninasionee e —— e, President & C.E.O

See independent audilor's report.
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Michael Dunn Cenler

Balance Sheet

For the Twelve Months Ending June 30, 2015

ASSETS

Cash and Short Term Investments:
CASH
PETTY CASH
INVESTMENTS

Total Cash and Short Term Investments
Other Current Assets:
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

PREPAID EXPENSES
. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Total Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets:

Property Plant & Equipment:
LAND :
BUILDINGS

EQUIPMENT

VEHICLES

Total Properly Plant & Equipment

Total Accumulated Depreciation
Net Fixed Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current Liabilities:
‘ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
WAGES PAYABLE
PAYROLL LIABILITIES

Tolal Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Stockholders' Equity
CURRENT YEAR NET INCOME
FUND BALANCE

Total Stockholders' Equity

Total L.Iabilitles and Stockholders' Equity

ATTACHMENT 8

1 9

108

YTD

$805,641.45
800.00
50.00

806,491.45

1,734,536.92
13,619.50
320.00

1,748,476.42

2,554,967.87

20,000.00
1,910,423.25
601,622.76
2,068,811.11

4,600,857.12
(4,010,081.57)

590,775.55

$3,145,743.42

$194,650.81
527,312.33
30,308.87

752,273.01

752,273.01

(292,806.89)
2,686,277.30

2,393,470.41

$3,145,743.42

SECTION G, ITEMS 8 AND 10 ECONOMIC FEASILITY
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Michael Dunn Center
For the Twelve Months Ending June 30, 2015
INCOME STATEMENT

CURRENT YTD

INCOME
State & Federal Contracls
School Contracts
Other Contracts
Local Funds
Grant income
Fees & Rents
Sales
Other Income

TOTAL INCOME

EXPENSES

“~Salarles

Benefils & Taxes
TOTAL PERSONNEL

" Professional Fees

Supplies

Telephone

Postage & Shipping
Occupancy

Equipment Rental & Maint.
Printing & Publlcations
Travel, Conf & Meetings
Insurance

SR Wages & Benefits
Depreciation

. Other Non Personnel
ltems For Resale
Equipment

TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES
TOTAL EXPENSES
NET INCOME

P

$1,073,037.11

$10,060,444.44

2,000.00 439,812.71
3,976.00
1,433.95 88,459.88
5,000.00 5,000.00
. 28,146.43 473,414.58
111,443.95 815,270.50
53,647.95 133,605.29
©4,274,709.39 12,019,083,40
640,823.17 8;031,429.60
119,754.95 1,437,448.14
760,578.12 9,468,877.74
43,570.74 483,618.95
24,015.25 474,815.64
4,791.79 73,722.40
2,006,15° 9,403.04
36,811.73; 331,644.19
_ 1.768.05
: 4,207.12
. 80,945.48 587,469.39
5,728.54 68,662.91
16,541.22 195,870.91
5,442.28 65,307.23
3,618.01 165,734.59
14,938.87 40,611.76
(18,718.12)
' 219,691.94 2,502,836.18
980,270.06 11,971,713.92
264,439.33 48,269.48

/10
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Contribution to the Orderly Development of Healthcare 7
PRINTED: 08/04/2014

OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES FORN APPROVED
. MEDICARE & MEDICAID SERVICES OMB NQ. 0938-0391
i:‘;{\)'rgs\sm ,(_)F DEFICIENCIES (X1) PROVIDERISUPPLIER/CLIA (X2) MULTIPLE CONSTRUCTION () DATE SURVEY
N OF 3 g Jik . =
OF CORRECTION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER: A. BUILDIMG 02 - MAIN COMPLETED
44G094 : 8. WING 07/30/2014
NAME OF PROVIDER OR SUPPLIER STREET ADDRESS, CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE
: L ACE
MICHAEL DUNN CENTER JULIA CAILLIOUETTE ) 106 VILLAGE TR
e KINGSTON, TN 37763
(X4) 1D SUMMARY STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES 0 PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CORRECTION x5
PREFIX (EACH DEFICIENCY MUST BE PRECEDED'BY.FULL PREFIX (EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION SHOULD BE COMPLETION
TAG REGULATORY OR LSC IDENTIFYING INFORMATIOM) TAG CROSS-REFERENCED TO THE APPROPRIATE DATE;
DEFICIENCY)
K0046 | 483.470()(1)(i) LIFE SAFETY CODE STANDARD' K0o46
L . . i ’ ) 9-1-14
Utilities comply with Section 8.1. 32.2;5.1, ‘ All dampers will be inspected and ssmced
33.2.5.1 ) during the week of 8-10-14 by Central Cily

Healing and Air. Two new fire damper
diffusers were ordered and will be instelled
by 9-1-14. A copy of the completed work

This STANDARD is not met as evidenced by: order will be forwarded to the inspeclor
Based on observation, record review, ard The MDC Engineering Department wifladd
interview, it was determined that the facility failed Damper Maintenance to their electronic

to have fire dampers serviced and msialled in all tracking calendar for every four years.

locations.

The findings include;

Observation, record review, and interview with the
maintenance director on July 30, 2014 at-10:00
a.m. revealed no 4-year fire damper maintenance
has been conducled and the clean linen supply
closet air supply regisler is not provided with a fire
damper.

NFPA 90A 3-4.7

These findings were verified by the malnt_:e,nance
director and acknowleciged by the house
manager during the exit conference on July 30,

2014, :
K0051 | 483.470()(1)(i) LIFE SAFETY CODE STANDARD K0051| Deflector shieids will be added lo each dilfuser
' that has a smoke detector within three Yeet .

of it. This will be a permanent correction.

9-1-14

A manual fire alarm syslem is provided i m

accordance with Section 9.6, 33.2.3.4.1, _f\

{
Exception No 1: Where there are interconnzcted :
smoke detectors meeling the requuremenls of |
33.2.3.4.3 and lhere is not less than one manual i
fire alarm box per floor arranged to conhnucusly i
sound the smoke deteclor alarms. _ |

§iés

L Exception No. 2: Other manually aclivaled’ l

LABORATORY DIRECTOR'S OR PROVIDER/ISUPPLIER REPRESENTATIVE'S SIGMATURE TITLE (X6) DATE
g — ’ -t 3 < N
N Cy, - COERL YL )W Predident) CES

Any deficiancy siatement ending with an asl_en';\'("}. n:noles a deficigney which the In-i.tiuh"un may hex:cused from correcling providing It is determlned thzl

ather saleguards pravicle sulficient proleclion ta the ? patignts . (Sce il:s!mrtmns ) Except far nursing hornes, the lindings slated above 2ce disclosable 80 days

lollowing the dale of survey whelher or nol a plan of caggelion is pmulr ed, Fornursing homes, the above findings and plans of correction are disclosable 14

Jays following the date these documents are macde aveilable lo ihe facilily, i deficlencies are tited, an approved plan of coirection is requlsitz lo conlinued

srogram parlicipation,

‘ORM CMS-2567{02-99) Previous Versions Olsolele :  Ewenl ID:PTGL21 Facility 1D: THP53823 I continualion sheel Page 1 of 2

ATTACHMENT 15 SECTION C, CONTRBUTION TO THE ORDERLY DEVELOPMENT OF HEALTHCARE, ITEM 7D
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MEDICAID SERVICES

111

PRINTED: 08/04/2014
FORM APPROVED

0MB NO. 0938-0391

iLll\DT’E{/IAENT OF DEFICIENCIES {X1) PROVIDER/SUPALIERICLIA (X2) MULTIPLE CONSTRUCTION (K3} DATE SURVEY
N OF ENTIF . D
CORRECTION lDENTIrIC/\TION{:@!UMBER. A, BUILDING 02 - MAIN COMPLETE|
44Ggs4 B. VING 07/30/2014
NAME OF PROVIDER OR SUPPLIER ' STREET ADDRESS, CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE
i 106 VILLAGE TRACE
MICHAEL DUNN CENTER JULIA CAILLIOUETTE P
KINGSTON, TN 37763
(Xd) 10 SUMMARY STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES D PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CORRECTION x5)
PREFIX (EACH DEFICIENCY MUST BE PRECEDED;BY FULL PREFIX (EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION SHOULD BE e
TAG REGULATORY OR LSC IDENTIFYING INFORMATION) TAG CROSS-REFERENCED TO THE APPROPRIATE N
; DEFICIENCY)
~
9-1-14
K0051 [ Continued From page 1 K0051 Keys have been made and placed onalab

continuously sounding alarms acceptable to the
authority having jurisdiction.

This STANDARD is nol met as evidenced by:
Based on observation and interview, it was
determined that staff was nol provided wlth keys
lo activale manual fire alarm pull stations.,

The findings include:

Observation and interview with the housé
manager on July 30,-2014 at 10:05 a.m. revealed
not all staff members are provided with a-fire
alarm key to aclivale the manual fire alarm pull
stations. The manual fire alarm pull stations are
only key operated lo sclivate the fire alarm
NFPA 101 9.6.2.6

This finding was verified by mainlenance director
and acknowledged by the house manager during
the exit conference on July 30, 2014. :

of each month.

'
i

near each pull stalion. Nurses will do avisua
check at the change of each shift to ensure
that the key is in place. This will be vesied
on a shiit count sheel that will then t{e wmed)
into the nursing office codrdinator at the end

|

“ORM CMS-2567(02-93) Pravious Versions Obsolela

Zyenl ID: PTGL21T

Facility (D: THP52823

|22

If conlinustisn sheel Page 20of 2
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] PRINTED: 08/04/2014
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES FORM APPROVED
CENTERS FOR MEDICARE & MEDICAID SERVICES OMB NO, 0938-0391
STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES (X1) PROVIDER/SUPPLIERICLIA (X2) MULTIPLE COMSTRUCTION (%)) DATE SURVEY
AND PLAN OF CORRECTION IDENTIFICATION HUMBER: AT COMPLETED
44G094 B. WING 0712312014
MAME OF PROVIDER QR SUPPLIER STREET ADDRESS, CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE
MICHAEL DUNN CENTER JULIA CAILLIOUETTE ' 108 VRLAGE TRAGE
- KINGSTON, TN 37763
(X4) ID SUMMARY STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES ) PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CORRECTION (x8)
PREFIX (EACH DEFICIENCY MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL PREFIX (EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION SHOLILD 8§ COMPLETION
TAG REGULATORY OR LSC IDENTIFYING INFORMATION;) TAG CROSS-REFERENCED TO THE APPROPRIATE BATE
DEFICIENCY)
w2 SLAR -20-
11| 483.440(c)(3) INDIVIDUAL PROGRAM P‘_.LAN W2t ganavior support plans (BSP's)for al 9-20-14
The comprehensive functional assessmeht must glists vs'/ho ha'v e be'en duscharge.d fror:
take into consideralion the client's age (for BA,SFN ices will bs Incarporated {n(o the
example, child, young adull, elderly person) and l"d“"d”?' P rogram Plan ("? P) using age
the implications for active treatment at each appropriate verbiage. All client IPP's and
stage, as 4 associated plans will be reviewed by the QIDP
appilicable. (Qualified Intellectual Disabilities Profesgional) | «
and updated with age appropriale lerminology
. ) and plans.
This STANDARD is not met as evidenced:by: Client #2 has been discharged from BA services.
Based on record review and interview, the facility Her BSP will be discussed with the COS
failed to ensure the Balhavior SL[ppcrI F'Iai_f\ (BSP) (Circle of Support), chosen parts will be
contained age appropriate wording and acfivities g ted into her IPP and staff
for one (#2) of two clients sampled. i v . |nc{01:pora .e il "
’ ; training will be completed.
The findings included: All ptan documents for all clients in the
2 home will be reviewed annually by the
Record review of Client #2’s BSP, daled March 7, CQOS at the annual IPP meeling to ensure plans
2011, revealed “(Client #2) will use chew l"'cﬁys and have age appropriate verbiage.
other non-harmful objects 100% of the lime’ All new plans will be reviewed for age
(Client #2) is engaging in seli-stimulation appropriateness and amended if needed
behaviors.” Further review revealed “(Client #2) by the nursing office coordinator.
:J;;!}lli be offerTq Eho!ﬁes ;DL a:iiwills.;s llDFplg::’ Ongoing management inspections will
chew on which will not be harmiul."Furiher i )
% | I ensure
review revealed “staff should offer (Clienl #2) an 'T‘C'“de 'a { puwvioiithe) IRFpisnste
alternalive object to place in (Clienl #2's) moulh, approprialeness.
bul won't harm (toy keys, chew toy, elc.)." :
Interview with the Director of Health Services
{DHS) on July 23, 2014, al 11:00 a.m., in the
facility's clinic confirmed Client #2's BSP !
contained non age-appropriate wording. Ftrlher y
inlerview confirmed the DHS has discussed the . AN
problem with the Behavior Analysis agency, but
has nol been able to get them to change the, -
wording. v
W 247 | 483.440(c)(6)(vi) INDIVIDUAL PROGRAM PLAN W 247
i -
0 {
The Individual program plan must include  * ]
\HSRSFORY. grﬂsé:{orrs OR PROVIDERISUPPLIER REPRESENTATIVE'S SIGNATURE TITLE 4 (X6) DATE
S T A e % ) b -
m“ N o A R L Prestdert\ CEQ

w deficlency stalement ending wilh an aslerf;ict(‘}dshnuics a deficiency which the inslilu[iu‘r\ma'; be excusad from correcting providing it i.s delermined that
'er safeguards provide stificient protection to Iﬁi:.;panr\nls - (See insiryclions.) Excepl for nursing homes, the findings staled above are disclosable 90 days
lawing the date of survey whethar or not a plan of caréclion is provided, For nutsing homes, the abave findings and plans of correction are disciosable 14
ys fallowing the date these dociifients are made available lo the iacilily. Ii deiiciencics are clled, an approved plan of correclion Is requisile lo continued

wyrarn pacicipalion,
If continualion sheel Page 1 of 12

Euel 10:; P7GLI Gaciiity ID: TNPS3023

[

R CiNS-2567(02-99) Previous Versions Qbsolate



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVIGES

113

o, -
PRINTED: 08/04/2014

FORM APPROVED
OMB NO. 0938-0391

opportunities for client choice and
self~-management.

This STANDARD is not met as evidenced by:
Based on observation, record review and:
interview, the facility failed lo provide choices for
lwo (#1, #2) of two sampled clients.

The findings included:

Observation on July 21, 2014, from 3:40 p.m. to
5:25 p.m., at the client 's residence revealgd
Client #1 alternating belween walking around the
inside the residence or sitting on the couch in the
living room. Further observation from 5:29 p. m to
5:44 p.m,, in the dmlng room, revealed Dirsct
Support Professuonal #3 (DSP #3) brought a
pre-plated meal and pre-poured drink to the table
for Client #1. Continued observalion revealed
Client #1 was not offered any cholce In food or
drink during the dinner meal. Conlinue
observation revealed Client #1 silling on thé
couch in the living room from 5:45 p.m. t0'6.06
p.m. Conlinued observation revealed no chicices
of actlivilies were offered lo Client #1 clurmg lhls :

lime.

Observalion on July 21, 2014, from 4:00 p.m. lo
4:33 p.m., al the client's residence revealed Client
#2 allernaling between walking around the’ inside
of the house and sitting in the rocking chalr ifi the
living room. Further observation from 4:33 p.m. lo
4:50 p.m. revealed DSP #2 [ollowed Client #22
oulside lo sit at the waler lable. Continued .
observation revealed Client #2 splashing in the
waler, Further observation from 5:00 p.m. to 5:29
p.m., revealed Cliant #2 sitling in the resrclence s
sensory room flipping through a magazine.
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W 247 | Continued From page 1 W 247 Each client will be reweweq in the Aclive 9-20-14
Treatment team meeting on 8-20-14 to

determine appropriale categories and

number of choices for each client in the

homs. it will be determined it the person

can best make choices verbally, by picture
book or by another method. Picture books
offering choices will be made for those

who will communicate best by that method.
The COS will be notified of the changes and
asked to participate in the creation of ths books.
The pictures will be changed out periodically to feflect
seasonal activities, clothing and food optlians.
The IPP's will be amended, Staff training for
each individual will occur,

The house manager, two assistant house
managers, the slaff RN, the QIDP will monilor
that choices are offered according to each
individuals IPP. tf needed, immediate correclion
additional training and or employee

coaching will occur.

Methods of determining if the plans to offer
clienls choices will be evalualed by the QIDP
during the monthly

review process along with communication
with the house managers and direct suppor siafl,
Methods thal are nol effeclive will be modified ahd

re-evaluated by the same process.

-
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Further observalion from 5:29 p.m. to 5: 39 p.m.,

in the dining room, revealed DSP #2 brotight a
pre-plated meal and pre-poured drink to the table
for Client #2. Conlinued observalion revealad
Client #2 was not offered any choice in focd or
drink during he dinner meal, Further observation
on July 21, 2014, from 5:39 p.m. to 6:06 p.m.
revealed Client #2 sltting In ihe residence’s
sensory room flipplng through a magazine. -
Continued observation revealed no choices of
activilies offered to Client #2 during this ti_g'\e.
Observalion on July 22, 2014, from 9:04 a .. to
11:20 a.m,, at lhe clienl's residence reveated
Client #1 Iymg on the love seat in the IMng room.
sleeping on and off. Continued observatlon
revealed Client #1 sat up to receive medication at
9.09 a.m. and laid back down. Further
observation on July 22, 2014, from,9:04 a.r\. lo

11:20 a.m. revealed no choices of acliwhes" oe:ng'

offered to Client #1.

Qbservalion on July 22, 2014, from 8:35 a.m. to
9:04 a.m, revealed Client #2 walking arourid he
inside of the residence followed by DSP #1,
Further observation from 9:30 a.m. to 11:20 a.m.
revealed Client #2 alternating between walking
inside the residence or sitling in the sensory room
with a magazine flipping through the pages
Furlher observation on July 22, 2014, from B 35"
a.m. to 11:20 a.m. revealed no choices of ~
aclivities being offered to Client #2.

Record review of Client #1's Individual Program
Plan (iPP), dated February 26, 2014, confirmed
"pacing/anxious behaviors maybe signs (Cltcnl
#1) needs a change in environment or work o
energy with some aclive aclivilies such as,
walking in the neighborhood, or doing other, .

(This page intentionally left blank)
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aclivities (Client #1) enjoys."
; (This page intentionally left blank)
Record review of Ciient #1's Behavior Sypport
Plan, dated October 18, 2012, revealed "staff
should provide adequate time and options lo
(Client #1) of activities to parlicipate and, (C,henl
#1) enjoys. (Only provide (Client #1) a cholce
between two aclivities/tangibles as (Client #1)
may become anxious if there are too many
choices).” Further record review revealed, “ask
(Client #1) if there is anything (Client #1) wanls :
and/or needs frequenily." : '
Interview with the Assistant House Manager #1 v “
(AHM #1) on July 21, 2014, at 4:01 p.m. in'the
client's living room confirmed Client #1 is/& "loner"
and Client #2 "chooses" to walk around th: house
often.

Interview with the House Manager (HM) on July
21, 2014, at 4:20 p.m. in the kitchen of the'client's
home revealed the nutritionist develops the -
menus, the menus are on a six week rolation.
Further interview confirmed Client #1 and Clienl
#2 were nol offered any choices during lhe dinner

meal.

Inlerview with DSP #3 on July ?1 2014, al 5:14
p.m. in the client's living room confirmed Client ##1
"likes to be on the move” and Clienl #1 “chgoses”
lo walk around. &
Interview wilh the Nursing Office k]
Coordinator/Qualilied (ntellectual DlsabllltIE°
Professional (QIDP) on July 23, 2014, at 11:00
a.m., in the facilily's cfinic confirmed Client#1 -
should have been offeced a choice of activilies.

Interview with the Direclor of Health Services

I conlinuicn sheet Page 4 of 12
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Continued From page 4

(DHS) on July 23, 2014, at 11:00 a.m., in *he
facility's clinic confrrmed il Client #1 “chooses" lo
take a nap, it's acceptable.

Record review of Client #2's Behavior Support.
Plan, daled March 7, 2011, revealed "Proactive
procedures: Offer choices of activities (Client #2)
can play with/chew on which will not be harmful.”
Continued review revealed "Sensory-stlmulatlon
aclivities: Provide (Client #2) with a wide array of
sensory-slimulation activities throughoul lhe. day.
Conduct preference assessments by letting
(Client #2) chose between two ilems each nay "

Interview with DSP #2 on July 21, 2014, ald a3 .
p.m. oulside on the patio of the clienl's residence -
confirmed Client #2 has "free choice" bafore and

afler dinner.

Interview with the House Mianager (HM) and the
Asslstant House Manager #1 (AHM #1) on"July
22, 2014, at 10:45 a.m., in lhe office at the .
residence confirmed clients have “"free cho!ce"
when they are home, Further inlerview revezied
oulings are chosen by staff.
Interview with the Nursing Office 3
Coordinator/Qualified Intellectual Dlsablllhes
Professional {QIDP) on July 23, 2014, al 11:00
a.m., in the facility's clinic confirmed Client #2
should have been offered a choice of activilies.
483.440(d)(1) PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION

As soon as lhe inlerdisciplinary leam has
formulated a clienl's individual program plan
each clienl must receive a conlinuous aclive
trealment program consisling of needed
interventions and services in sufiicient number

o) PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CORRECTION
PREFIX (EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION SHOULD BE
TAG CROSS-REFERENCED TO THE APPROPRIATE oATE
DEFICIENCY)
W 247
(This page intentionally lefl blank)
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and frequency to support the achievement of the Clothing protectors will nol be placed on
objeclives idenlified in the individual progr‘am the table, under the plate, or otherwise, for
plan. i any clienls, including client #2. This has
been specifically addressed to all employses
in a house meeling by the QIPD on 8-12-14,
The house manager, two assistant house
'I!'Bhis SdTAND:RD is nol mel as ewdenced by: managers, the staff RN and the QIDP wil
ased on observation, record review and’ monilor employees' performance for the
interview, the facilily failed to provide continuous correct use of modalities. program plans
aclive Ireatment for one (#2) of two samplad . . PICOFEINEP SIS,
clients. i and adaptive equipment. Since the survey,
I the QIDP has been promoted to an
The findings included: : B assistant director position and will have lhe
authority lo provide immediate training or
Observation on July 21, 2014, at 5:29 p.m, in the employee correction If needed.
residence's dining room revealed Client #2 sitting
al the dining room table for the evening megal. Four employee interviews will be conducted
Continued observation revealed Client #2 had & .. per month at the home on random plans lo
clolthmg protector appflied; the tail of the clothmg' ensure employees know the plans they are
pro ectpr was placed on the table with the. cilent's implementing. Interviews will be conducted
non- slip mat and plate on top of the clothing \ <
RO by supervisor fevel employees-and above.
protector. . .
Employee training will be conducted if
Observation on July 22, 2014, at 8:09 a.m. i the CE Sl s U LS U
resiclence's dining room revealed Client #2 sitling Follow up supervision will then take place.
at the dining room table for breakiast. Conlinued
abservalion revealed Client #2 had a clothigg Four direct observalions of employees
prolector applied; the tail of the clothing pmt’ector implementing plans will be completed
was placed on the table wilh the client's non® slip each month by supervisory (or above)
mat under the protector and the client's plnle on employees. The plans will be chosen
top of the clathing prolecior. : randomly and any concerns will be correcled
i . - W i i ith further training lo follow
Record review of Clienl #2's dining plan, daled f:ndm:adual‘elydv‘/lt:: i i
November 17, 2013, revealed an adaptive : ! ) € grmlne = ess_a b
equipment list inclucled the use of a non-slip mal. (Conlinued on page 7)
Interview with Direct Support Staff #1 (DSP_(#T) i
on July 22, 2014, at 8:35 a.m. in the residence's |
Sensory Room confirmecdl it was "lypical” to pul | |
Everdt ID:PTGLIG Foaciliy ID: THP53823 If confinuation sheet Page: G of 12
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Continued From page 6
the clothing prolector on the tablé,

Interview with the Director of Health Services
(DHS) on July 23, 2014, at 9:30 a.m. outside of
the DHS's office confirmed the purpose of the
non-slip mat was to prevent lhe client's plate from
sliding, Further interview confirmed using the
non-slip mal under or on top of the clothing
protector placed on the lable would not prevent
the plate from sliding. Furiher inlerview confirmed
stafi had been frained not to put the prolecturs on
the table under the client's plates. .'
Observation on July 21, 2014, at 5:26 pm in
residence's sensory room revealed Client#2
siting in a recliner flipping through a magazine in
Client #2's lap. Further observation at 5:28 p.m.
revealed dinner being placed on the dining room
lable and clienls were encouraged lo go 1o the
dining room to eal. Further observation revealed
Client #2 walking from the sensory room to the :
dining room withou! washing hands. ) <
Record review of Client #2's Individual Support
Plan (1SP), dated November 17, 2013, revealed a
personal outcome of "(Client #2) participates in
hygiene activities lo be as independent as
possible, (Client #2) pushes the soap dispenser
while washing hands daily before breakfasl
lunch, and dinner."

Interview with the Nursing Office
Coordinator/Qualified Intellectual Dlsablhhes
Prolessional (QIDP) on July 23, 2014, at 11;00
a.m., in the facility's clinic confirmed CllenH
should have washed hands prior to sutlmq at the
dining room table jor dinner.

483.440(i)(3)(ii) PROGRAM I\/IONITORING &

|

The QIDP will review the interviews and"

W 248observalions documented on the Management
Inspeclion Checklist (altached) and develop lurth

training if determined necessary.

All clients will be encouraged and assisled
with washing their hands before every meal
Hand sanilizing wipes will be offered when
clients refuse to wash their hands or are
ealing at a location without a sink (ie: picnk).
Clients who chose not to wash their hands

W 263

|
;‘

.

i)

will continue to be encouraged al every mesl.

r
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W 263 | Continued From page 7 W 263| Ali Clients, including client #2 will have thei

CHANGE

The commiltee should insure that these programs
are conducted only with the wrillen informed -
consenl of the cfient, parenls (if the cllent Is2
minor) or legal guardian.

This STANDARD is not met as evidenced by:
Based on record review and interview, the.
facility's Human Rights Committee (HRC) failed
to ensure programs with rights restnc{mns. are
conducled only with wrillen informed consenl of .
the client, parenls or legal guardian, for ane (#2)
of iwo clients sampled.

The findings included:

Record review of Client #2's HRC Meeling,
Minules, dated October 22, 2013, revealed.Client
#2's conservalor was not in attendance. Fuﬂher
review of the HRC Meeting Minutes revealed
verbal consent was given for "the use ol an adult’

stroller with a seatbell for long distances in‘the -

communily, door chimes, medications and
hazardous malerials are»locked storage roem
and kitchen locked and the use of a video and
audio monitor in (Client #2's) room."

Review of Client #2's Consent for Reslriclive
Infervenlion form revealed an undaled signature

from conservator.

Inlerview wilh the Director of Quality Assurance
July 23, 2014, al 12:15 p.m., in the main office
clinic, via phone confirmed the facility's HRC
allows verbal consent from lhe conservatorwhen
conservalor is unable to atlend the meelin .
Further interveiw confirmed the writlen congenl.

i
]

restrictions reviewed before the HRC panel =
in September, 2014. The conhsenl forms *
will be reviewed one week prior to the HRC
meeling to ensure compleleness. Nlems
that do not have conservator consent will
not be reviewed. If there are restrictions that
do not have consent due to the conservalor
not replying at all lo lhe request, a certified

.| letter will be mailed requesting either signed
consenl or a meeting lo explore olher oplions
for the client. New restrictions will not be
implemented unlil both conservator consent
and HRC approval have been oblained.
For ongoing reslriclions (such as door
chimes), the consent will be discussed and
oblained in each annual ISP meeting.

New restrictions throughout the year will
nol be implemented without writlen consent
and HRC approval unless the person is in
imminent danger without il. An emergency
COS will then be held to evaluate the
sltuation and obtain consent.

The HRC Coordinator will not present

any reslriction to the panel without wrilten
consent,

The aclive treatmenl committee will evaluale
all restrictions for all clients quarterly

lo ensure no new restrictions have been
implemented without conservator consent
and committee approval, and to look at
the possible réduction of restrictions for
each person. The QIDP will supervise Lhis process
as well as the lracking of all reslrictions viz

Excel.

\ ' -
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was oblained after the reslrictions were i place. . .

W 267 | 483.450(a)(1) CONDUCT TOWARD CLIENT w 267 | Employee training will be completed on the | 9-20-14

The facility must develop and implement written
policies and procedures for the management of
conducl between stafi and clients. ;

This STANDARD is notl met as evidenced by:
Based on observation and inlerview, the*facilily
failed to provide dignity while eating for one (#2)
of two clients observed during meal times,

The findings included:

Observation on July 21, 2014, at 5:29 p.m., in the
home's dining room revealed Client #2 sitting at
the dining room table for the evening meal.
Continued observation revealed Client #2 had a
clothing protector applied; the tail of the clothing
proteclar was placed an the lable with the tliznl's
non-slip mat and plate on top of the clothing
protector.

Observation on July 22, 2014, al 8:09 a.m. in lhe
homes dining room revealed Client #2 sullng at
the dining room lable for breakfast. Conlinued
observation revealec Client #2 had a clothing
prolector applied; the lail of the clothing protector
was placed on the table with Ihe clienl ' s non-
slip mal under the proleclor and the client's:plate
on top of the clothing prolector.

Interview with Direct Support Slaff (DSP) #1 on
July 22, 2014 al 8:35 a.m. in the homes Sensory

Room confirmed it was 1 ypical” to put tht=
proteclor on lhe table.

MDC (Michael Dunn Center) Mission, Vision, an
A —

[

Values Statement, Expectations of
Employment, and lhe Right of !ndividuals
Supported Policy (see allached) on 9-9-14. All
three items will be discussed with each new employze.
A training that includes specific examplesof
how to treat a person with dignity will be cnducted
on 9-9-14 in a house meeting and then covered fin
new employee training for alt new employees.
The MDC employee evaluation process isbein
amended to reflect the employees' awareness
and implementation of rights, dignity and parso
centered praclices.

The house manager, assistant house managers
the staff RN, the QIDP as well as the MDC
management tleam will observe slaff interaclions
with the clienls and correct and concerning
behavior immediately. Management inspeclions
occur at one per year per person in the home.
Employees were trained on 8-5-14 via emaillo
make inilial changes regarding lhe correcluse
of the clothing proteclors, and appropriate age
related conversations etc.

This was addressed by the QIDP in a house
meeting on 8-12-14, and will be addressedmore
thoroughly at the 9-9-14 house meeling.

i
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W 267 | Continued From page 9 ; W 267
Inlerview with the Direclor of Health Serv;ces
(DHS) on July 23, 2014, at 9:30 a.m. ou{sm!e of
lhe DHS's office confirmed the slaff has been
lrained not to pul the proteclors on lhe tatls
under the Client's plates. Further Interview
confirmed the placing of the client's plates on the
clothing proteclors on the table failed to prowde \ o
9-20-14
the cllent with dignlty. Fire drill forms will be distributed to the homes
W 441 | 48347000 (1 Fire drill forms will be dis e _
470(i)(1) EVACUATION DRILLS Vg at the beginning of each month by the nursing

The facility must hold evacuation drills under
varied conditions.

This STANDARD is not mel as evidenced by:
Based on review of the Residential Fire Diill
Reports and interview, the facilily failed to.ensure
drills were held under varied conditions. ','.-_

The findings included:

Review of the Reslidential Fire Drill Reporls from
September 2013 through June 2014, revealed the
form did not provide a place to record the localion
of the emergency. Further review revealed the
form did nol document which exi the clienis*
ulilized during the emergency drill. :

Inlerview with the Nursing Office
Coordinalor/Qualified Intelleclual Dlsabllmes
Professional (QIDP) on July 23, 2014, at 11:00
a.m., in the clinic, confirmed the Residential Fire
Drill Report form did not contain an area fof-the
location of the emergency or the emergency exit
to be recarded. Further interview confirmed;:it

I

office coordinator with the alternaling fire lncatiohs,
client locations and weather conditions already
writlen in for the employees to follow, Siaf
training on how to utilize the new version ol the
evacualion drill form will be completed in the
9-9-14 house meeting.

The nursing office coordinator will review the
fire drill formis once completed to ensure

both varied conditions were followed and that
evacuation was achieved timely. If barriers are
noted she will immediately notify the house
manager and QIDP for addilional employee
training.

Al any time barriers are noted and additional
training or other intervention is needed, the QID
will nolify the Direclor of Health Services.

—

IRM CMS-2567(02-99) Pravious Versions Obsclele

{Ever tIO:PTGL 11

132

Facility 10; TNP£3823

If conlinualion sheel Page 10 of 12



122

\ BRINTED: 08/04/2014

DEPART MEANT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES FORN APPROVED
CENTERS FOR MEDICARE & MEDICAID SERVICES O0MB_NO. 0938-0391
STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES (X1) PROVIOER/SUPPLIERI/CUIA (X2) MULTIPLE COMSTRUCTION DATE SURVEY
AND PLAN OF CORRECTION IDENTIFICATION NUMBER: - MCOMPLETED
44G094 ; B. VNG 07/2312014
NAME OF PROVIDER OR SUPPLIER STREET ADDRESS, CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE
MICHAEL DUNN CENTER JULIA CAILLIOUETTE 10GVILLAGE TRACE
KINGSTON, TN 37763
(X4) 1D SUMMARY STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES D PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CORRECTION *s
PREFIX {EACH DEFICIENCY MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL PREFIX (EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION SHOULD BE COMPLETION
TAG REGULATORY OR LSC IDENTIFYING INFORMATION) TAG CROSS-REFERENCED TO THE APPROPRIATE 22
_ DEFICIENGY}
W 441 | Continued From page 10 W d41
would not be possible to identily where ihe Al clients will be encouraged and assisled |
emergency was located and how the individuals with washing their hands prior to every med,
exiled the home. Further interview confirined the and after every visit to the bathroom. Hand
QIDP only reviews the length of time the sanitizing wipes may be used for communly
evacuation took and to confirm there was a dill participalion times when a sink is nol avalshle
one shifl per month, or if a client refuses to wash their hands.
W 454 | 483, 470(1)(1) INFECTION CONTROL W 454 All employees will receive further training 9-20-14
on washing their own hands at appropriale

The facllity must provide a sanitary environment
to avoid sources and transmission of lnfer:[;ons

This STANDARD s not mel as evidenced by:
Based on observation and interview, the facility
failed lo keep sanitary condilions for one (#2) of
two clienls sampled and one (#3) of two cﬁe"nl-
un-sampled.

The findings included: '

Observalion on July 21, 2014, al 5:26 p.m., in the
residence sensory room revealed Client #2 sitting
in a recliner flipping through a magazine in Clienl
#2's lap. Further observation al 5:29 p.m.
revesled dinner being placed on the dlntng room
table and clients were encouraged lo go to the
dining room lo eal. Further observalion revealed
Client #2 walking from the sensory room to the
dining room withoul washing hands, -~ ’

Observation on July 21, 2014, at 5:25 p.m, in fhie "

living room of the clieni's home revealed Clienl #3

times. Hand-washing was covered In a hosse
meeting on 8-12-14 and the CDC reconimendations
for maintaining sanilary conditions will be
covered completely on 9-9-14, This Informslion
i$ already pari on the new employee trainmg
packel and is addressed verbally by the
nursing office coordinator.

The house manager, assistant house manzgers,
RN, shift supervisors and the managemenl
team will observe employees bolh in their
hand-washing, their support of the client in

his/ her hand-washing, and other sanitary
praclices. Concerns will be addressed immedial
Clients choosing to not wash their hands vil

bg offered and assisted with hand sanitizing
wipes each lime lhey reluse,

The Director of Heallh Services tracks and liend
all infections by person, home, and lype of
infeclion. 17 itis determined lhal a trend exisls,
{urther information will be sought to determine
the path that will best reduce the spread or
occurrence of infeclion.

The infeclion control spreadsheet is shared
with the incident management coordinator once
a2 month for commluee review and recommendaljon.

Y.

ORI4 CMS-2557(02-59) Previous Versions Obsolate

silting on the couch. Further obsarvation, at 5:26 i N
p.m. revealed Clienl #3 walking inlo the dining lo
move a chair up to the bar lo walch dinner being
made. Further observation at 5:29 p.m. revealed
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dinner being placed on lhe dining roomitable and
clients were encouraged to go to the dining raom
lo eat. Further observation revealed Cllenl #3
being assisted by putling the chair back'at the
lable and sitling al the table for dinner withoul
washing hands.

Interview with the Nursing Oifice -
Coordinator/Qualified Intellectual Disabilities
Professional (QIDP) on July 23, 2014, at 14:00
a.m., in the clinic confirmed Clients #2 ahd #3
should have washed hands prior to comlng to lhe
dining rocom fable for dinner. :
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9-1-14
K 130 | NFPA 101 MISCELLANEOUS K 130
: A concrele sidewalk will be added from e side exit
o of the home lo the sidewalk adjacent lothe parking
This STANDARD is nol mel as evidenced by: lot. It will be a broom brushed suriace. This will be a
Based on abservation, it was delermined thal the permanent correction.

facility did nol have an alI-wealhe( slip resislanl
surface provided for the exit discharge. '

The findings include:

Observalion on July 30, 2014 al 9:15 a.m. |
revealed the exil discharge from the corridor
where lhe house managers office is, is noj
provided with an all-weather slip resistant =urrace

lo the publlc way. N .
NFPA 101 7.1.6.4*
This finding was verified and acknowledged by i
the house manager during the exil conference on —
July 30, 2014.
K0046 483.470(j)(1)(i) LIFE SAFETY CODE STANDARD ' K0046 All dampers will be inspected and serviged
il : . ' i during the week of 8-10-14 by Centlral Ciy
Ulilities comply with Seclion 9.1. 32.2.5.1, Heating and Air. Two new fire damper
33.2.5.1 . diffusers were ordered and will be Installed

by 9-1-14. A copy of the compleled work
order will be lorwarded to the inspector.
The MDC Engineering Depariment will add

' W Damper Maintenance lo their eleclronic
This STANDARD is nol mel as evidenced by: tracking calendar for every four years.
Based on observation, record review, and .
interview, il was delermined that the facility: failec
lo have lire dampers serviced and inslalled i 2l
locations.

The findings include: !

Observation, record review, and inlerview with lhe
mainlenance direclor on July 30, 2014 al 10 00-
a.m. revezled no 4-year fire damper maintenance I l
has been conducled and the clzan linen supply i

\QQ‘FETDHY DIRECTOR'S CR PROVIDER/SUPPLIER REPRESENTATIVE'S SIGNATURE

s ., i . ; |
\?‘x‘ﬁ‘"“‘*"&c ' 50 WA Presd eyl \. LED
les a doilelanoy which he ||1t.n.i.ul|§m nay be excused from correciing providing il is delermmed that

W deficiency shlemen( ending with an aslens}\ E'\ﬁtm% -
hei saleguards provide sufiicient proleclion lo (heTiaLru (Sea instructions.) Excep! for ntrsing homes, the lindings stated nbove are disclosable 90 days

Towing the dale of survey whether or nol a nlan of correclion is pravided  For nursing homes, the above findings and plans of correction are disclosable 14
ys following thedale. these documents are made available t6 ihe hcml-, Wi deficiencias are ciled, an approved plan of carceclion is requisite {o continued
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K0046 | Continued From page 1 K0046
closel air supply register is not provided-vith a fire
damper. .
NFPAS0A 3-4.7
These findings were verified by the maintenance
direclor and acknowledged by the house |
manager during the exil conference on Juty 30, !
2014, ) ! : i 9.1-14
KO051 | 483.470(j)(1)(i) LIFE SAFETY CODE STANDARD H K0051
A manual fire alarm syslem is provided |n Dellector shields will be added lo each diluser
accordance with Seclion 9.6, 33.2.3.4.1 that has a smoke deleclor within three [esl
. ol it. This will be a permanent correction.
Exceplion No 1; Where there are Interconnected
smoke detectors meeling the requiremenls of
33.2.3.4.3 and there is nol less lhan one___inanUaI Keys have been rr_'lade ang plac'ed o a_!ah ~
fire alarm box per floor arranged to contifiuously near each pull staion. Nurses will do a Visuat
.check at the change of each shill lo ensui

sound the smoke deleclor alarms.

Exceplion No. 2: Other manually aclivaled
conlinuously sounding alarms acceptablg (o the
authorily having jurisdiclion. :

1 This STANDARD is not mel as evidenced hy:
Based on observation and Interview, it was
determined (hat staff was not provided wilh keys
lo activale manual fire alarm pull stations.

The findings include:

Observalion and interview with the house* \
manager on July 30, 2014 al 10:05 a.m. revealed
not all slallf members are provided wilh a lice
alarm key lo activale the manual fire alarry pull
slalions. The manual fire alarm pull statiors are

thal the key is in place. This will be veriled ;
on a shiil count sheel that will then be Iumedg
into the nursing office coordinator at theend -

of each monlh.
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K0051 | Continued From page 2 i K005 1
only key operated lo aclivate the fire alerm.
NFPA 101 9.6.2.6

This finding was verified by mainlenance direclor
and acknowledged by the house manager during
the exil conference on July 30, 2014, !

P
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W 247 | 483.440(c)(6)(vi) INDIVIDUAL PROGRAM PLAN W 247 9-20-14
Each client will be reviewed in the Aclive Tevr

The Individual program plan must include
opporlunities for client choice and
sell-managemenlt.

This STANDARD is nol mel as evidenced by:
Based on record review, observation, and
interview, the facility failed lo include
opportunities for client choice for two (#1, #2) of
Iwao clients sampled. :

éi

The findings included:

Medical record review revealed Glient #1 has the
diagnosis of Severe Intelleclual Disabilily.

Review of Client #1's Training Specific lo the
Needs of the Individual/individual Program

Plan/individual Prorgram Plan (TSNI/IPP),
amended December 13, 2013, revealed Clienl #1
"...enjoys walching music channels (various
named music channels) and the Food Nelivork
...will wipe the table afler...eals a meal al home
when verbally cued to do so and will also
place...clothing cover and cup on 'counler.'._._doés
enjoy working on arls and crafls as well as being
involved in kitchen aclivilies... Slaff is alwéys near
by lo assisl (Client 7#1) wilh any activily (Clienl #1)
chooses.. It is imporlant for...lo have
choice...such as whal {a do...understands...is
able lo choose belween two or three ilenié",easier

than many..."

Observalion on July 21, 2014, from 3:50 p.n1.

| until 4:35 p.m., in the living room, re\fealedi(}!iehl

#1 positioned on a Quadruped Posilioning -
Plalform (Quad) in {ronl of the lelevision. ¢
Continued abservalion revealed Direct Support

Trealment team meellng on 8-20-14 lo
delermine appropriale categories and
number of choices for each client in the
home. I will be delermined it the persan
can besl make choices verbally, by piclue
baok or by another method. Piclure books
offering choices will be made for those
who will communicate bes! by that mathed.
The COS will be nolifled of the changesand
asked 1o participale in the crealion of thebooks.
The piclures will be changed out perioditally to reflecl
seasonal aclivilies, clothing and food oplins.
The IPP's will be amended. Staff traininglor
each individual will occur. Methods of delermining
individital's choices :
will be evaluated by the QIDP (Qualifiedhtellectual
Disabilities Professional) monthly
: reviews and in communication with the ICf
i managers and direct supporl slafi. Metheds
that are not effeclive will be modified and
re-evaluated by the same process.

i
i
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W 247 | Conlinued From page 1 W 247
Professional (DSP) #1 changed the lelévision '
from a lalk show to a carloon (Sponge Bob)

which remained on the lelevision lhe enlire time
Client #1 was on the Quad. Conlinued - i
observation revealed Client #1 was not offered i
the opporlunily to choose walching Sponge Bob
over walching a music video or the Foad.: -
Nelwork. '

Observation on July 21, 2014, from 5:22 p.m.
until 5:48 p.m. in the dining room, revealéd Clienl
#1 in wheelchair in fronl of the pass throtigh (an This page left blank intentionally
open passage way in the upper hall of the wall

belween the kilchen and dining room) from the ;

dining room lo lhe kitchen observing DSP #2
preparing dinner. Continuad observation
revealed the door to the kilchen is closed and
locked at all limes. Continued observatior
revealed Client #1 was nol offered the opporlunity
lo choose to be involved in kilchen activilies.

QObservalion on July 21, 2014, from 5:50 p.m.

: unlil 6:07 p.m,, in the dining room, revealed DSP
#1 broughl a pre-plaled meal and pre-poured
drink lo lhe table for Client #1. Conlinued \
observalion revealed Client #1 was nol offered '

any choice In food or drink during the dinner
meal. Client #1 finished the meal al 6:07.p.m; " i
Further abservalion revealed Client #1 was nol ,
alfered Ihe opporiunity lo choose lo place the
clothing cover and the cup on the counter nor lo

wipe the table afler the meal. i

Observalion on July 22, 2014, fram 7:00 a.m.
until 8:10 a.m., in the living room, revealed Client
#1 posilioned on the Quad in front of the
lelevision which was luned lo the Carloon
Network. Continued observation revealed:Client
#1 was never offered the opportunily lo chdose

':l Event iD;QFEUYI

i
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Conlinued From page 2

walching a music video or the Food Nelwork
rather than watching lhe Carloon Network, *
Conlinued observalion revealed a magazine and
a box, filled wilh pages lorn from magazines, in
front of Cllent #1. Continued observation
revealed Client #1 would periodically rip‘d.page
from the magazine and place Il in the box.
Conlinued observation revealed Client #1 was nol
offered (he choice to parlicipate in any other
aclivily during lhis lime frame. )

Observalion on July 22, 2014, from 8:18 a:m.
until 8:33 a.m., in the dining room, revealed Clienl
#1 wheeled chair lo a spot in fronl of the pass
through lo the kilchen and observed breakfast
being prepared by DSP #3. Conlinued
observalion revealed the kilchen door was closed
and locked. Continued observalion reveaied
Client #1 was nol offered lhe opporiunily lo
choose lo be involved in kitchen aclivilies-
Further observation revealed Clienl #1 was not
offered the opportunity to choose lo place the
clothing cover and the cup on lhe counler i‘lnr lo
wipe lhe lable after the meal.

Inlerview with the House Manager (HM), in'the
home office, on July 21, 2014, al 6:35 p.m};
confirmed meal menus are completed by a.'
dietician and Clienl #1 was not offered any
choices for the dinner meal. Conlinued inle: vigw
confirmed Clienl #1 was nol offered a choice of
whal o drink because "we know what they-like to
drink." Conlinued interview conlirmed Client #1
was nol offered a cholce of whal to watch on
lelevision or what [o do while positioned oft:ihe
Quad.

Inlerview with Nurse #1, in the dining room,on
July 22, 2014, al 12:40 p.m., coniirmed Clieni #1

W 247

i
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W 247 | Continued From page 3

was nol given Ihe opportunity of whal television
program lo walch while on he Quad fromi 7:00
a.m. until 8:10 a.m. Furlher interview confirmed
Client #1 was nol given choice when given a
magazine lo lear up while on the quad raher than
being offered the opporlunily lo choose belween
lwo aclivilies. '
Inlerview with the Nursing Office
Coordinater/Qualified Inteliectual Disabililies
Professional (QIOP), in the Clinic, on July 23,
2014, al 11:00 a.m., revealed Client i1 should
have been offered the opportunity lo choose o be
involved in kilchen aclivilies during meal 4
preparation. Continued interview confirmed
Client #1 should have been offered the .
opporlunily lo choose lo place the clothing cover
and cup on lhe counter and the opporlunity to
wipe lhe table after meals. Conlinued interview

.| conflrmed Client #1 was not given opportunities
lo make choices. 2

Medical record review revealed Client #2 has the'
diagnosis of Profound Intelleclual Disability.

Review of Client #2's TSNI/IPP, dated Sepleinber
12, 2013, revealed "...Having choice is importani
to (Clienlt #2)...wanls lo decide where lo ga when
in the community. Stall thal is familiar wilh:
(Clienl #2) knows what...wanls...Somelimés
makes day-to-day decisions...if given eilheror
choices... " '

Observation al the residence, on July 21, 2014,
from 4:00 p.m. unlil 5:50 p.m., revealed Clierl 21
walking around lhe inlerior comman areas of the
residence, in the yard/driveway area oulsidé the
house, down the street {for approximalely 5
minules) or lo lthe neighboring ln!ermedialef-’p‘are

il
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W 247 { Continued From page 4 . W 247
Facility next door (for approxima lely 7 minutes).
Conlinued observalion revealed Client #2 was

always followed by DSP #3 or the Hi. Gontlinued
observalion revealed Client #2 sal on the couch
for 2 minutes with DSP #1 when given lhe
opporiunily to complele a coin sorling activily.
Continued observation also revealed Client ¥ . h
wenl lo use the restroom when suggesled oy the
HM. Furlher observalion revealed Client #2 was
nol offered the opportunily lo choose any other
activilies during this time. This page left blanlk intentionally

Observatlon on July 21, 2014, from 5:50 p.m.
until 6:15 p.m., in the dining room, revealed DSP
#4 brought a pre-plated meal and pre-poured
drink lo the table for Client #2. Continued
abservation revealed Client #2 was not offered
any choice in food or drink during the dinner
meal. Clienl #2 finished lhe meal al 6:15 p.m.

Observation on July 22, 2014, from 8:00 a.m.
unlil 8:42 a.m., in the home, revealed Cllent #2
walking continuously around the common aieas.
Conlinued observation revealed Client #2 was not
offered the opporlunily to chaose anolher aclivily ,
during this lime, -l

Inlerview with he House Manager (H), in lhe
home office, on July 21, 2014, al 6:35 p.m
conlirmed meal menus are completed bya:
dielician and Client #2 was nol ofiered any choice
for the dinner meal. Conlinued interview e
confirmed Clien! #2 was nol offered a chaice of ! \ -
whal lo drink because "we know whal they like lo i
; drinik.” Further interview confirmed Client #1'was P
|
l

| not offered the opportunily to choose an activity k
other than walking from 4:00 p.m. until 5:50 p.m,
on July 21, 2014, : ‘ :

S |
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PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CORRE comEEhes

and frequency lo support the achievemenf;i‘of the
objeclives identified in the individual programi

plan.

This STANDARD is nol met as evidenced by: -
Based on record review, observalion, and:'.:‘:_
inlerview, the facility failed lo ensure the indivicual
program plans were implemenled for one #1)of
wo clients sampled, N

The findings included: o

Medical record review revealed Client #1 hégzthe
dizgnosis of Severe Intelleclual Disability.

i Review of Clienl #1's Aclive Trealment Card:.
| effective dale December 2, 2010 and updated

(X4) ID SUMMARY STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES 1
PREFIX (EACH DEFICIENCY MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL PREFIX {EACH GORRECTIVE AGTION SHOULD BE DATE
TAG REGULATORY OR LSC IDENTIFYING INFORMATION) TAG CROSS-REFERENCED TO THE APPROPRIATE
) DEFICIENCY)
[
W 247 | Continued From page S l W 247
Interview with DSP #3, outside the home on July i
22, 2014, al 9:45 a.m., confirmed Clienl #2 has
board games and puzzles in the bedroom, ‘and
Clienl #2 will choose to do lhese aclivilies when
offered the opportunily by staff, 2 !
Interview wilh the QIDP, in the Clinic, on July 23, \ <
2014, at 11:00 a.m., confirmed Clienl #2 Wwés nol
given opportunily for choice when staff did not
offer the opportunity to choose whal to do hy j
presenling Client #2 with lwo oplions and.allowing ! 9-20-14
Client #2 o indicale the choice. :
W 249 | 483.440(d)(1) PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION W 2491 Al plans for client #1, and all other clienls will
be followed as wrilten and lrained.
As saoon as the interdisciplinary team has‘-y;. The house manager, lwo assistant house
formulaled a client's individual program plan, Mmanagers, the slafl AN and the QIDP vil
each client musl receive a continuous active i monilor employees performance for the
lreatmen! program consisting of needsd correcl use of modalilies, program plans,
intervenlions and services in suificienl number and adaptive equipmenl, Since the Survay,
the QIDP has been promated o an

assistanl direclor position and will have lhe
authorily lo provide immediate training or
employee correction if needed. One of heassislanl
house managers, whose primary role
is employee education and lraining
has relurned from malernily leave,

Four employee interviews will be conducled
per monlh at the home on random plans o
ensure employees know the plans they are
Implementing. Interviews will be conducled
by supervisor level employees and above,
Employee Iraining will be conducted i
delermined necessary during the inlerviews, |, -~
Follow up supervision will then lake place.
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W 249 | Conlinued From page 6

June 11, 2014, revealed "Adaplive
Equipmenl:...Olhar:...Weighled scoop bowl,
clolhing prolector, dycem mal to keep bowl from
slipping..." Conlinued review revealed Client #1
could use either a regular drinking cup, with or
withoul straw, or a fixed-slraw cup. g

Observalion on July 21, 2014, from 5:50 p.m, =
uatil 6:07 p.m., in the dining room, reveslgd Client
#1 ulilized a weighted scoop bowl, a clothing
proteclor and a fixed-siraw cup as adaplive
equipment during dinner. Conlinued observation
revealed 2 dycem mal was nol used under the
bowl during the dinner meal for Client #1.}
Conlinued observation revealed lhe scoap bowl
slid lo the right as the client scooped foad onlo
the spoon from the lefl. 2

Observalion on July 22, 2014, from 8:42 am. ..
until 9:00 a.m.,, revealed Clienl #1 ale breaklasl
ulilizing only a weighted scoop bowl, a clothing
proleclor, and a fixed-straw cup as a adaplive
equipmenl, Conlinued observation revealed no
use of a dycem mal under the bow! during
breakfasl for Client #1. Further observation
revealed lhe bow] was placed on lop of the lower
hall of the clothing protreclor on the lable while
Client 1 was ealing. Conlinued observation
revealed lhe scoop bowl and clothing proteclor
slid lo the righl as the clienl scoopet food dnlo’ -
the spaoon from the left. :

the Clinic, on July 23, 2014, al 9:30 a.m., >
confirmed aclive treatmenl was nol implemented
carreclly lor Client #1 because a dycem mat was
not placed under the bowi at dinner and at

breakfasl.

i Interview with the Direc-lor of Healih Services, in
]
|

[

W 249, Four direcl observalions ol employees
implemenling plans will be compleied
each monlh by supervisory (or above)
employees. The plans will be chosen
randomly and any concerns will be corecled
immediately with further training Lo follow

if determined necessary.

(Cenlinued on page 7)

The QIDP will review the inlerview and
observalion forms and develop further
training if determined necessary.

All clients will be encouraged and assided .| ~
with washing their hands belore every meal.
Hand sanitizing wipe will be offered when
clients rejuse to wash lheir hands or.are
eating in a location withoui a sink (ie: picic).
Clients who chose not lo wash their hands
will continue lo be encouraged at every nieal,

(See attached ‘Managemenl Inspection Checkllst)
i

|
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W263| all Clients will have their

W 263 | 483.440(f)(3)(ii) PROGRAM MONITORING &
CHANGE

The committee should insure that these programs
are conducled only with the writlen informed
consent of the clienl, parents (if the chent is a
minor) or legal guardian. &

This STANDARD is nol mel as Ev:denced I)y
Based on record review, review of faclllty Human
Rights Commitlee (HRC) dacuments, and’
interview, the facilily's HRC falled to insure
reslrictive programs were conducled only with
writlen informed consent for two (#1, #2) of iwo
clients sampled and for lwo (#3, #4) of lwo clients
not sampled, and failed to insure written informed
consenl is not blankeled for one (#3) of two |
clients not sampled. ;

The findings included:

. £
Medical record review for Clienl #1 revealéd =
diagnosis of Severe Inlelleclual Disability..

Review of Clienl #1's HRC Reslriclive )
Intervention Plan Review 201, daled Oclober 22,
2013, revealed HRC approval for *...reslriclive
inlervenlion is: Side rails on...bed..." Conlinued
review revealed "...Documenls Reviewed During
HRC Neeling...Consenl (box is marked)... Verbal
{handwritten under the word consen)..."
Conlinued review revealed no evidence of writlen
informed consent! for this restriction.

Medical record review for Client #2 revealed :
diagnasis of Profound Intellectual Disabilily.
'

Review of Client #2's FIRC Reslriclive |

_The aclive trealmenl commillee will evaluale

restrictions reviewed belore the HRC panel
in Seplember, 2014. The consent lorms
will be reviewed one week prior to the HAC
meeling to ensure compleleness. ltems
that do not have conservator consent wil
nol be reviewed. I lhere are restrictions hal
do not have consent due to lhe conservalor
not replying af all lo the requesl, a cerlifisd
letler will be mailed requesling either sigied
¢onsent or a meeling to explore safe oplons
for the client. New restriclions will nol be
implemented until both conservalor consent
and HRC approval have been obtained
For ongoing restrictions (such as door
chimes), the consent will be discussdd ad
oblained in each annual ISP meefing.
New reslrictions throughout the year wil
not be implemented withoul writlen consent
and HRC approval unless the person isia
irnminenl danger without it. An emergency
COS will then be held to evaluate the
siluation and oblain consent.

The HRC Coordinalor will nol present

any restriction to the panel withou! writlen

consent,

all restrictions for all clients quarterly

lo ensure no new resiriclions have been
implemented withoul conservalor consenl
and commiltee approval, as well as lookal
the possible reduction of restrictions ior

each person. The QIDP will supervise this process

and track all restrictions via Excel.
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Inlervention Referral and Review 201, dated
Auguslt 27, 2013, revealed HRC approvai fof
"...kitchen door...currently focked..." Conltinugd
review revealed "...Documenls Reviewed DUring
HRC Meeting...Cansenl (box is marked). it
Further review revealed the words "...Verbai

| Consent 8/26/13..." handwrilten in the Dociiments

Reviewed section. Further review revealéd no
evidence of wrilten informed consent for this
reslriclion. !

Medical record review for Client #3 revealed a
diagnosis of Severe Intellectual diszbility. .

Review of Clienl #3's HRC Restriclive
Intervention Referral and Review 201, daled
August 27, 2013 revealed HRC approval for each

{ of the following restriclive interventions:

"...Cleaning supplies...are locked... and

T medicalions (handwrillen onlo the form);...kilchen

door...currently locked;...Door chimes on exil
doors;...(Client #3) will be line of sighl (onezlo-one
supervision)...doar alert system...placed
on...bedroom door..." Conlinued review reveajad
“...Documents Reviewed During HRC
Meeling...Consent (box is marked)..."”

Review of Clienl #3's Consenl for Reslrictive.
Intervention, dated Augusl 28, 2013, revealed o
consent form for "...The proposed reslriclive .
intervenlion...Locked Hazardous s
malerials/medicalions/cleaning supplies;...Locked
Kilchen door;...Door Chimes;...Line of Sigh! (and)

f 7 " . IR
bedraoom door chimes..." Conlinued reveiw 3 .

revealed lhe form lo be a blankel consent form
nat specifying the restrictions sepralely with .
speciic risks, benefils or impacts, Conlinued
review revealed wrillen signalure by lhe
conservalor of Client #3, dated Augusl 28, 2013,

.Tlhis page left blank intentionally.
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W 263 | Continued From page 9

Medical record review for Clienl #4 revealed a
diagnosis of Profound Intelieclual Disability.

Review of Client #4's HRC Reslriclive .
Intervention Plan Review 201 , dated Ocleber 22,
2013, revealed HRC approval for "...restriclive
inlervention is: Side rails on..bed..." Conlinued
review revealed “...Documents Reviewed During
HRC Meeling...Consent (box is marked).., Verbal
(is handwritlen under the word consent)..."
Conlinued review revealed no evidence of wrillen
informed consent for this reslriction,

Interview with the Direclor of Qualily Assurence
(the facility's HRC facilitator), by phone fiom the
Clinic, confirmed the facility's HRC approved
programs wilh restriclive interventions, including
behavior madifying medications, befare written
informed consent was oblained,

W 267 483.450(a)(1) CONDUCT TOWARD CLIENT

The (acility must develop and implement whitten
policies and procedures for lthe management of
conduct belween slall and clients. :

This STANDARD is nol mel as evidenced by:
Based on abservation and interview, lhe facility
failed lo provide dignily while ealing for two (71,
#2) of lwo clienls sampled and for ane (#3) oi two
clienls nol sampled,

The findings included:

, Observation on July 21, 2014, a1 5:50 p.m.,. in the
! dining room, revealed Clienls #1, #2, #3 and 4,
, silling al the dining room table lor the evenirig

W263‘l
|
I

W 267

i

9-20-14

Clothing protectars will nol be placed on
the table, under the plale, or otherwise, lor
any clienl supporled in this home, This has
been specifically addressed lo all employees
in a house meeling by the QIPD on 8-12.14,
The house manager, lwo assislanl house
managers, the stalf RN and the QIDP wil
monitor employees perlormance lor Lhe
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ORI ChIS-2567(02-99) Pravious Versions Obsolete

The Tacilily must hold evacuation drills undir
varied condilions.

i £
This STANDARD s nol mel as evidenced by:
Based on review of Resideniial Fire Drill Reporls
; and Tornado Drill Reporls, and inlerview, Ihs
| facility fziled lo hold evacuation drills under varied

meeling on 8-12-14, and will be addressed more
thoroughly at the 9-9- 14 house meeling.
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TAG REGULATORY OR LSC IDENTIFYING INFORMATION) TAG CROSS-REFERENCED TO THE APPROPRIATE oATE
O OEFICIENCY)
correct use of modalilies, program plans,
W 267 | Conlinued From page 10 . w 267 | and adaplive equipment.
meal. Conlinued observalion revealed ali jour Empl wraini b ———
clienls had clothing proleclors a lied; the lail of mployee iraining will be comp aie on:‘
lhe clothing prolec?oes were platf:::j on lhe lable, MDC (Michael Dunn Cenler? Misalan: Wkn, and
for Clienls #2 and #3, wilh the clients’ pi"a.les on Values Statemen, Expeclalions q[ %
lop of the clothing proleclors. Conlinued Employment, and the Right of Individua
observalion revealed the plates with the clothing i iupp%ﬁed PQ::%’ (sdt{aa al!ac:"lec!ghon g-}g-l#_ Al
proleclors kepl slid forward/backward or l2ftfright i er;i?ay?aﬁs YRR CrROUBE IR Wik QRN
::g:“:;ﬁg' :‘: \'hg dir leC:LQ” from which the client A training thal includes specific examples ol
p ood onlo the spoon. B how lo treat a person with dignily will beconducled
ob g el on 9-9-14 In a house meeting and then cvered in
‘bservalion on July 22-.2014. al 8:42 a:m,, in lhe new employee training for all new employees.
dining room revealed Clients #1, #2, and #3 The MDC employee evalualion processisbeing
sitting at lhe dining room lable for breakflasi. amended lo reflec! the employees' awarness
Conlinued observation revealed all lhree clienls | and implementalion of rights, dignily andperson
had clolhing protectors applied; the tail of ihe | centered praclices. (See Attached Temple)
clothing prolectors were placed on the lable with ; Each person supporled will have an anmwal rights
the clients' bowls of cereal on top of the clothing assessment compleled by the Qualily Assirance
proteclors for all three clienls. Continued , department. (See Atlached)
observalion revealed the bowls slid
forward/backward or lefi/right depending on the ! The house manager, assislanl house managers,
direclion from which lhe clients scooped lhe food ’ the staif RN, the QIDP as well as the MOC . =
onlo the spoon. Fa ' managemenl leam will observe slall inlerzclions
. with the clients and correct concerning
Interview with the Health Services Direclor, on behavior immedialely. Management inspeclions
July 23, 2014, al 9:30 a.m., in the clinic, . occur al one per year per person in the heme.
confirmed placing the clienls' plales/bowls on the Employees were lrained .
clothing proleclors on Ihe lable failed lo provide i i n 8:5-14 via email lo make initial changes
the three clienls with dignily. j / . regardu}gllhe corrs'.-c: Lgse of the c:plhinglproleclors,
/ 4700 - appropriale age related conversalions elc.
W 441 [ 483.470()(1) EVACUATION DRILLS i WA4T! This was addressed by the QIDP in a house
1
i

(

I :

E«unt D: QPEUL
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conditions for al) residenls of the facility.

The lindings included:

al the beginning of each month by the mrsing
oflice coordinator with the allernating fielocations,
clienl locations and weather condilions dkeady

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES FORM APPROVED
CENTERS FOR MEDICARE & MEDICAID SERVICES OB NO. 0938-0391
STATELENT OF OEFICIENGIES (1) PROVIDER/SUPPLIER/CUA (X2) MULTIPLE CONSTRUCTIOM U] DATE SURVEY
AND PLAN OF CORREGTION IDENTIFICATION MUMBER: COMPLETED
_ - A. BUILDING
44G095 & WING 07/23/2014
MAME OF PROVIDER OR SUPPLIZR STREET ADDRESS, CITY, STATE, 2IP CODE
104 VILLAGE TRACE
MICHAEL DUNN CENTER LEDA HE ON HO
R LEDA HERRON HOME KINGSTON, TN 37763
| SUMMARY STATEMENT OF DEFICIENGIES D PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CORRECTION o)
PREFIX | (EACH DEFICIENCY 1UST BE PRECEDED BY FULL PREFIX (EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION SHOULD BE o =
TAG REGULATORY OR LSC IDENTIFYING INFORMATION) TAG CROSS-REFERENCED TO THE APPROPRIATE i
) 3 : ’ I DEFICIENCY) "
1 i
9-20-14
W 441 | Conlinued From page 11 ’ W 441 I
! Fire drill forms will be dislribuled to thetimes
!
i

Review of 36 Residenlial Fire Drill Reporls, dated
from Seplember 4, 2013 through June 29, 2014,
revealed no documenlation of lhe drills baing
conducled under varying condilions (wealher,

i location of fire, of roules of egress). '

Review of Tornado Drill Reporis, dated:'f 3
September 25, 2013 lhrough June 23, 2014,
revealed no indicalion of lime of day for the drill
for 8 of 9 reporls,

Interview with the Director of Health Services, on

July 21,2014, at 11:20 a.m., In the Clinig,

confirmed the evacuation drill reporls do not )

reflecl evidence . of drills having been conducted
| under varying conditions.

|
|
|
|
I!

——

writlen in for the employees lo lollow. Sall

tralning on how lo ulilize the new versiool the
evacualion drill form will be compleled inthe

8-9-14 house meeling.

The nursing oflice coordinator will reviewlhe

lire drill forms once compleled lo ensure

‘both varied condilions were lollowed andlhat
evacualion was achievec limely, If bariys are
noled she will immedialely nolify the hause
manager and QIDP for addilional employse

training. The nursing office coordinalor wl review all
olher forms, including the

tornado drills, lo ensure all pertinent datainincluded
on each drill.

Al'any lime barriers are noled and addilional

training or olher iniervention is needed, ke QIDP
’wul nolify the Direclor of Health Services.

|
|

|

OR4 C#1S-2567(02.99) Previsus Versions Qbsclete

cvent D QPEUTI

(49
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STATE OF TENNESSEE

Department of Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities
. Citizens Plaza, 10" Floor
400 Deaderick Street
NASHVILLE, TN 37243-0675

September 2, 2015 : Lo e

Melanie Hill

Executive Director

Health Services and Development Agency
500 Deaderick Street iy
Nashville, TN 37243

RE: Application for Certification of Need submitted by Michael Dunn Center
Dear Director Hill:

The Department of Inteliectual and Developmental Disabilities (Department) strongly
supports the application for a Certificate of Need (CON) on behalf of Michae! Dunn Center, Based
upon the Department’s knowledge of Michael Dunn Center, Itis the Department's belief that they
meet the three (3) criteria necessary for approval which are namely, heed, economic feasibility and
contribution to the orderly development of health care.

The need for these facilities has resulted from the national trend away from caring for
persons with intellectual disabilities in large, congregate institutional settings to more integrated,
smaller homes in the community. In 2006, Tennessee, believing this to be best practice, passed
legislation which created one hundred sixty (160) new ICF/IID beds to be used solely for persons
transitioning from state developmental centers. At this time there remain eighty-four (84) of the'one
hundred sixty (160) beds available for development. The need for the development of these
remaining eighty-four (84) beds comes as a direct result of the announced closure of the last large
state owned developmental ceriter, Greene Valley Developmental Center (GVDC), which is
anticipated to close on June 30, 2016. The closura of GVDC s part of an Exit Plan in a nineteen (19)
year old lawsuit agalnst the state of Tennessee by the Department of Justice (People First of Tennessee
et, al. v. The Clover Bottom Develapmental Center et. al. No. 3:95-1227) regarding unconstitutional
conditions at four (4) developmental centers in Tennessee. One of these developmental centers
has already closed, another is set to close in the fall of 2015, the third is & small specialized
developmental center for persons who are court ordered for competency evaluation and training,
and GVDC. The last obligation in the Exit Plan, which once complete will result in a full dismissal of
the law suit, is the closure of GVDC and the transition of all residents into smaller homes In the
community. Therefore, the Department supports this application for a CON to facilitate the closure
of and transition of the residents of GVDC. .

| 150
ATTACHMENT 16
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Melanie Hill, Executive Director **

RE: Application for Certification of Need submitted by INSERT NAME HERE
DATE

Page 2 of 2

Transltloning the residerits from GVDC, a large institution, to four (4) person ICF/IDs in the
community is more economically feasible for the State, which pays.for these services, The census at
GVDC at the time of the announcement of closure was 101, but at its peak, GYDC supported 1100
residents, Operating a large developmental center is inefficient and does not produce economy of
scale due to the large overhead associated with utilities and maintenance costs on older inefficient
buildings that operate on a boiler system. The private operation of smaller four (4) person ICF/IIDs
is much more efficient and economically feasible for the state.

For many of the same reasons stated above in relation to the criteria of “need”, the approval
of this CON and development of four person ICF/IID beds meets the criteria of contribution to the
orderly development of health care. As a result of the Exit Plan in the nineteen (19) years old lawsuit
described above, these homes and beds are needed to transition the remaining residences from
GVDC and provide for the health and safety needs of these vulnerable persons. These beds will
provide the same level of care that these persons are recelving at GVOC, namely the ICF/IID level of
care. This application has been submitted by a current provider of services in Tennessee for
persons with intellectual disabllities, therefore they have a proven track record of providing these
services within both state and federal regulations which includes the avallability and accessibility of
human resources, prior contractual relationships with both the Department and TennCare and an
understanding of the both the intellectual disability population and intellectual disability system in
Tennessee, ' i

Based on the above stated reasons the department strongly supports Michael Dunn Center,
application for a CON to build four (4) person ICF/IIDs in East Tennessee in order to effectuate the
safe transition of residents of GVDC and.comply with the Exit Plan leading to the conclusion of the
nineteen (19) years old CBDC et. ai lawsuit, If you need any further information or have any
questions please contact me.

Sincerely, ; o

Debra K. Payne ; Lo &
Commissioner

DKP:ts

=,

15 [
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ROANE NEWSPAPERS e
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Roane County News Morgan County News P.O. Bmc 610, 204 Franklin Street

R.C. News-Record Web Printing Plant ngston TN 37763
(865) 376-3481 FAX (865)376-1945

TO: Michael Dunn Center

ADVERTISING: Legal Advertisement — Publication of Intent
PUBLISHER’S AFFIDAVIT

State of Tennessee, Roane County

I, Joe King, make oath that the attached advertisement or notice was
published in:

__X_The Roane County News, tri-weekly newspaper published at Kingston
The Morgan County News, a weekly newspaper published at Wartburg,

Also www.tnpublicnotice.com for all runs as required by Tenn. Code Ann.
1-3-120(2013) There will be only one tear sheet attached to cover all runs.

in said county and state, and that the advertisement or notice
of: Substitute Trustee’s Sale, #6971271(Smith), Lana Harris, a single
person, 132 Heidel Mill RD. Wartburg, TN 37887

was published in said newspaper on the following date: Feb. 1%, 2016
knowledge and belief

Signed //J;CE/F/

/ -
Subscribed and sworn to before 11]4 ay of February, 2016 SR

A R IR
L

/QP\I;MO A ﬁc&/bu%i&m ":':: ot ok
Rhonda Laughter, Kotary Public = /"o
My commission expires {\-\m)- ao\‘f’[ e *
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- SUPPLEMENTAL i1

February 12, 2016
State of Tennessee 11:15 am

Health Services and Development Agency ;
Andrew Jackson Building, 9% Floor, 502 Deaderick Street, Nash\nlle TN

37243
www.tn.gov/hsda Phone: 615-741-2364/Fax:615/532-9940

%

February 10, 2016
Mike McElhinney

President/CEO
Michael Dunn Center

629 Gallaher Road
Kingston, Tennessee 37763

RE: Certificate of Need Application CN1602-006
Michael Dunn Center

Dear Mr. McElhinney:

This will acknowledge our February 2, 2016 receipt of your application for a Certificate of
Need for the establishment of a four (4) bed ICF/IIDD home located at 763 Clymersville
Road, in Rockwood (Roane County), Tennessee 37854.

Several items were found which need clarification or additional discussion. Please review
the list of questions below and address them as indicated. The questions have been keyed to
the application form for your convenience. | should emphasize that an application cannot be
deemed complete and the review cycle begun until all questions have been answered and

furnished to this office.

Please submit responses in triplicate by 12:00 noon, Friday February 12, 2016. If the

supplemental information requested in this letter is not submitted by or before this time, then
consideration of this application may be delayed into a later review cycle.

1. Section A. (Applicant Profile) Item 6

The fully executed lease agreement is noted. However, please address the following:
oThe lease is post dated July 1,2016. Please clarify.
- Response: The individuals moving into this home near-July 1, 2016. If the date is
dszerent the lease will be amended at that time to reflect the actual move in date.

e The term is noted to commence on July 1, 2016 and end on June 30, 2016. Please
clarify.

Response: This was a typo and should have read June 30, 2017. The lease has
been amended and is altached. (Attachment 1)

e The rent is estimated to be $3,500 per month in advance on or before each calendar
month beginning January 2016 (six months prior to the beginning of the lease.
Please clarify.

Response: This has been modified to read July 2016 and is attached.

If needed, please provide a revised lease agreement with correct key dates.
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2. Section A. (Applicant Profile) Item 9

The bed complement bed chart is noted. The applicant has placed 4 beds in the current
“CON” column. Since this application is for a new institution, there would not be any beds
applicable to this column. Please revise and submit a revised page 10. Please - see
Attachment 2; Labeled “Replacement-10.”

3. Section B, Project Description, Item L

The executive summary is noted. However, please provide a brief description of the
proposed services and equipment. _
Response: This house  will ‘become home (o four individuals from Green Valley
Developmental Center. ‘The individuals have varying healthcare needs from medication
administration. to fracheotomy care and oxygen administration. A nurse will be in the
home or accessible to the individuals in the home twenty four hours per day. The
individuals use hospital beds, mechanical lifis and shower trollies. The bathrooms are
currently large enough to manage such equipment and will only need updating. A
therapist conducted site’ assessment will be completed prior to the individuals moving in
to this home. _

Michael Dunn Center is currently working with both GVDC and Medline to ensure all
furnishings and equipment are in place prior to any of the individuals moving in to the
home.

How can a facility housing 10 patients not require significant renovation to convert to a
4 bed home?

Response: The home will be renovated to give each of the four individuals a suite type
setting. Each individual will have a bedroom, a sitting room and share a bathroom with
one other house mate. The renovations include added doorways between bedrooms to
make the suite setting. The bathrooms are adequate and only need upgrading and
cosmetic repairs. This will leave two extra rooms, which will be used as office space for
the management and quality assurance persornel.

What will happen to the spaces that currently house the 6 other beds?
Response: Please see the answer above.

4. Section B, Project Description, Item ILA.

Please complete Parts B.-E. of the Square Footage and Cost Per Square Footage Chart
and submit. Please also discuss the justify the cost per square foot for this project.
Please describe the renovations needed to increase each bedroom to approximately 180
square feet and to meet ICF/IID regulations and licensure rules.

Response: The renovation cost estimate is 3144,400 and the total square footage is
4578. This is a cost of $31.54 per square foot, which is much less than the cost of new
construction. Of this cost of $31.54 per square foot, $28.27 is the cost to install a
sprinkler system.
The current home has ten bedrooms. After the renovations, the home will house only
four individuals. The plan is to turn two adjoining bedrooms into a suite for eight of




G SUPPLEMENTAL #1

Mr. Mike McElhinney February 12, 2016
February 10,2016 11:15 am
Page 3 )

the bedrooms. This will provide approximately 300 or more square feet for each suite.
Each suite will provide a sleeping area and a sitting area for each individual served in
the home. See Attachment 3: Labeled Replacement- 16

5. Section B. (Plot Plan)

Tennessee Code Annotated 33-2-418 indicates that the DMHDD “shall not license
more than two (2) such residential facilities within five hundred (500) yards in any
direction from other such facilities housing service recipients. Please verify that these
proposed ICF/IIDD facility is not located at least 500 yards from other similar facilities.

Response: The next licensed home is 1.95 miles from the HH2 location. ' Please see the
attached map and directions showing this. (See Attachments 4 and 5)

6. Section B. (Floor Plan) Item IV.

Please clarify if the floor plan is for the renovated ICF/IIDD facility? If not, please
provide. : _ _
Response: Please see the attached updated floorplan post renovations. (Attachment 6)

There appears to be 10 bedrooms. Which bedrooms will be used by the 4 residents?
Response: Please see the attached floorplan. The bedrooms will be converted to suites
and therefore 8 of the 10 bedrooms will be used by the residents residing in the home.

7. Section C. (Need) Item 1 (Specific Criteria- ICF/IIDD Facilities)

The ICE/IIDD criterion appears to be answered out of sequence from pages 23-28 in the
application. Please revise, submit replacement pages, and answer all the questions to
the ICF/IIDD criteria in one location in the prescribed format.

Respotise: Please see this entire: document as an attachment. Attachment 7; 2 pages

The Tennessee Code Annotated Title 33; Title 68, Chapter 11 and Section 71-5-
105(b)(2) states “Only providers .that have been providing services to persons with
developmental disabilities under contract with the state for at least five (5) years shall
be eligible to apply for these new beds.” Please describe the services and the number
of years which the applicant has provided each service through contract(s) with the
state of Tennessee to persons with developmental disabilities.

Response: Michael Dunn Center was established in 1971 and has been providing
services to individuals under contract with the State of Tennessee since the late
1970’s. The current ICF homes (Leda Herron and Julia Caillouette) have been
licensed since 1996.

8. Section C. (Need) Item 1 (Service Specific Criteria-ICF/IIDD Facilities)
A. Need 1.

The use of 2013 population statistics is noted. However, please use the most recent
population statistics (2015) and revise your calculations. Please see attachment 7: 6

pages
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9. Section C. (Need) Item 6 - No projected utilization with documented methodology

Please provide the projected number of annual bed resident days and the details regarding
the methodology used to project “resident bed” days during the first year of operation and
resident bed” days during the second year of operation.

| Response: We project we'will have 1,460 annual bed resident days for both year one
and year two. We have created a budget based on having 100% occupancy during

| the first and second year. Our actual utilization has been very close:to. 100% for our

e ICF homes.

Using the chart below, please provide the occupancy and utilization for the past three
years for the two ICF/IIDDs (Calllouette Home and Herron Home) currently located in

Roane County.

2013 | 2013 2013 2014 | 2014 2014 | 2015 | 2015 2015

County | Facility/Address Lic. | ADC % Lic. | ADC % Lic. | ADC %
Beds Occupancy | Beds Occup. | Beds Occup.

Roane | Calllouette Home | 4 3.88 |96:9% 4 3.93 | 98.2% 4 3.87 |96.7%
Roan¢e | Herron Home 4 3.997 | 99.9% 4 4.00 | 100.00% | 4 4.00 | 100.00%

Total 8 7.877 | 98.46% 8 7.93 | 99:1% 8 7.87 |98.4%

Please clarify what is included in $144,000 in construction included in the Project Costs
Chart.

Response:

The $144,400 includes the following:
Sprinkler System $129,400
Fire Panel 4,000
Concrete work . 1,000
Construction of suites 10,000

Total 3144,400
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11. Section C. (Economic Feasibility) Item 2 (Funding)

Your response is noted. Please provide appropriate documentation (letter) of the
availability of cash reserves to fund the proposed project from the applicant’s or parent
company’s Chief Financial Officer or equivalent. Please See Attachment 10

12. Section C. (Economic Feasibility) Item 3

Please provide a response to item #3.
Response
The' projected. renovation cost is' $144,400. and the cost per square foot is $31.54. Of the
$31.54 $28.27 is the cost of the sprinkler system. The cost of new construction would be
much greater than the cost to renovate this home.

13. Section C. (Economic Feasibility) Item 4 (Historical Data Chart)
Historical Data Chart

The Historical Data Chart is not in the correct format as prescribed in the application (A-
F). Please review the Historical Data Chart in the application and submit a corrected
revised Historical Data Chart. Please See Attachment 11

Why was there a loss of $341,000 in 2014 in the Historical Data Chart?

Response: We gave a 2% wage increase to stajj. This had a cost of $160, 000 and we did
not receive a rate increase to pay for these wage increases. In the prior year we had a
DOT grant that we did not receive in FY2014. This grant was $169,779. Compared to
the prior year we lost $57,000 of child day care fees from our child day care program,
$63,000 of revenue from contracts with the local school systems and lost $91,799 of
revenue from sales in our work program.

Please specify “other operating revenue™ in A.4 in the Historical Data Chart.
Response: Other Operating Revenue is income from insurance proceeds, management
Jees, food stamp revenue, rental income, reimbursements and miscellaneous income.

Please explain the reason salaries and wages increased from $8,680,000 in 2013 to
$9,514,000 in 2014 in the Historical Data Chart.

Response:

We gave a 2% increase in wages $164,000
We added two new homes: : 575,675
Increase in health insurance cost 96,579
Work Comp Premium increase ) 16,496

The Historical Data Chart shows no Provision for Charity Care and/or Bad Debt. Please

explain.
Response: We expect to only serve individuals that are funded by the State of Tennessee
or-the Federal government. We expect lo receive payment for all services provided.
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Projected Data Chart

The Projected Data Chart is not in the correct format as prescribed in the application (A-
F). Please review the Projected Data Chart in the application and submit a corrected
revised Projected Data Chart. Please See Attachment 12

Please clarify the reason revenue and expenses will decrease in Year Two.

Respome Qur budget is based on' bemg re:mbursed jbr our: expenses 50 rhe income
changes as the expenses change The f rsi year of operation we budgered Io furmsh the
home with furmture ana’ apphances The second year does not include pur chases of
furniture and appliances so the expenses will decrease

Why are supplies declmmg from $138,934 in Year One to $32,640 in Year Two?
Response The. Jirst year we have budgered to purchase the furmture and apphances Sfor
the home. The followmg year we will only need to purchase expendable supplies such as
food and cleaning supplies.

Where are the 4 resident’s dietary meals accounted for in the Projected Data Chart?
Response: The resident’s dietary meals are included under Supplies.

If the applicant is a non-profit, why is there a $65,399 tax expense in Year One and

$59,247 in Year Two?
Re.sponse This tax is the ICF tax imposed by the State of | Tennessee on funds we. receive.

The tax rate is 5.5%.

The Historical Data Chart and Projected Data Charts are noted
| Please See Attachment 13

'Labeled 32A an 334
PROJECTED DATA CHART-OTHER EXPENSES

D.9 OTHER EXPENSES CATEGORIES

_ Year_ 1 Year_ 2
1. Prof Fees $ 2350 $ 2,350
2. Telephone 3,470 3,539
3 Occupancy 21,030 22,291
4. Travel - 20,550 20,550
5. Insurance 641 __ 654
- 6. Depreciation 576 . 576
7. Miscellaneous 2,000 2,000
8. Administrative 127,439 : 116,080

Total Other Expenses $_178,056 $_ 168,040
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HISTORICAL DATA CHART-OTHER EXPENSES

D.9 OTHER EXPENSES CATEGORIES Year 2012  Year 2013 Year 2014
1. Professional Fees $582.780 $569.792 $554,046
2. Telephone 77197 65192 162,827
3. Postage & Shipping 8510 6,328 8,864
4.  Occupancy 341,989 336,694 322911
5. Equipment Rental & Maint 17.868 24,849 16,103
6. Printing & Publications 15855 15.838 3610
7. Travel, Conf & Meetings 534,737 583.646 606,869
8. Insurance /53,041 156,311 62,840
9. Miscellaneous 212318 274339 215,782
Total Other Expenses $1,844295  $1,932,989  $1,853,852

0

February 12, 2016
11:15 am . |

14. Section C. (Economic Feasibility) Item 5

Your response is noted. Please identify the project’s gross charge, average deduction from
operating revenue, and average net charge per patient day. The applicant should divide
the total patient days in Year One of the Projected Data Chart into the total gross charges,

deductions from operatin,
Please revise and Rl

Response: ‘ _ .
Project’s Gross Charge : e $ 155,386
Less Avg Deduction from Operating Revenue : 3 -0-

Net Operating Revenue N <. 81,155,386
Total Patient Days in Year One et SEAG0-
Average Net Charge Per Patient Day - $791.36

15. Section C. (Economic Feasibility) Item 6.a and 6.b

ue total, and total net charges to calculate the charges.
G| . Please See Attachment 12

Please discuss the proposed per diem (daily) charges of the project. In your response,
please discuss if reimbursement increases yearly, if the rates are a set rate, and if managed

care rates are negotiated with each TennCare MCO.

Response: The per diem charges will be set by the Tennessee Comptroller’s office based
on the annual cost report submitted to them. It is my understanding the first year's per
diem rates will be set by the projected first year cost of the project. The per diem rates on
each year after the first year may go up or down based on the actual cost of the prior

year. These rates are always set by the Comptroller’s office.

Please discuss and compare the proposed charges with similar (licensed-4 beds)

institutions (ICF/IIDDs).

Response: The only known rates we have are for the two ICF homes we operate. The
first year rate for this project is higher than the rates for these homes. We expect the

understanding this per diem rate is less than some other ICF/IIDDs.

diem rate for this project includes the cost of furnishing the home.

rates will drop to be in line with our current rates after the first year. The first year per
1 It is our
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16. Section C. (Economic Feasibility) Item 9

It is noted the applicant projects Year One revenue will be $1,155,000 100% from
Medicaid and dedicated for care expenses. However, what percentage of the patient’s
SSI will be counted as revenue. If needed, please revise your response and the Projected
Data Chart by designating patient’s SSI in line B.4 (other operating revenue).

Response: The tenant will only receive the amount of the personal allowance from their SSI
payment, $30. The balance of their SSI will be transferred to TennCare by Social Security to
pay toward their total care. If the tenant receives more. than their personal allowance then
Dept. of Human Seryices will set up a patient liability and the tenant will pay this to the
Agency and this patient liability will be deducted by TennCare from the payment made lo the
Agency by TennCare. Therefore -0-% of the patient’s SSIwill be counted as revenue.

17. Section C (Contribution to Orderly Development) Item 7.c

It is noted the Michael Dunn Center Department of Health license for skilled services has
expired (12-5-2015). Please submit a copy of the current license: Please See Attachment

18. Project Completion Forecast Chart

Please enter the agency initial decision date (May 25, 2016) on the top of the Project
Completion Forecast Chart and resubmit a replacement page.

Response: Some of the renovations are scheduled to be completed prior to the initial
agency decision date of May 15", 2016 in an effort to have the home ready for
occupancy by the individuals from GVDC with a move in goal of July I*, 2016. See
Attachment 15; Labeled Replacement Page

The anticipated dates of completion for key areas of the project are prior to the May 25,
2016 Agency Decision. Please revise and include any changes in the submitted

replacement page.

In accordance with Tennessee Code Annotated, §68-11-1607(c) (5), ".If an
application is not deemed complete within sixty (60) days after written notification
is given to the applicant by the agency staff that the application is deemed
incomplete, the application shall be deemed void.” For this application, the sixtieth
(60th) day after written Notification is Tuesday, April 5, 2016. If this application is
not deemed complete by this date, the application will be deemed void. Agency
Rule 0720-10-.03(4) (d) (2) indicates that "Failure of the applicant to meet this
deadline will result in the application being considered withdrawn and returned to
the contact person. Resubmittal of the application must be accomplished in
accordance with Rule 0720-10-.03 and requires an additional filing fee." Please note
that supplemental information must be submitted timely for the application to be
deemed complete prior to the beginning date of the review cycle which the
applicant intends to enter, even if that time is less than the sixty (60) days allowed by
the statute. The supplemental information must be submitted with the enclosed
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affidavit, which shall be executed and notarized; please attach the notarized
affidavit to the supplemental information.

If all supplemental information is not received and the application officially deemed
complete prior to the beginning of the next review cycle, then consideration of the
application could be delayed into a later review cycle. The review cycle for each
application shall begin on the first day of the month after the application has been
deemed complete by the staff of the Health Services and Development Agency.

Any communication regarding projects under consideration by the Health Services
and Development Agency shall be in accordance with T.C.A. 5 68-11-1607(d):

(1) No communications are permitted with the members of the agency once the
Letter of Intent initiating the application process is filed with the agency.
Communications between agency members and agency staff shall not be
prohibited. Any communication received by an agency member from a
person unrelated to the applicant or party opposing the application shall be
reported to the Executive Director and a written summary of such
communication shall be made part of the certificate of need file.

(2) All communications between the contact person or legal counsel for the
applicant and the Executive Director or agency staff after an application is
deemed complete and placed in the review cycle are prohibited unless
submitted in writing or confirmed in writing and made part of the
certificate of need application file. Communications for the purposes of
clarification of facts and issues that may arise after an application has been
deemed complete and initiated by the Executive Director or agency staff
are not prohibited.

Should you have any questions or require additional information, please do not
hesitate to contact this office.

Sincerely,

Phillip M. Earhart
Health Services Development Examiner

PME

Enclosure
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Total Travel Estimate: 1.95 miles - about 4 minutes

©2016 MapQuest, Inc. Use of directions and maps is subject to the MapQuest Terms of Use. We make no guarantee of the accuracy of
their content, road conditions or route usability. You assume all risk of use. View Terms of Use

; ATTACHMENT 4
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= With A $350,000 Life Insurance

K

Trip to:

. & Policy For $21/Month “
763 Clymersville Rd i y For$ e
Rockwood, TN 37854-6508 B Tap Your Age: A
1.95 miles / 4 minutes it n s
Notes 3 18-25 26-35 36-45 >
dlstance between 313 Mlchael Dunn Drlve Rockwood %% FF AR Fatadl unt 7R .
[ TN (LaCroix) and Hope Have i, 763 Clymerswlle [ o 46-55 56-65 66-75  Over 75 o
. Rockwood, TN %
| g i Calculate New Payment
| ' ﬁﬂ Lﬂ
520 Imbinsurance.com A
Bess so3 covato cit il
@ Rockwood, TN DN load
Free App
@ 1. Start out going southwest on N Gateway Ave / US-70 W/ US-27 S/ TN-1 / TN-29 0.8 Mi
toward Winchester St. Map 0.8 Mi Total
ﬁ 2. Turn right onto W Rathburn St. Map , 0.2 Mi
W Rathburn Stis 0.2 miles past W Rockwood St 0.9 Mi Total
If you reach Nelson St you've gone about 0.3 miles too far
ﬁ 3. Turn left onto S Chamberlain Ave. Map 0.7 Mi
S Chamberlain Ave is just past S Front St 1.7 Mi Total
If you reach S Wilder Ave you've gone a little too far
t 4. Stay straight to go onto Clymersville Rd. Map 0.3 Mi
1.9 Mi Total

5.763 CLYMERSVILLE RD is on the right. Map

Your destination is just past Kirby Ln
If you reach Shadow Lodge Dr you've gone a little too far

763 Clymersville Rd, Rockwood, TN 37854-6508

ATTACHMENT 5
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ICF/MR FACILITIES Specific Questions o

A. Need

1. The population-based estimate of the total need for ICF/MR facilities is .032 percent of the general
population. This estimate is based on the estimate for all mental retardation of 1 percent. Of the 1
percent estimate, 3.2 percent of those are estimated to meet level 1 criteria and be appropriate for [CF-

MR services.

Response: The paopulation of Roane County, TN in 2015 was reported as 55,411, There are currently 8
ICF/ MR beds in the county that are in use. There are 4 beds with an approved CON pending licensure
and admissions. Using the need based estimate of 0.32 %, the need in Roane County is 17.7 beds.

2. The estimate for total need should be adjusted by the existent ICF-MR beds operating in the area as
counted by the Department of Health, the Department of Mental Health and Developmental Disabilities,
and the Division of Mental Retardation Services in the Joint Annual Reports.

Response: The total estimated need minus the existing 8 beds and 4 pending beds leaves a need of 5.7
beds in Roane County.

B. Service Area :

1. The geographic service area should be reasonable and based on an optimal balance between
population density and service proximity.

Roane County, Tennessee is 395 square miles. With a 2015 population of 55,411, the population density
is 140.3 people per square mile. The population density in the United States is 84.7 people per square
mile. Roane County has a major interstate passing through it, making Knoxville easily accessible. The
geagraphic area offers a Covenant Health Hospital, Roane Medical Center, within 5 miles. Specialty
physicians are available in nearby cities such as Knoxville and Oak Ridge, TN.

2. The relationship of the socio-demographics of the service area and the project population to receive
services should be considered. The proposal’s sensitivity and responsiveness to the special needs of the
service area should be considered including accessibility to consumers, particularly women, racial and
ethnic minorities, low income groups, and those needing services involuntarily.

Please see the attached four pages from United States Census Quick Facts and the Tennessee Population
Estimates 2015 and 2019 with all demographic information for Roane County.

This project involves the conversion of an existing, licensed Residential Habilitation home that will create
4 new ICE/IID beds in Roane County. There are individuals currently living at Greene Valley
Developmental Center who need ICF / 11D services in the community. These individuals have
developmental disabilities and complex medical needs, which include tracheotomy care, tube feeding,
oxygen administration, insulin injections, medication administration and daily medical assessments. The
age range for the men and women with developmental disabilities who need ICF / 11D services range
from 18 — 70 years old. These services are accessible to all who need and qualify for services,

including women, ethnic minorities, low-income groups and those needing services voluntarily.

Supplemental Request
Replacement Page
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C. Relationship to Existing Applicable Plans

1. The proposal’s relationship to policy as formulated in state, city, county, and/or regional
plans and other documents should be a significant consideration.

Michael Dunn Center’s proposal for this ICF home includes operating within the policies of
DIDD, TennCare and Department of Health.

2. The proposal’s relationship to underserved geographic areas and underserved populations
groups as identified in state, city, county, and/or regional plans and other documents
should be a significant consideration.

DIDD has a statewide waiting list of more than seven thousand people awaiting placement.
These additional beds will remain in place in the event someone being admitted from GVDC
passes away. This will provide an opportunity to serve additional people from the waiting
list.

3. The impact of the proposal on similar services supported by state and federal

‘appropriations should be asses$&d and considered.
There are currently eight ICF beds in Roane County operated by MDC. All of these beds are
occupied. Newly vacant beds have been filled within 60 days. The four additional beds will
not impact these ICF homes. The next closest homes are in Knoxville and Chattanooga, TN,
greater than 40 miles away. The new home in the proposal will not impact the existing ICF
beds.

4. The degree of projected financial participation in the Medicare and TennCare programs
should be considered.

Hope Haven Inc. will provide the funding for the renovations for this proposal. After the
completion of the project, TennCare will remit payment to Michael Dunn Center for
provisionsémvided to the individuals residing in the home.

D. Relationship to Existing Similar Services in the Area

1. The area’s trends in occupancy and utilization of similar services should be considered.
There are currently eight ICF beds in Roane County operated by MDC. All of these beds
are occupied. Newly vacant beds have been secured within 30 days and filled within 60
days. There have only been two open ICF beds in Roane County in 18 years.

2. Accessibility to specific special need groups should be an important factor.
Roane County Family Practice physicians see a majority of the individuals with
developmental disabilities at MDC. One of these physicians is on the board of directors
at MDC. The hospital administrator from Roane Medical Center, the local hospital, is
also on the board of directors at MDC. MDC employs a therapy department consisting
of a PT, PTA, OT, SLP, and two dieticians. MDC also employs nursing staff and contracts
with behavioral analysts as needed.

ATTACHMENT Z7Z:PG 2
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1310 Karnes Avenue
Knoxville, TN 37917
Office: 865.689.4480

Fax: 865.687.8622

MORRISTOVWN TN Fire Alarm #C-1746

AUTOMATIC SPRINKLER CO.

July 1, 20156

Michael Dunn Center
629 Gallaher Rd,
Kingston, TN 37763

Attn: Gary Hiedle
Re: Clymersville RD Property

Dear Gary,

-

Based on upon our recent site visit and conversations, we are pleased to offer this
proposal to perform the fire protection work at the referenced. Our scope of work is

based on the following:

Exterior:

« Beginning at the property line at an outlet left by the local utility company, install
6" fire protection underground piping approximately along the existing driveway.

e A new fire hydrant will be placed close to the driveway entrance supplied from
the new underground piping.

« After the hydrant, install a yard post indicating gate valve (YPIV) and continue to
an above ground heated enclosure with an approved backflow assembly and a
Fire Department Connection (FDC).

 After the backflow assembly, continue with 6" underground piping approximately
275'-0" to the existing house and end with a flanged spigot piece located in.a
riser room near the pantry.

« All underground fire protection piping will be properly restrained with concrete
thrust blocks, rodding and clamping.

 All underground fittings will be mechanical joint type fittings.
e Installation and testing will be per NFPA 24 and 13.

ATTACHMENT 9PG 1
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Interior:

« Beginning at flanged spigot piece in the riser room, install a dry pipe riser
assembly complete with control valve, dry pipe valve, main drain, air supply,
pressure switches, alarm bell and all other components necessary for a complete
and functional system.

« From the dry riser assembly, install automatic sprinkler protection for all occupied
spaces and for the combustible attic space.

e The occupied spaces will be designed for a Light Hazard Occupancy in
accordance with NFPA 13, The sprinklers will be quick response, dry barrel type
chrome pendent.

o The attic space will be designed for a Light Hazard Occupancy in accordance
with NFPA 13. The sprinklers will be quick response brass upright. -

e Seismic bracing will be provided per NFPA 13.

« Allinstallation and testing will be per NFPA 13.

« Standard materials and components will be used including black steel pipe,
grooved fittings and cast iron screwed fittings.

The price breakdown to perform the work described above is:

Exterior: $ 52,600.00
Interior: $ 76,800.00
TOTAL: $ 129,400.00
Conditions:

» This proposal assumes an adequate water supply.

« The piping will be sloped back to the riser. If this is not possible due to
constraints of the existing building, we will provide low point drain assemblies
where required.

 Our proposal begins at the property line. The local utility will bring service to the
property line; however the fees to the local utility will be paid by the owner.

« This proposal assumes an NFPA 13 sprinkler system is required. If during code
review it is found that a less comprehensive system is acceptable, we will provide
a revised proposal.

e Our drawings will be signed by a State of Tennessee Responsible Managing
Employee (RME). No Architect or Professional Engineer stamped or sealed
drawings are included in this proposal.

ATTACHMENT 9:PG 2
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This proposal assumes a method for bringing materials into the attic space from
outside will be provided by others. The small access panel in the interior of the
house will not be sufficient for getting materials into the attic.

This quotation assumes work will be completed during normal working hours,

This quotation is good for 30 days.

Exclusions:

Our quotation specifically excludes the following:

9.

© N o ok DN =

Payment and Performance bond — if required can be figured at 1.0% of contract.
Painting, marking and identification of piping. '

Galvanized piping.

Fire Extinguishers.

Hose valves, stations or cabinets.

Alarm system.

Cutting, Patching or repairing asphalt and/or concrete.

Removal of unsuitable soil including rock and soil cement. It is assumed that
excavated material is suitable for backfill.

Bollards for protection of risers.

10. Wiring of fire protection equipment.
11.Dry sprinkler protection for any areas outside the building.

Thank you for the opportunity to quote on this valued work. If you have any questions,
please do not hesitate to contact me at your convenience at 865-689-4480.

Best regards,

MORRISTOWN AUTOMATIC SPRINKLER CO.

Jevewy Cross

Jeremy Cross

ATTACHMENT 9:PG 3
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www.michaeldunncenter.org

The Michael Dunn Center has or has access to the cash needed to fund the proposed
project. Michael Dunn Center maintains a cash balance of $800,000 to $1,000,000 and
the Michael Dunn Foundation has cash and investments that total around $2,800,000.
The Michael Dunn Foundation’s Board of Directors has pledged their financial support if
and when Michael Dunn Center needs financial support.

As of 6/30/15 Michael Dunn Center has current assets of $2,589,140.07 and total
liabilities of $757,079.18.

As of 6/30/15 Michael Dunn Foundation has current assets of $2,859,539.75 and total
liabilities of $18,920.62.

Balance sheets of both corporations are attached.

Do Wer

Glen Blevins, VP of Finance

ATTACHMENT 10
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AFFIDAVIT

STATE OF TENNESSEE

COUNTY OF Ko ane.

NAME OF FACILITY: Michrel Dounn Cende

I M. ke, Mc.Elhinned ., after first being duly sworn, state under oath that | am the
applicant named in this Certificate of Need application or the lawful agent thereof, that |

have reviewed all of the supplemental information submitted herewith, and that itis true,

imo 2-9-L

Signature/T itle'

accurate, and complete.

Sworn to and Nsubscribed before me, a Notary Public, this the gt day of Fen ruary 20\,

witness my hand at office in the County of __ Roane , State of Tennessee.

WWQ{\:&L

A3

NOTARY PUBLIC

My commission expires __ |- |5- 201% ,

HF-0043

Revised 7/02
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Copy
Supplemental- #2

Michael Dunn Center

CN1602-006
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Please indicate the number of patient days provided in Years 2012, 2013, and 2014 on
line “A. Utilization Data” in the Historical Data Chart. Please revise and resubmit.

Why was there a loss of $341,000 in 2014 in the Historical Data Chart?

We gave a 2% wage increase to staff. This had a cost of $160,000 and we did not receive
a rate increase to pay for these wage increases. In the prior year we had a DOT grant that
we did not receive in FY2014. This grant was $169,779. Compared to the prior year we
lost $57,000 of child day care fees from our child day care program, $63,000 of revenue
from contracts with the local school systems and lost $91,799 of revenue from sales in

our work program.
Please specify “other operating revenue” in A.4 in the Historical Data Chart.

Other Operating Revenue is income from insurance proceeds, management fees, food
stamp revenue, rental income, reimbursements and miscellaneous income.

Please explain the reason salaries and wages increased from $8,680,000 in 2013 to
$9,514,000 in 2014 in the Historical Data Chart.

We gave a 2% increase in wages $164,000
We added two new homes 575,675
Increase in health insurance cost 96,579
Work Comp Premium i increase 16,496
Other Changes  -- -, i 5 el o s (184750)

The Historical Data Chart shows no Provision for Charity Care and/or Bad Debt. Please
explain.

We expect to only serve individuals that are funded by the State of Tennessee or the
Federal government. We expect to receive payment for all services provided.

Projected Data Chart

The Projected Data Chart is not in the correct format as prescribed in the application (A-
F). Please review the Projected Data Chart in the application and submit a corrected
revised Projected Data Chart.

Please clarify the reason revenue and expenses will decrease in Year Two.

Our budget is based on being reimbursed for our expenses so the income changes as the
expenses change. The first year of operation we budgeted to furnish the home with
furniture and appliances. The second year does not include purchases of furniture and

appliances so the expenses will decrease.

Why are supplies declining from $138,934 in Year One to $32,640 in Year Two?
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AFFIDAVIT o ¥

COUNTY OF [ agne

NAME OF FACILITY: _Michael Duan Certterr

l, Mlk{ McEl lhianeas , after first being duly sworn, state under oath that | am the

|
applicant named in this Certificate of Need application or the lawful agent thereof, that |
have reviewed all of the supplemental information submitted herewith,-and that it is true,

accurate, and complete.

TR . Peenite ceo
Signature/Title % '

Sworn to and subscribed before me, a Notary Public, this the 23 day of Febr uory, 2046,

witness my hand at office in the County of _ Roane. , State of Tennessee.

N\ kele SN o Love
NOTARY PUBLIC 5

My commission expires ,bougme > 2018 .

HF-0043

Revised 7/02
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2, Section C. (Economic Feasibility) Item 4 (Historical Data Chart)

SUPPLEMENTAL #3

February 29, 2016
12:15pm

The itemized expenses included in “Historical Data Chart-D.9 Other Expenses” in Attachment 13 for
the Years 2012-2014 is noted. However, the totals in the attachment do not match the Historical Data
Chart totals included in D.9 in Attachment 11. Please submit a revised Historical Data Chart, or revise
the totals in “D.9 Other Expenses Categories” included in Attachment 13 and submit a replacement

page.

Answer: The amounts in the Historical Data Chart was averaged to the thousands. Below is the
breakdown of the Other Expenses averaged to the thousands.

Other Expenses

Professional Fees
Supplies

Telephone

Postage & Shipping
Occupancy

Equipmeént Rental & Maint.
Printing & Publications
Travel, Conf & Meetings
Insurance

SR Wages & Benefits
Depreciation

Other Non Personnel
ltems For Resale

Fund Raising Expenses
Grant Expenses
Equipment

TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES

FY2012
583,000.00

77,000.00
8,000.00
342,000.00
18,000.00
16,000.00
535,000.00
53,000.00

212,000.00

1,844,000.00

FY2013

570,000.00

65,000.00
6,000.00
337,000.00
25,000.00
16,000.00
584,000.00
56,000.00

274,000.00

1,933,000.00

FY2014

554,000.00

63,000.00
9,000.00
323,000.00
16,000.00
3,000.00
607,000.00
63,000.00

216,000.00

1,854,000.00
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AFFIDAVIT

STATE OF TENNESSEE

COUNTY ofF Roane.

NAME OF FACILITY: _Michael Dunn Center

1, th ke MoEln gﬂ@fj , after first being duly sworh, state under oath that | am the
applicant named in this Certificate of Need application or the lawful agent thereof, that |

have reviewed all of the supplemental information submitted herewith, and that it is true,

accurate, and complete.

Signature/Title s

Sworn to and subscribed before me, a Notary Public, this the 26 day of February , 2014,

witness my hand at office in the County of _ Roane. , State of Tennessee.

Mﬂ;&—‘. :

NOTARY PUBLIC
My commission expires ,59,3,,%% S , 2018 .

HF-0043

Revised 7/02
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State of Tennessee

Health Services and Development Agency
Andrew Jackson Building, 91" Floor

502 Deaderick Street

Nashville, TN 37243
www.tn.gov/hsda Phone: 615-741-2364 Fax: 615-741-9884

LETTER OF INTENT

The Publication of Intent is to be published in the _Roane County News which is a newspaper
(Name of Newspaper)
of general circulation in __Roane , Tennessee, on or before  02/04 , 20186,
(County) (Month / day) (Year)
for one day.

This is to provide official notice to the Health Services and Development Agency and all interested parties, in accordance with T.C.A. §
68-11-1601 ef seq., and the Rules of the Health Services and Development Agency, that:

Michael Dunn Center Residential Habilitation
(Name of Applicant) (Facility Type-Existing)
owned by: Hope Haven Coorporation with an ownership type of _Non-Profit

and to be managed by: Mike McElhinney, President/ CEO _intends to file an application for a Certificate of Need for [PROJECT
DESCRIPTION BEGINS HERE]: The conversion of a residential habilitation home located at 736 Clymersville Road, Rockwood, TN

37854 into a four person ICF/ IDD home to facilitate the relocation of four individuals exiting Green Valley Developmental Center
(GVDC), located at 4850 East Andrew Johnson Highway, Greeneville, TN 37744-0910. The estimated project cost, calculated
according to the rules of the HSDA, is $1,582,504.00 The project includes the relocation of individuals in the Residential Habilitation

home to local Supported Living Homes or smaller Residential Habilitation Homes, the renovation of the Residential Habilitation

home to meet ICF/ IDD regulations, as well as bedroom modifications to best support the new residents. Services provided will

include 24 hour care support, including nursing services. Appropriate therapies, community integration opportunities and active

treatment plan implementation to increase independence will also be provided.

The anticipated date of filing the application is: February 4t 2016

The contact person for this project is Mike McElhinney President/ CEO
(Contact Name) (Title)
who may be reached at: Michael Dunn Center 629 Gallaher Road
(Company Name) (Address)

Kingston TN 37763 865-376-3416 Ext. 215 |

(City) (State) (Zip Code) (Area  Code / Phone Number)
o= R ; . y
W\ &J\ \ ' ﬁ ' \ C Mike . Elhi nmq

(Signature) s (Date) (E-mail Address) : o g

The Letter of Intent must be filed in triplicate and received between the first and the tenth day of the month. If the last day for
filing is a Saturday, Sunday or State Holiday, filing must occur on the preceding business day. File this form at the following
address:

Health Services and Development Agency
Andrew Jackson Building, 9" Floor
502 Deaderick Street

Nashville, Tennessee 37243

The published Letter of Intent must contain the following statement pursuant to T.C.A. § 68- 11-1607(c)(1). (A) Any health care institution
wishing to oppose a Certificate of Need application must file a written notice with the Health Services and Development Agency no later
than fifteen (15) days before the regularly scheduled Health Services and Development Agency meeting at which the application is
originally scheduled; and (B) Any other person wishing to oppose the application must file written objection with the Health Services and

e o e e s P e e e e R e 0 o e B B B 3 B e e e e s e B g oy S Do o e B B By o o B e P e

HF51 (Revised 01/09/2013 — all forms prior to this date are obsolete)



Deportinent of
Intellectual &
Developmental Disabilities

MEMORANDUM

TO: Melanie Hill, Executive Director
Health Services and Development Agency

FROM: Theresa Sloan, Assistant Commissioner and General Counsel; \_ﬂ/\l-«/L‘\

Tennessee Department of Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities

DATE: March 4, 2016

RE: Review and Analysis of Certificate of Need Application
Michael Dunn Center- CN11601-006

Pursuant to, and in accordance with, Tennessee Code Annotated (TCA) & 68- 11- 1608 and Rules of the
Health Services and Development Agency including the Criteria and Standards for Certificate of Need
(2000 Edition, Tennessee's Health Guidelines for Growth, prepared by the Health Planning Commission)
[hereinafter Guidelines for Growth], staff of the Tennessee Department of Intellectual and Developmental

Disabilities (DIDD) the licensing agency, have reviewed and analyzed the above-referenced application for
a Certificate of Need.

Attached is the DIDD report. At a minimum, and as noted in TCA § 68-11-1608, the report provides:

(1) Verification of application-submitted information;

(2) Documentation or source for data;

(3) A review of the applicant's participation or non-participation in Tennessee's Medicaid program,
TennCare or its successor;

(4) Analyses of the impact of a proposed project on the utilization of existing providers and the

financial consequences to existing providers from any loss of utilization that would result from the
proposed project;

(5) Specific determinations as to whether a proposed project is consistent with the state health plan;
(6) Further studies and inquiries necessary to evaluate the application pursuant to the rules of the
agency.

If there are any questions, please contact me at (615) 253-6811

cc: Debra K. Payne, Commissioner, DIDD
Jordan Allen, Deputy Commissioner, DIDD
John Craven, ETRO Director, DIDD
Lee Vestal, Director of Risk Management and Licensure, DIDD

Office of General Counsel * Citizens Plaza * 400 Deaderick St. 10" Floor « Nashville, TN 37243
Tel: 615-253-3800 ¢ Fax; 615-253-7996¢ TN.gov/DIDD



DIDD Report
CON Application #CN1601-006
Page 2 of 6

REVIEW AND ANALYSIS CERTIFICATE OF NEED APPLICATION
# CN 1601-006

Pursuant to, and in accordance with, Tennessee Code Annotated (TCA) § 68-11-1608 and Rules of the
Health Services and Development Agency including the Criteria and Standards for Certificate of Need
(2000 Edition, Tennessee's Health Guidelines for Growth, prepared by the Health Planning Commission)
[hereinafter Guidelines for Growth], staff of the Tennessee Department of Intellectual and Developmental
Disabilities (DIDD), the licensing agency, have reviewed and analyzed the application for a Certificate of
Need submitted by Mr. Michael McElhinney (President/CEO of the Michael Dunn Center) on behalf of the
Michael Dunn Center for the establishment of a new, four bed Intermediate Care Facility for individuals
with Intellectual Disabilities (ICF/IID) to be located, at 763 Clymersville Road in Rockwood, Roane County
TN. This is a current ten bed residential habilitation facility owned by the Hope Haven Corporation that
will be re-purposed into a four bed ICF/IID. Due to the closure of the state run Greene Valley
Developmental Center (GVDCQ), these beds are being created for the transition of persons residing at the
GVDC whose family members live in or near Roane County TN.
The report has three (3) parts:

A Summary of Project

B. Analysis - in three (3) parts:

Need Economic Feasibility

Evaluated by the following general factors: [Evaluated by the following general
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with health professional schools);
Positive or negative effects attributed
to duplication or competition;
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groups);

impact on existing patient
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Participation in state/federal

Growth publication for this type of
facility.

revenue programs; C.

Availability and accessibility of human
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area providers; . . more effective  alternative, applicable governmental of
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zz:,nggfguy indigent patients Willbe G, additional factors specified il E. Additional factors specified in the
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. Additional factors specified in the Guidelines for Growth Growth publication,
Tennessee's Health Guidelines for] publication.
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C. Conclusions

A: SUMMARY OF PROJECT
Submission of Application

Mr. Michael McElhinney (President/CEO of the Michael Dunn Center) on behalf of the Michael Dunn
Center, has submitted this CON, for the establishment of a new, four bed Intermediate Care Facility for
individuals with Intellectual Disabilities (ICF/1ID) to be located, at 763 Clymersville Rd in Rockwood, Roane
County TN. This is a current ten bed residential habilitation facility owned by the Hope Haven
Corporation that will be re-purposed into a four bed ICF/IID. Due to the closure of the state run Greene
Valley Developmental Center (GVDC), these beds are being created for the transition of persons residing
at the GVDC whose family members live in or near Roane County TN.

The Applicant Profile indicates that the type of institution is "Mental Retardation Institutional Habilitation

Facility (ICF/MR)" (Item 7.H.) and the purpose of review is "New Institution" and “Change of Location” (Item
8.A. and 8.H).

Applicant Profile, Ownership, Management, and Licensure

As previously noted, the Applicant Profile indicates that the type of institution is "Mental Retardation
Institutional Habilitation Facility" (ltem 7.H.) and the purpose of review is "New Institution" and Change of
location (Items 8.A. and 8.H). The Applicant Profile also shows that the Owner of the Facility, Agency or
Institution, is Hope Haven Corporation which will be operated by the Michael Dunn Center (Item 3). There
is not a management company. Michael Dunn Center will operate the facility in all aspects with the
exception of the initial start-up costs. Item 9 of the Applicant Profile shows the bed complement as noted
previously: four ICF/IID beds all of which are the number of proposed beds and beds at completion since
this project is for the conversion of a ten bed Residential Habilitation Facility.

In Section B Project Description the Applicant explains and details the project as being a conversion of a
ten bed Residential Habilitation Home into a four bed ICF/IID, with the existing management staff
managing the new home. The Michael Dunn Center foundation has financial resources to open this
home as shown in the Michael Dunn Foundation Inc. Financial Statements with Supplemental Financial
Information (Attachment 15 of Original CON and Supplemental #1 Financial Statements with
Supplemental Financial information).

Since the Applicant is applying for a conversion of a current Residential Habilitation Facility, there is a
current Mental Retardation Residential Habilitation license issued by DIDD. If the project is approved, the
current license would be surrendered to DIDD and a new license for a Mental Retardation Institutional
Facility would be issued by DIDD.

As noted, the Applicant seeks to establish a new, four bed ICF/IID by making modifications/conversions to
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an existing ten bed Residential Habilitation Home. The new facility will serve individuals with sewvere
Intellectual Disabilities who require institutional level of care. These individuals have multiple special
needs including health care, assistance with hygiene, dietary services, physical therapy, and activities of
daily living. The Michael Dunn Center is a private, not-for-profit Corporation which currently operates
both ICF/IIDs and Home and Community based waiver services licensed by and under contract with DIDD.

Operations
The proposed service area identified by the applicant is Roane County in East Tennessee.

The need for the development of four bed ICF/IID home comes as a direct result of the announced
closure of the last large state owned developmental center, Greene Valley Developmental Center (GVDQ),
which is anticipated to close on June 30, 2016. The closure of GVDC is part of an Exit Plan in a nineteen
(19) year old lawsuit against the state of Tennessee by the Department of justice (People First of
Tennessee et. al. v. The Clover Bottom Developmental Center et. al. No. 3:95-1227) regarding
unconstitutional conditions at four (4) developmental centers in Tennessee. The last obligation in the Exit
Plan, which once complete will result in a full dismissal of the law suit, is the closure of GVDC and the
transition of all residents into smaller homes in the community, such as the home this CON is being
requested to build.

Project costs are estimated at $1,582,504 for modification of the current facility as described above. No
major medical equipment is contained within this project. The projected date of completion of the project
and the initiation of services is July 2016.

B: ANALYSIS

NEED:

The Guidelines for Growth include a population-based estimate of the total need for ICF/IID facilities of
0.032 percent of the general population. This estimate is based on the estimate for all Intellectual
Disabilities of 1 percent of the general population. Of the 1 percent estimate, 3.2 percent are estimated to
meet level 1 criteria and be appropriate for ICF/IID services. The applicant identified the proposed service
area for this project as Roane County, since that is where this new four bed ICF/ID facility will be located.
According to population estimates from the Tennessee Department of Health, the 2015 population
estimate for Roane County is 54,411. Applying the Guidelines for Growth formula to this population
estimate indicates a need for 17.7 ICF/IID beds in the proposed service area in 2015. The Health Services
and Development Agency has approved two previous MDC four bed ICF/IID facilities to be located in
Roane County for a current total of eight ICF/MR beds. This project in conjunction with the conversion of
a second home will add a total of eight ICF/IID beds in Roane County. At completion there will be a total
of 16 ICF/IID beds in Roane County. All eight new ICF/IID beds will be created to support persons moving

out of the GVDC. Therefore, the need for these ICF/IID beds is supported by the Guidelines for Growth
formula.
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The anticipated cost for this project is $1,582,504 for modification of the current facility as described
above. Based on information submitted by the applicant, sufficient cash reserves appear to be in place to
fund this project. This project will be financed through cash reserves of the Michael Dunn Foundation, inc.
The project involves the modification of a home located in Rockwood, Tennessee. It is a 3,341 square
foot, one story ranch style home located on a 2.93 acres lot. As explained on page 15 of the application,
the facility design includes four suites; each suite will consist of a bedroom that will be approximately 180
square feet, a 180 square foot TV lounge or sitting room, and a large bathroom with a handicapped
accessible shower (to be shared between two suites). There will also be larger common living room to
socialize with the other persons living in the four person home, a kitchen and dining area for persons
and/or staff to prepare meals and for the persons residing in the home to sit and eat together in a “family
style” environment, medication and equipment rooms, and laundry rooms. The Applicant reports, on

Page 15 of the application, that the conversion of this home to an ICF/IID home will add four additional
ICF beds in Roane County.

Michael Dunn Center projects an occupancy rate of 100% for this project for both year 1 and year 2, since
the beds will be immediately filled by the relocation of residents from The Greene Valley Developmental
Center. Occupancy rates of the two current ICF/IID homes operated by The Michael Dunn Center have
ranged between 97% and 99.5% in the past three years. There have been two vacancies within the past
year, both of which were filled within a month of the vacancy. Based on this information the projected
occupancy rate appears to be reasonable.

Net operating revenue is anticipated of $688,971 the first year of operation 1,155,000. All revenue will be
from Medicaid. The average gross charge is expected to be $791 per day the first year of operation and
$716 per day the second year. The per diem rates for ICF/IID facilities are set by the State of Tennessee
Comptroller's Office, based on the "Intermediate Care Facility Statement of Reimbursable Cost" form
submitted annually by all ICF/IID providers.

Michael Dunn Center plans to fill the four ICF/MR beds associated with this project by relocating four
residents from the Greene Valley Developmental Center. There are no other ICF/IID facilities in the Roane
County Tennessee, East Tennessee area with vacant ICF/IID beds, so this proposal should not have a
negative impact on other providers. Michael Dunn Center will provide complete support services for
residents of this facility based on their individual care plans. Michael Dunn Center has working
relationships with all area hospitals, Michael Dunn Center also states that these homes will increase the

need for nursing and management employees, thus bringing more experience and knowledge into the
field in Roane County.

The proposed staffing pattern reported by the applicant provides for the current staffing levels of the
other Michael Dunn Center ICF/IIDs, which includes 4.4 FTE hours for LPN staff, 9.8 FTE hours for Direct
Support Professionals and .33 FTE for RN staff. This appears to be a sufficient number of nurses and
direct support professionals to staff the four bed home.
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This Michael Dunn Center ICF/IID facility would be licensed by the Tennessee Department of Intellectual
and Developmental Disabilities as a mental retardation institutional habilitation facility. The applicant
already operates two mental retardation institutional habilitation facilities and, therefore, is familiar with
the licensing requirements for this type of facility.

C: CONCLUSIONS:

As noted above, the Department of Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities (DIDD) is the agency
responsible for licensing Mental Retardation Institutional Habilitation Facilities, which provide ICF/IID
service and is also the department that is responsible for the provision of services for individuals with
intellectual disabilities. Therefore, DIDD as the experts in the field of intellectual and developmental
disabilities has reached the following conclusion regarding this Michael Dunn Center Certificate of Need
application for establishment of a four bed ICF/IID facility in Roane County to serve individuals being
relocated from the GVDC.

The Need for the approval of a four bed ICF/IID operated by The Michael Dunn Center is supported by the
Guidelines for Growth population-based formula. Need for the four bed ICF/IID facility is also supported
by the Exit Plan in a nineteen (19) year old lawsuit against the state of Tennessee by the Department of
Justice (People First of Tennessee et. al. v. The Clover Bottom Developmental Center et. al. No. 3:95-1227),
which requires the state of Tennessee to close the Greene Valley Developmental Center and relocate the
residents to smaller four person ICF/IIDs in the community.

The cost of the project appears to be reasonable, and will save the state money based on the closure of
the GVDC and the cost associated with running an older larger congregate facility. The project can be
completed in a timely manner. Adequate funding is available and projected utilization and revenue
should be sufficient to ensure the economic feasibility of the project.

This project would contribute to the orderly development of healthcare by allowing residents of The
GVDC to receive services in a smaller, more personal living environment consistent with current
standards of care for individuals requiring ICF/IID services.

in conclusion, the Department of intellectual and Developmental Disabilities supports approval of Michael
Dunn Center Certificate of Need application for the establishment of a four bed ICF/IID in Roane County
Tennessee.
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